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The widespread outbreak of illness or other public health crisis could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. We could be negatively affected by the widespread outbreak of an illness or any other public health crisis. The COVID- 19 pandemic
negatively impacted the global economy and created significant volatility and disruption of financial markets. Demand for our staffing services and
workforce technology solutions fluctuated over the course of the COVID- 19 pandemic. Initially, in 2020, demand for some temporary healthcare
professionals and serv1ces decreased as the demand for non- essentral and electrve healthcare was 1n1t1a11y negatlvely 1rnpacted by the COVID- 19
pandemic. As d d

subsided, demand and bill rates especral]y in our nurse and a]hed solutlons busmesses decreased have-fluetaated-from the levels seen during the
pandemic. We-expeet-this-This decrease in demand wilHhave-has had a negative impact on our revenue, financial condition, and results of
operations. However we are unable to predict the duratron and extent to Wthh demand for our services eeu-}d-or blll rates wnll be negatrvely

. The COVID 19 pandemlc has
dlsrupted and any other future outbreak of illness or other pubhc health crises or reemergence or future strain of COVID- 19 may also disrupt, our
operations due to the unavailability of our corporate team members or healthcare professionals due to illness, risk of illness, quarantines, travel
restrictions, vaccine mandates or other factors that limit our existing or potential workforce and pool of candidates. In addition, we have and may in
the future experience negative financial effects related a to-the-cOVID—9-pandemic or other future outbreaks of illness due to higher workers’
compensation and health insurance costs, for which we are largely self- insured, and payroll costs associated with quarantine of our healthcare
professionals. We may also be subject to claims regarding the health and safety of our healthcare professionals and our corporate team members. The
economic impact of the COVID- 19 pandemic has-negatively impacted the financial condition of many hospitals and healthcare systems —Ous-, and
our clients afe—f&ei-ng—continue to face cost pressures and in turn are looking to decrease expenses, including for contingent labor and other services.
Demand for our services may be impacted by these cost pressures and we may be subject to Clalms from these clients relating to the ab111ty to
prov1de services under terms and Condrtlons that they beheve are falr and reasonable 8

Q- Addltlonally, outbreaks of 111ness or,
publrc hea]th crises et-heﬁ-han-or reemergence or future straln of COVID 19 could occur and may have similar or even more significant impact
on our business. Economic downturns, inflation and slow recoveries could result in less demand from clients and pricing pressure that could
negatively impact our financial condition. Demand for staffing services is sensitive to changes in economic activity. Many healthcare facilities utilize
temporary healthcare professionals to accommodate an increase in hospital admissions. Conversely, when hospital admissions decrease in economic
downturns or periods of high inflation, due to reduced consumer spending, the demand for our temporary healthcare professionals typically declines.
As economic activity slows, hospitals and other healthcare entities typically experience decreased attrition and reduce their use of temporary
employees before undertaking layoffs of their regular employees, which results in decreased demand for many of our service offerings. In times of
economic downturn and inflation, permanent full- time and part- time healthcare facility staff are generally inclined to work more hours and
overtime, resulting in fewer available vacancies and less demand for our services. Fewer placement opportunities for our temporary clinicians,
physicians and leaders also impairs our ability to recruit and place them both on a temporary and permanent basis. This may have an even greater
negative effect on demand for physicians in certain specialties such as surgery, radiology and anesthesiology. In addition, we may experience pricing
pressure during periods of decreased patient occupancy and hospital admissions, negatively affecting our revenue and profitability. During
challenging economic times or in the event of a reduction or elimination of government assistance, our clients, in particular those that rely on
government funding, may face reduced demand for their services, reduced revenue, and issues gaining access to sufficient credit, which has resulted
in and could in the future result in an impairment or further impairment of their ability to make payments to us, timely or otherwise, for services
rendered. If that were to occur, we may further increase our allowance for expected credit losses and our days sales outstanding would be negatively
affected. If we are unable to anticipate and quickly respond to changing marketplace conditions, such as alternative modes of healthcare delivery,
reimbursement and client needs, we may not remain competitive. Patient delivery settings continue to evolve, giving rise to alternative modes of
healthcare delivery, such as retail medicine, telemedicine and home health. In addition, changes in reimbursement models and government mandates
are also impacting the-healthcare environments. Our success depends upon our ability to develop innovative workforce solutions, quickly adapt to
changing marketplace conditions, such as reimbursement changes, and evolving client needs, comply with new federal or state regulations and
differentiate our services and abilities from those of our competitors. The markets in which we compete are highly competitive, and our competitors
may respond more quickly to new or emerging client needs and marketplace conditions. The development of new service lines and business models
requires close attention to emerging trends and proposed federal and state legislation related to the healthcare industry. If we are unable to anticipate
changing marketplace conditions, adapt our current business model to adequately meet changing conditions in the healthcare industry and develop
and successfully implement innovative services, we may not remain competitive. Consolidation of healthcare delivery organizations could negatively
affect pricing of our services and increase our concentration risk. Consolidation of healthcare delivery organizations provides them with greater
leverage in negotiating pricing for services. Consolidations may also result in us losing our ability to work with certain clients because the party
acquiring or consolidating with our client may have a previously established service provider they elect to maintain. In addition, our clients may
increase their use of intermediaries such as vendor management service companies and group purchasing organizations that may enhance their
bargaining power or clients with a larger network of healthcare profcssionals may develop their own temporary staffing models. These dynamics
each separately or together could negatively affect pricing for our services and our ability to maintain certain clients. Hospital concentration coupled
with our sueeess-in-winning-managed services contracts means our revenues from some larger health systems have grown and may continue to grow
substantially relative to our other revenue sources. For example, Kaiser Foundation Hospitals (and its affiliates) (collectively, « Kaiser ”) comprised
approximately 4716 % of our consolidated revenue in 2623-2024 . If we were to lose Kaiser as a client or were unable to provide a significant
amount of services to Kaiser, whether directly or as a subcontractor, such loss may have a material adverse effect on our revenue, results of
operations and cash flows. Intermediary organizations may impede our ability to secure new and profitable contracts with our clients. Our business
depends upon our ability to maintain our existing contracts and secure new, profitable contracts. Outside of our managed services contracts, our
client contracts are not typically exclusive and our clients are generally free to offer temporary staffing assignments to our competitors. Additionally,
our clients may choose to purchase these services through intermediaries such as group purchasing organizations or competitors offering MSP
services, with whom we establish relationships in order to continue to provide our staffing services to certain healthcare facilities. These
intermediaries may negatively affect our ability to obtain new clients and maintain our existing client relationships by impeding our ability to access



and contract directly with clients and may also negatively affect the profitability of these client relationships. In addition, our inability to establish
relationships with these intermediaries may result in us losing our ability to work with certain healthcare facilities. The repeal or significant erosion
of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (“ ACA ) without a corresponding replacement may negatively affect the demand for our
services. In 2010, the adoption of the ACA brought significant reforms to the health care system that included, among other things, a requirement
that all individuals have health insurance (with limited exceptions). As a result of the ACA, the uninsured population has declined significantly. If
there is a rollback of aspects of the ACA, such as Medicaid expansion, it may lead to a reduction in demand for healthcare services and the demand
for our services may decline. Regulatory and Legal Risk Factors Investigations, claims and legal proceedings alleging medical malpractice, anti-
competitive conduct, violations of employment, privacy and wage regulations and other theories of liability asserted against us could subject us to
substantial liabilities. Like all employers, we must also comply with various laws and regulations relating to employment and pay practices and from
time to time may be subject to individual , representative and class action lawsuits related to alleged wage and hour violations under California and
Federal law. We are subject to possible claims alleging discrimination, sexual harassment and other similar activities in which we or our hospital and
healthcare facility clients and their agents have allegedly engaged. We are also subject to examination of our payroll practices from various federal
and state taxation authorities from time to time. While we believe that our employment and pay practices materially comply with relevant laws and
regulations, interpretations of these laws change. Because of the nature of our business, the impact of these employment and payroll laws and
regulations may have a more pronounced effect on our business. There is a risk that we could be subject to payment of significant additional wages,
insurance and employment, and payroll- related taxes and sizeable statutory penalties negatively impacting our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. These laws and regulations may also impede our ability to grow the size and profitability of our operations. In addition,
our involvement in these matters and any related adverse rulings may result in increased costs and expenses, cause us from time to time to
significantly increase our legal accruals and / or modify our pay practices, all of which would likely have an adverse impact on our financial
performance and profitability. We, along with our clients and healthcare professionals, are subject to investigations, claims and legal actions alleging
malpractice or related legal theories. At times, plaintiffs name us in these lawsuits and actions regardless of our contractual obligations, the
competency of the healthcare professionals, the standard of care provided by the healthcare professionals, the quality of service that we provided or
our actions. In certain instances, we are contractually required to indemnify our clients against some or all of these potential legal actions. The size
and nature of our business requires us to collect substantial personal information of healthcare professionals and other team members that is subject
to a myriad of privacy- related laws from multiple jurisdictions that regulate the use and disclosure of such information. In addition, many of our
healthcare professionals have access to client proprietary information systems and patient confidential information. We may be required to incur
significant costs to comply with mandatory privacy and security standards and protocols imposed by law, regulation, industry standards or
contractual obligations with our clients. In addition, an inherent risk of the collection and access to such information includes possible claims from
unintentional or intentional misuse, disclosure or use of this information. Such claims may result in negative publicity, injunctive relief, criminal
investigations or charges, civil litigation, payment by us of monetary damages or fines, or other adverse effects on our business, which may be
material. We are also subject to certain laws and regulations applicable to recruitment and employment placement agencies with which we must
comply in order to continue to conduct business in that specific state. As we grow and increase our leadership position, we are at greater risk for anti-
competitive conduct claims and investigations, such as violation of federal and state antitrust laws ;-and unfair business practices and-—priee-
geuging- 2-An environment of high- demand for healthcare staffing support coupled with the healthcare labor shortage, especially with respect to
nurse and allied healthcare professionals, has led and may continue to lead to higher wages for healthcare professionals and higher costs to our
clients for healthcare staffing. This may lead to claims and investigations into pricing and competitive conduct in the healthcare staffing industry.
While we believe that our business practices, including pricing and competitive conduct, comply with all applicable laws and regulations, we may
nonetheless be subject to inquiries, claims or investigations which could negatively impact our reputation and business. As we incorporate AI and
machine learning into our business there are uncertainties in the legal regulatory regime relating to Al that may require significant
resources to modify and maintain our business practices to comply with U. S. and non- U. S. laws, the nature of which cannot be determined
at this time. If the jurisdictions in which we operate decide to adopt laws governing Al, such legislation may render the use of such
technologies challenging, impossible or financially prohibitive. We maintain various types of insurance coverage for many types of claims,
including professional liability, errors and omissions, employment practices and cyber, through commercial insurance carriers and a wholly- owned
captive insurance company and for other claims such as wage and hour practices and competition actions, we are uninsured. The cost of defending
such claims, even if groundless, could be substantial and the associated negative publicity could adversely affect our ability to attract, retain and
place qualified employees and healthcare professionals in the future. We may also experience increased insurance premiums and retention and
deductible accruals that we may not be able to pass on to our clients, thereby reducing our profitability. Moreover, our insurance coverage and
reserve accruals may not be sufficient to cover all claims against us. We are subject to federal and state healthcare industry regulation including
conduct of operations, costs and payment for services and payment for referrals as well as laws regarding immigration and government contracting.
The healthcare industry is subject to extensive and complex federal and state laws and regulations related to conduct of operations, costs and payment
for services and payment for referrals. We provide talent solutions and technologies on a contract basis to our clients, who pay us directly.
Accordingly, Medicare, Medicaid and insurance reimbursement policy changes generally do not directly impact us. Nevertheless, reimbursement
changes in government programs, particularly Medicare and Medicaid, can and do indirectly affect the demand and the prices paid for our services.
For example, our clients could receive reduced or no reimbursements because of a change in the rates or conditions set by federal or state
governments that would negatively affect the demand and the prices for our services. Moreover, our hospital, healthcare facility and physician
practice group clients could suffer civil and criminal penalties, and be excluded from participating in Medicare, Medicaid and other healthcare
programs for failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations that may negatively affect our profitability . In our international nurse
business, we recruit registered nurses from outside of the United States who rely on visas to be eligible to be placed or hired directly with
healthcare facilities. Visa retrogression, where the date (s) that determine availability for applying for a visa are moved to a later date, has
had and may in the future have a negative impact on our international nursing volumes. Additionally, other changes in immigration policy,
laws and processes could negatively impact our financial performance . A portion of our hospital and healthcare facility clients are state and
federal government agencies, where our ability to compete for new contracts and orders, and the profitability of these contracts and orders, may be
affected by government legislation, regulation or policy. Additionally, in providing services to state and federal government clients and to clients
who participate in state and federal programs, we are also subject to specific laws and regulations, which government agencies have broad latitude to
enforce. If we were to be excluded from participation in these programs or should there be regulatory or policy changes or modification of
application of existing regulations adverse to us, it would likely materially adversely affect our brand, business, results of operations and cash flows.
We are also subject to certain state laws and regulations applicable to healthcare staffing and “ nursing pools ” with which we must comply in order
to continue to conduct business in that particular state. Regulation relating to healthcare staffing agencies has increased the operational and
administrative requirements and increased the cost to provide various of our services in certain states. If regulation of our services continues to
increase it could have a negative impact on our ability to profitably provide services in some states. We may also be subject to state laws that impose
caps or other limitations on amounts that may be charged to clients for certain types of healthcare staffing, which in turn impacts the wages paid to
healthcare professionals and may impact our ability to attract healthcare professionals to assignments in these states. In addition, it is generally our
practice to pass along the increased costs associated with higher wages for healthcare professionals on to our clients. If new or additional caps or



other price limitations were imposed that prevented us from passing these increased costs on or if the amount that we were able to pass on to our
clients is limited , it would likely have an adverse impact on our financial performance and profitability. The challenge to the classification of certain
of our healthcare professionals as independent contractors could adversely affect our profitability. Historically, we have treated our locum tenens,
which include physicians and certain advanced practitioners, such as certified nurse anesthetists, nurse practitioners and physician assistants, as
independent contractors. Certain state laws regarding classification of independent contractors have been modified in the past few years and as a
result, we have altered our classification of certain locum tenens providers in certain instances. Other states and / or the Federal government may
choose to adopt similar restrictions that may require us to expand our employee classifications for locum tenens. If this occurs, it could increase our
employee costs and expenses and could negatively impact our profitability. In addition, Federal or state taxing authorities may take the position that
locum tenens are employees exposing us to additional wage and insurance claims and employment and payroll- related taxes. A reclassification of
our locum tenens to employees from independent contractors could result in liability that would have a significant negative impact on our
profitability for the period in which such reclassification was implemented, and would require changes to our payroll and related business processes,
which could be costly. In addition, many states have laws that prohibit non- physician owned companies from employing physicians, referred to as
the “ corporate practice of medicine. ” If our independent contractor physicians were classified as employees in states that prohibit the corporate
practice of medicine, we may be prohibited from conducting our locum tenens staffing business in those states under our current business model,
which may have a substantial negative effect on our revenue, results of operations and profitability. Risk Factors Related to Our Operations,
Personnel and Information Systems If we do not continue to recruit and retain sufficient quality healthcare professionals at reasonable costs, it could
increase our operating costs and negatively affect our business and our proﬂtability We rely significantly on our ability to recruit and retain a
sufficient number of healthcare professionals who possess the skills, experience and licenses necessary to meet the requirements of our clients. With
continuing clinician burnout rates restitingfrefmrthe-COVIB-—9pandemte-, an ongoing shortage of certain qualified nurses and physwlans in many
areas of the United States and low unemployment rates for nurses and physicians, competition for the hiring of these professionals remains intense.
Our ability to recruit temporary and permanent healthcare professionals may be exacerbated by continued low levels of unemployment. We compete
with healthcare staffing companies, recruitment and placement agencies, including online staffing and recruitment agencies, and with hospitals,
healthcare facilities and physician practice groups to attract healthcare professionals based on the quantity, diversity and quality of assignments
offered, compensation packages, the benefits that we provide and speed and quality of our service. We rely on our tech- enabled, relationship-
oriented approach and national infrastructure to enable us to compete in all aspects of our business. We must continually evaluate and expand our
healthcare professional network to serve the needs of our clients. The costs of recruitment of quality healthcare professionals and providing them
with competitive compensation packages may be higher than we anticipate, or we may be unable to pass these costs on to our hospital and healthcare
facility clients, which may reduce our profitability. Moreover, if we are unable to recruit temporary and permanent healthcare professionals, our
service execution may deteriorate and, as a result, we could lose clients or not meet our service level agreements with these clients that have negative
financial repercussions. Our inability to implement new infrastructure and technology systems and technology disruptions may adversely affect our
operating results and ability to manage our business effectively. We have technology, operations and human capital infrastructures to support our
existing business. Our ability to deliver services to our clients and to manage our commercial technologies, internal systems and data depends largely
upon our access to and the performance of our management information and communications systems, including our SaaS- based solutions, client
relationship management systems and client / healthcare professional- facing self- service websites and applications. These technology systems also
maintain accounting and financial information upon which we depend to fulfill our financial reporting obligations. We must continue to invest in this
infrastructure to support our growth, enhance our management and utilization of data and improve our efficiency. Upgrading current systems and
implementing new systems is costly and involves inherent risks, including loss of information, disruption to our normal operations, changes in
accounting procedures and internal control over financial reporting, as well as problems achieving accuracy in the conversion of electronic data.
Failure to properly or adequately address these issues could result in increased costs, loss of clients, healthcare professionals and talent, the diversion
of management’ s and employees’ attention and resources and could materially adversely affect our growth, financial and operating results, internal
controls over financial reporting and ability to manage our business effectively. Additionally, the current legacy systems are subject to other non-
environmental risks, including technological obsolescence for which there may not be sufficient redundancy or backup. These systems, and our
access to these systems, are not impervious to floods, fire, storms, or other natural disasters, or service interruptions. There also is a potential for
intentional and deliberate attacks to our systems, including ransomware, that may lead to service interruptions, data corruption, data theft or data
unavailability. If our current or planned systems do not adequately support our operations, are damaged or disrupted or if we are unable to replace,
repair, maintain or expand them, it may adversely affect our business operations and our profitability. Our business could be harmed if we fail to
further develop and evolve our current talent solutions technology offerings and capabilities. To achieve our strategic objectives and to remain
competitive, we must continue to develop and enhance our talent solutions technology offerings and capabilities. This may require the acquisition of
equipment and software and the development of new proprietary software and capabilities, either internally or through independent consultants,
which may require significant investment of capital. If we are unable to design, develop, acquire, implement and utilize, in a cost- effective manner,
technology and information systems that provide the capabilities necessary for us to compete effectively, or for any reason any interruption or loss of
our information processing capabilities occurs, this could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, as technology
continues to evolve, more tasks currently performed by people may continue to be replaced by automation, robotics, machine learning, Al artifieiat
ntethigenee-and other technological advances that may be outside of our control. These technological changes may reduce demand for our services,
enable the development of competitive products or services or enable our customers to reduce or bypass the use of our services. Disruption to or
failures of our SaaS- based or technology- enabled services, or our inability to adequately protect our intellectual property rights with respect to such
technologies, could reduce client satisfaction, harm our reputation and negatively affect our business. The performance, reliability and security of
our technology- enabled services, including our language interpretation services and SaaS- based technologies, such as AMN Language Services,
ShiftWise-ineludingthereeentrelease-of-Shift Wise Flex, Medefis, b4health, and Avantas Smart Square are critical to such offerings’” operations,
reputation and ability to attract new clients. Some of our clients rely on our SaaS- based technologies to perform certain of their operational
functions. Accordingly, any degradation, errors, defects, disruptions or other performance problems with our SaaS- based technologies could damage
our or our clients’ operations and reputations and negatively affect our business. If any of these problems occur, our clients may, among other things,
terminate their agreements with us or make indemnification or other claims against us, which may also negatively affect us. Additionally, if we fail
to protect our intellectual property rights adequately with respect to our SaaS- based technologies, our competitors might gain access to it, and our
business might be harmed. Moreover, if any of our intellectual property rights associated with our SaaS- based technologies are challenged by others
or invalidated through litigation, defending our intellectual property rights might also entail significant expense. Accordingly, despite our efforts, we
may be unable to prevent third parties from using or infringing upon or misappropriating our intellectual property with respect to our SaaS- based
technologies, which may negatively affect our business as it relates to our SaaS- based and technology- enabled service offerings. Security breaches
and cybersecurity incidents could compromise our information and systems adversely affecting our business operations and reputation subject us to
substantial liabilities. Security breaches, including cyber incidents can result from deliberate attacks or unintentional events. These incidents can
include, but are not limited to, gaining unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive information,
ransomware attacks, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption. In the ordinary course of our business, we collect and store sensitive data,
such as our proprietary business information and that of our clients as well as personally identifiable information of our healthcare professionals and



team members, including full names, social security numbers, addresses, birth dates and payroll- related information, in our data centers, on our
networks and in hosted SaaS- based solutions provided by third parties. Our employees and third- party vendors may also have access to, receive and
use personal health information in the ordinary course of our business. The secure access to, processing, maintenance and transmission of this
information is critical to our operations. Despite our security measures and business controls, our information technology and infrastructure,
including the third party SaaS- based technology in which we store personally identifiable information and other sensitive information of our
healthcare professionals may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers, breached due to third- party vendor and / or employee error, malfeasance or other
disruptions such as ransomware or subject to the inadvertent or intentional unauthorized release of information. The Company has experienced cyber
threats resulting in immaterial cyber incidents and expects cyber threats to continue with varying levels of sophistication. Because the techniques
used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, or sabotage systems change frequently and may not immediately produce signs of
intrusion, we may be unable to anticipate these incidents or techniques, timely discover them, or implement adequate preventative measures. Our
information technology and other security protocols may not provide sufficient protection, and as a result a security breach could compromise our
networks and significant information about us, our employees, healthcare professionals, patients or clients may be accessed, disclosed, lost or stolen.
In a situation such as ransomware attack, our access to critical business information and ability to conduct business may be interrupted or impaired.
Further, unauthorized use or misuse of AI by the Company’ s employees, vendors or others may result in disclosure of confidential
Company and customer data. The Company’ s use of AI may also lead to novel and urgent cybersecurity risks, including access to or the
misuse of personal data. Any such access, disclosure or other loss of information could (1) result in legal claims or proceedings, liability under laws
that protect the privacy of personal information and regulatory penalties, (2) disrupt our operations and the services we provide to our clients and (3)
damage our reputation, any of which could adversely affect our profitability, revenue and competitive position . Use of AI may result in
operational challenges or issues, liability, and reputational concerns. Our business uses and intends to further rely on Al technology, which
introduces certain risks including dependency on accurate Al performance, potential data privacy and security breaches, challenges in
regulatory compliance, ethical considerations, potential workforce disruption, the risk of intellectual property infringement, and emerging
technology risks. While we have established policies governing the use of AI technology, we cannot ensure that our employees, contractors
or other agents will adhere to those policies. Failure to address these risks adequately may negatively impact our operations, reputation and
financial performance. Additionally, other unforeseen risks stemming from our use and development of Al tools and technology may arise
in the future that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations . The inability to quickly and properly
credential and match quality healthcare professionals with suitable placements may negatively affect demand for our services. Our success depends
on the quality of our healthcare professionals and our ability to quickly and efficiently assist in obtaining licenses and privileges for our healthcare
professionals. The speed with which our healthcare professionals can obtain the appropriate licenses, and we can credential them depends in part, on
state licensing laws. Roughly 35 states are part of the Enhanced Nurse Compact and over 20 states are part of the Physical Therapy Licensure
Compact and Interstate Medical Compact Acts. A decline or change in interstate compact laws can impact our business. Our ability to ensure the
quality of our healthcare plofessmnals also relles heavﬂy on the eftectlveness of our data and communication systems as well as properly trained and
competent team members tha 8 aeements-and third- party vendors that previde-aneiary
serviees-credential and match healthcare professmnals in sultable placements We also rely on the accuracy and credibility of information
provided by licensing bodies and educational institutions. An inability to properly credential, match, and monitor healthcare professionals for
acceptable credentials, experience and performance may cause clients to lose confidence in our services that may damage our brand and reputation
and result in clients opting to utilize competitors’ services or rely on their own internal resources. The costs and speed with which we provide these
credentialing services , which in part is dependent on the availability of our third- party vendors, impact the revenue and profitability of our
business. Our operations may deteriorate if we are unable to continue to attract, develop and retain our sales and operations team members. Our
success depends heavily upon the recruitment, performance and retention of diverse sales and operations team members who share our values,
passion and commitment to customer focus. The number of individuals who meet our qualifications for these positions is limited, and we may
experience difficulty in attracting qualified candidates, especially as we diversify our offerings and our business becomes more complex. In addition,
we commit substantial resources to the training, development and support of our team members. Competition for qualified sales and operational
team members in the line of business in which we operate is strong, and we may not be able to retain a sufficient number of team members after we
have expended the time and expense to recruit and train them. In addition, these team members may leave to establish competing businesses. We are
increasingly dependent on third parties for the execution of certain critical functions. We have outsourced and offshored certain critical applications
or business processes to external providers, including cloud- based, credentialing and data processing services. We exercise care in the selection and
oversight of these providers. However, the failure or inability to perform eradheretetaw;regulation-and-eurpolieteson the part of one or more of
these critical partners has caused and suppliers-or-perform-the-serviees-tna-timely-mannercould in the future cause sigatffeant-disruptions and
increased costs . We are also dependent on security measures that some of our third- party vendors and customers are taking to protect their
own systems and infrastructures. If our third- party vendors do not maintain adequate security measures, do not require their sub-
contractors to maintain adequate security measures, do not perform as anticipated and in accordance with contractual requirements, ot
or business-become targets of cyber- attacks, we may experience operational difficulties and increased costs, as well as reputational damage ,
which could materially and adversely affect our business . The loss of key officers and management personnel could adversely affect our business
and operating results. We believe that the success of our business strategy and our ability to maintain our recent levels of profitability depends on the
continued employment of our senior executive team. All of our executive officers are employees at will with standard severance agreements. If
members of our executive team become unable or unwilling to continue in their present positions, our business and financial results could be
adversely affected. Our inability to maintain our positive brand awareness and identity may adversely affect our results of operations. We have
invested substantial amounts in acquiring, developing and maintaining our brands, and our success depends on our ability to maintain positive brand
awareness across business lines and effectively build up or consolidate our brand awareness and image for new services. Many of our brands have
strong recognition within their applicable markets. We cannot assure that additional expenditures, our continuing commitment to marketing and
improving our brands and executing on our brand and marketing strategies, including changes in brand names, consolidation of brands, or other
rebranding efforts to improve the association of our brands with one another, will have the desired effect on our brands’ value and may adversely
affect our results of operations and also result in an impairment of the fair market value of intangible assets associated with acquired tradenames. In
addition, our brands may suffer reputational damage that could negatively affect our short- and long- term financial results. The poor performance,
reputation or negative conduct of competitors may have a spillover effect adversely affecting the industry and our brand. Our inability to
consummate and effectively incorporate acquisitions into our business operations may adversely affect our long- term growth and our results of
operations. We invest time and resources in carefully assessing opportunities for acquisitions, and acquisitions are a key component of our growth
strategy. We have made acquisitions in the past several years to broaden the scope and depth of our talent solutions. If we are unable to consummate
additional acquisitions, we may not achieve our long- term growth goals. Despite diligence and integration planning, acquisitions still present certain
risks, including the time and economic costs of integrating an acquisition’ s technology, control and financial systems, unforeseen liabilities, and the
difficulties in bringing together different work cultures and personnel. Difficulties in integrating our acquisitions, including attracting and retaining
talent to grow and manage these acquired businesses, may adversely affect our results of operations. Businesses we acquire may have liabilities or
adverse operating issues which could harm our operating results. Businesses we acquire may have liabilities or adverse operating issues, or both, that




we either fail to discover through due diligence or underestimate prior to the consummation of the acquisition. These liabilities and / or issues may
include the acquired business’ failure to comply with, or other violations of, applicable laws, rules, or regulations or contractual or other obligations
or liabilities. As the successor owner, we may be financially responsible for, and may suffer harm to our reputation or otherwise be adversely
affected by, such liabilities and / or issues. These and any other costs, liabilities, issues, and / or disruptions associated with any past or future
acquisitions could harm our reputation and operating results. In addition, future acquisitions are accompanied by the risk that the obligations and
liabilities of an acquired company may not be adequately reflected in the historical financial statements of that company and the risk that those
historical financial statements may be based on assumptions that are incorrect or inconsistent with our assumptions or approach to accounting
policies. Any of these material obligations, liabilities or incorrect or inconsistent assumptions could adversely impact our results of operations and
financial condition. As we develop new services and clients, enter new lines of business, and focus more of our business on providing a full range of
talent solutions, the demands on our business and our operating risks may increase. As part of our strategy, we plan to extend our services to new
healthcare settings, clients, and new lines of business. As we focus on developing new services, capabilities, clients, practice areas and lines of
business, and engage in business in new geographic locations, our operations may be exposed to additional as well as enhanced risks. In particular,
our growth efforts place substantial additional demands on our management and other team members, as well as on our information, financial,
administrative, compliance and operational systems. We may not be able to manage these demands successfully. Growth may require increased
recruiting efforts, increased regulatory and compliance efforts, increased business development, selling, marketing and other actions that are
expensive and entail increased risk. We may need to invest more in our people and systems, controls, compliance efforts, policies and procedures
than we anticipate. As our business continues to evolve and we provide a wider range of services, we will become increasingly dependent upon our
employees, particularly those operating in business environments less familiar to us. Failure to identify, hire, train and retain talented employees who
share our values could have a negative effect on our reputation and our business. The demands that our current and future growth place on our people
and systems, controls, compliance efforts, policies and procedures may exceed the benefits of such growth, and our operating results may suffer, at
least in the short- term, and perhaps in the long- term. The use of social media platforms presents risks and challenges that can cause damage to our
brand and reputation. The extensive use of social media platforms, including blogs, social media websites and other forms of internet-
communication in our industry allows access to a broad audience of interested parties. The inappropriate and / or unauthorized use of certain media
vehicles by our clients, vendors, employees and contractors could increase costs, cause damage to our brand, or result in information leakage that
could lead to legal implications, including improper collection and / or dissemination of personally identifiable information of candidates and clients.
In addition, negative or inaccurate posts or comments about us on any social networking website could damage our reputation, brand image and
goodwill. We maintain a substantial amount of goodwill and intangible assets on our balance sheet that may decrease our earnings or increase our
losses if we recognize an impairment to goodwill or intangible assets. We maintain goodwill on our balance sheet, which represents the excess of the
total purchase price of our acquisitions over the fair value of the net assets and intangible assets we acquired. We evaluate goodwill and intangible
assets for impairment annually or when evidence of potential impairment exists, respectively. If we identify an impairment, we record a non- cash
charge to earnings. An-During the year ended December 31, 2024, we recognized goodwill impairment losses totaling $ 222. 5 million. See
additional information in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note
(4), Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets. ” We may have additional impairment losses in connection with our periodic evaluation of
our goodwill and intangible assets. In the event of further impairment, a non- cash impairment charge to-goodwill-orintangible-assets-would
could deerease-otrearnings-have a material adverse effect on er-our results of operations and balance sheet mefease—eu-r—}esses—as—t-he-ease—may
be-. Risk Factors Related to Our Indebtedness and Other Liabilities Our indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to
fund our operations, limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry, and expose us to interest rate risk to the extent of any
variable rate debt. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , our total indebtedness, net of unamortized fees and premium, equaled $ 1, 364-055 . 79 million.
Our amount of indebtedness could increase our vulnerability to adverse economic, industry or competitive developments, including: ¢ requiring a
portion of our cash flows from operations to be dedicated to the payment of our indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability to use our cash flows to
fund operations, capital expenditures and future business opportunities, * making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our
indebtedness, © restricting us from making strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non- strategic divestitures, * limiting our ability to obtain
additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product and service development, debt service requirements, acquisitions, and general
corporate or other purposes, and ¢ limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or market conditions and placing us
at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors who are less leveraged and who, therefore, may be able to take advantage of
opportunities that our indebtedness may prevent us from pursuing. Our ability to service our indebtedness will depend on our ability to generate cash
in the future. We cannot provide assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be
available in an amount sufficient to enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs. Additionally, if we are not in compliance
with the covenants and obligations under our debt instruments, we would be in default, and the lenders could call the debt, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business. And in certain instances, our debt instruments may limit our ability to redeem or prepay some or all of the
outstanding principal amount prior to maturity, or in other instances, require the payment of premium in excess of the principal amount. The terms of
our debt instruments impose restrictions on us that may affect our ability to successfully operate our business. Our debt instruments contain various
covenants that could adversely affect our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs and to engage in other business activities that may
be in our best interest. These covenants limit our ability to, among other things: * incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred
equity,  pay dividends on, redeem, repurchase, or make distributions in respect of our capital stock, prepay, redeem, or repurchase certain debt or
make other restricted payments, » make certain investments, * create, or permit to exist, certain liens, * sell assets, * enter into sale / leaseback
transactions, * enter into agreements restricting restricted subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends or make other payments, * consolidate, merge, sell, or
otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets, ¢ enter into certain transactions with affiliates, and ¢ designate restricted subsidiaries as
unrestricted subsidiaries. Our ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by events beyond our control, such as prevailing economic
conditions and changes in regulations, and if such events occur, we cannot be sure that we will be able to comply. A breach of these covenants could
result in a default under our debt instruments and, in the case of our senior credit facility under our credit agreement, permit the lenders thereunder to
cease making loans to us. If there were an event of default under any of our debt instruments, holders of such defaulted debt could cause all amounts
borrowed under the applicable instrument to be due and payable immediately. Our assets or cash flow may not be sufficient to repay borrowings
under our outstanding debt instruments in the event of a default thereunder. In addition, the restrictive covenants in our credit agreement require us to
maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy other financial condition tests. Although we were in compliance with the financial ratios and financial
condition tests set forth in our credit agreement on December 31, 2623-2024 , we cannot provide assurance that we will continue to be. Our ability to
meet those financial ratios and tests will depend on our ongoing financial and operating performance, which, in turn, will be subject to economic
conditions and to financial, market, and competitive factors, many of which are beyond our control. A breach of any of these covenants could result
in a default under our credit agreement (and our other debt instruments to the extent the default triggers a cross default provision) and, in the case of
the revolver under our credit agreement, permit the lenders thereunder to cease making loans to us. Upon the occurrence of an event of default under
the credit agreement, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder to be immediately due and payable and terminate all
commitments to extend further credit. Such action by the lenders could cause cross- defaults under our other debt instruments. Variable rate
indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase significantly. Borrowings under our credit



agreement are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. As interest rates increase, our debt service obligations on certain of our
variable rate indebtedness will increase even though the amount borrowed remains the same. We have substantial insurance- related accruals and
legal accruals on our balance sheet, and any significant adverse adjustments may decrease our earnings or increase our losses and negatively impact
our cash flows. We maintain accruals related to legal matters, our captive insurance company and self- insured retentions for various lines of
insurance coverage, including professional liability, employment practices, health insurance and workers’ compensation on our balance sheet. We
determine the adequacy of our accruals by evaluating legal matters, our historical experience and trends, related to both insurance claims and
payments, information provided to us by our insurance brokers, attorneys, third- party administrators and actuarial firms as well as industry
experience and trends. If such information collectively indicates that our accruals are understated, we provide for additional accruals; a significant
increase to these accruals would decrease our earnings. Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity AMN Healthcare’ s
board of directors (the “ Board ) is responsible for overseeing our enterprise- wide risk management program. The audit committee of the Board
(the *“ Audit Committee ) has primary oversight responsibility for information seesrity-and cybersecurity, including internal controls designed to
mitigate risks related to these topics. This includes regular, and at least quarterly, review by the Audit Committee of reports on topics including,
among others, significant cybersecurity risks , results from third- party assessments, training and vulnerability testing, and our incident response
plan. Material breaches, if any, and any disclosure obligations arising from any such breach are also discussed during-separate-separately with the
Audit Committee meetings-as part of the Beards— Board ’ s risk oversight generally. AMN’ s information and seeurity-cybersecurity program
reports up to our Chief Information & Digital Officer (*“ CIO ) and is managed by our Senter-Bireetor-Vice President , Information & Cyber
Security, whose team is responsible for leading our enterprise- wide cybersecurity strategy. Through ongoing communications with the team, the
CIO and the SenterDireetor-Vice President , [nformation & Cyber Security, are informed about and monitor the prevention, detection, mitigation
and remediation of cybersecurity incidents and progress on cybersecurity infrastructure initiatives. In the event of a material cybersecurity incident,
the CIO , in coordination with AMN’ s Chief Legal Officer, will escalate to the Audit Committee and the Board is made aware as appropriate and
in accordance with AMN s incident response plan. Our CIO and Senter-Bireetor-Vice President , Information & Cyber Sccurity have proven
experience as technology leaders establishing and overseeing enterprise information security programs in the healthcare industry. Our CIO has over
25 years of experience serving as Chief Information Officer, Senior Vice President of IT, and Director of IT at various healthcare services and
technology companies. AMN’ s Sentor-Bireetor-Vice President , Information & Cyber Security has over 20 years of experience in various roles in
information technology and information security. He holds a M. Sc. in Computer Information Systems and holds several relevant certifications,
including Certified Information Security Manager and Zero Trust Certified Architect. AMN’ s Privacy function, which reports up through our Chief
Legal Officer, works collaboratively with the Information Security function ane-to create and review policies, standards and processes. In addition to
updating the Audit Committee, the CIO and Senter-Direetor-Vice President , Information & Security, and Privacy team provide regular updates to
the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, as well as our Chief Executive Officer and other members of our senior management as
appropriate. AMN’ s information and seesrity-cybersecurity program has adopted policies, standards, processes, and practices that follow
recognized frameworks established by the National Institute of Standards and Technology (“ NIST ), the International Organization for
Standardization, and other relevant standards. AMN Healthcare has also implemented certain controls and procedures that allow its management to
assess, identify, and manage material risks from cybersecurity threats. Our processes are integrated into the overall enterprise risk management
program, which includes financial risk, compliance risk and other strategic and operational risks that affect the Company. These processes
complement our enterprise- wide risk assessment architecture, as implemented by the Company’ s management and as overseen by the Board
through its Audit Committee. To identify and assess material risks from cybersecurity threats, we engage in regular network and endpoint
monitoring, vulnerability assessments, penetration testing, and perioedic tabletop exercises. We have developed an incident response plan to manage
identified vulnerabilities and further improve our cybersecurity preparedness and response infrastructure. The incident response plan sets forth the
actions to be taken in responding to and recovering from cybersecurity incidents, which include triage, assessing the severity of incidents, escalation
protocols, containment of incidents, investigation of incidents, and remediation. In addition to our in- house capabilities, we engage with key security
and technology vendors, industry participants and intelligence communities to assess our program and test our technical capabilities and enhance the
effectiveness of our information and seeurity-cybersecurity policies and procedures. We use a combination of tools and technologies to protect
AMN Healthcare * s assets and the-persenal-information we-. We maintain and operate a proactive threat intelligence program to identify and assess
risk. We have alse-implemented processes to identify, monitor and address material risks from cybersecurity threats associated with our use of third-
party vendors, including those in our supply chain or who have access to our systems, data or facilities that house such systems or data. Our team
members receive annual training to understand the behaviors necessary to protect company and personal information and receive annual training on
privacy laws and requirements. We also offer ongoing practice and education for team members to recognize and report suspicious activity,
including phishing campaigns. Item 2. Properties We lease all of our properties, which consist of office- type facilities. We believe that our leased
space is adequate for our current needs and that we can obtain adequate space to meet our foreseeable business needs. We have pledged substantially
all of our leasehold interests to our lenders under our credit agreement to secure our obligations thereunder. We set forth below our principal leased
office spaces as of December 31, 2623-2024 together with our business segments that utilize them: LocationSquare FeetDallas, Texas (all segments)
92, 420 San Diego, California (all segments) 50, 5+519 -662-See additional information in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (5), Leases. ” Item 3. Legal Proceedings Information with respect to this item may be found
in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (12), Commitments and
Contingencies, ” which is incorporated herein by reference. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not applicable. PART II Item 5. Market For Registrant
s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Our common stock trades on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “ AMN. ” As of February 28-18 , 2624-2025 , there were 28-17 stockholders of record of our common stock, one of
which was Cede & Co., a nominee for The Depository Trust Company. All of our common stock held by brokerage firms, banks and other financial
institutions as nominees for beneficial owners are considered to be held of record by Cede & Co., which is considered to be one stockholder of
record. A substantially greater number of holders of our common stock are “ street name ” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held of record by
banks, brokers and other financial institutions. Because such shares are held on behalf of stockholders, and not by the stockholders directly, and
because a stockholder can have multiple positions with different brokerage firms, banks and other financial institutions, we are unable to determine
the total number of stockholders we have without undue burden and expense. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we did not sell
any equity securities that were not registered under the Securities Act. From time to time, we may repurchase our common stock in the open market
pursuant to programs approved by our board of directors (the ““ Board ”’). We may repurchase our common stock for a variety of reasons, such as
acquiring shares to offset dilution related to equity- based incentives and optimizing our capital structure. On November 1, 2016, the Board
authorized us to repurchase up to $ 150. 0 million of our outstanding common stock in the open market. On November 10, 2021, February 17, 2022
&nd— June 15,2022 , and F ebruary 16 2023 , we announced increases to the repurchase program totaling $ 766-1, 200 . 0 m11110n These

Acet y mcreases brought the total authorization of the repurchase program to $ 566-1,

A m ; -, of which § 226. 7 million remained en-the-repurehase-program-as of
December 31, 20623-2024 . Under the repurchase program armounced on November 1, 2016 and the aforementioned increases (collectively, the
Company Repurchase Program ), share repurchases may be made from time to time, depending on prevailing market conditions and other
considerations. The Company Repurchase Program has no expiration date and may be discontinued or suspended at any time. Additionally, we or
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our affiliates may, at any time and from time to time, seek to retire or purchase our outstanding debt through cash purchases and / or exchanges for
equity or debt, in open- market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will be upon such
terms and at such prices as we may determine, and will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions
and other factors. Thu amounts inv 01\ ed may be malurlal Durlng 9ﬂ—May—8%92—3—2024 we did not entered-into-anaeeeleratedshare-repurchase
R)-agreemen W we-prepatd-$200—6-mithen-and ved-an-any itial-delivery-of-—8-millienshares of our
.. million excludlng the effect of excise taxes As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we have repurchased 12. 6
million shares 01 our common stock at an average price of $ 89. 04 per share excluding broker’ s fees under the (,ompany Repurchase Program,
resulting in an aggregate purchase price of $ 1, 123. 3 million , excluding the effect of excise taxes, since 2016. See “ Item 8. Financial Statements
and Suppl(,multdlv Data — Notes to (‘onsolidatcd l-‘inzmcial gtutcmcnt% Note (10) (b), Capital Stock — Treasury Stock. ” FhefoHowing-table
—All shdu. upurahdscs to date were made under the

common slock Wthh was 80 % ofthe

W vely We have not pald any dl\ idends on our common slock in the past and Lurlenlly do
not expect to pay cash dividends or make any other d1stnbuuons on common stock in the future. We expect to retain our future earnings, if any, for
use in the operation and expansion of our business, to pay down debt and potentially for share repurchases. Any future determination to pay
dividends on common stock will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital
requirements and such other factors as the Board deems relevant. In addition, our ability to declare and pay dividends on our common stock is subject
to covenants restricting such actions in the instruments governing our debt. See *“ Item 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources ” and “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (8), Notes Payable and Credit Agreement. ” The information required by Item 201 (d) of Regulation S- K
is incorporated by reference to the table set forth in Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Performance Graph This performance graph shall
not be deemed * filed ” with the SEC or subject to Section 18 of the Exchange Act, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any of our
filings under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act. The graph below compares the total return on our common stock with the total return of (i) the
Russell 2000 Index, and (ii) the S & P Healthcare Services Select Industry Index (* SPSIHP ), assuming an investment of § 100 on December 31,
2648-2019 in our common stock and the stocks comprising the Russell 2000 Index and the SPSIHP, respectively. 12 #34+-+48+2-/31/1912/31/
2012/31/2112/31/2212/31 /2312 /31 / 23AMN-24AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. 100. 00 109. 97-53 196. 32 165. 01 120. 46-2+5-17 38 . 39
901+8+-47432—36-Russell 2000100. 00 425-119 . 96 52+56-58172-96-137. 56-+66-74 109 . 85-59 128. 14 142. 93 SPSIHP100. 00 +9-133 . 81
147 +845948175-42140-96-1448- 19 118. 22 124. 34 126. 92 Item 6. [ Reserved | Item 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the
notes thereto and other financial information included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Certain statements in lhls Management’ s
Discussion and Analysis (“ MD & A ”) of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ™ are “ forward- looking statements. ” See “ Special Note
Regarding Forward- Looking Statements ” under Item 1, “ Business. ” We intend this MD & A section to provide you with a narrative from the
perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect our future results.
The following sections comprise this MD & A: » Overview of Our Business ¢ Operating Metrics * Recent Trends * Results of Operations ¢ Liquidity
and Capital Resources * Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates * Recent Accounting Pronouncements We provide technology- enabled
healthcare workforce solutions and staffing services to healthcare faethities-organizations across the nation. As-The Company provides access to a
teeh—eentrie-comprehensive network of healthcare professionals through its recruitment strategies and breadth of career opportunities. We
help providers optimize their workforce to reduce complexity and increase efficiency. Our total talent solutions partrer;-eur-include vendor
neutral and managed services programs (et MSP =), clinical and interim healthcare leaders, temporary staffing, permanent placement,
executive search, vendor management systems (—eﬁ“ VMS 3-” wetkforee-eonsultingserviees-), recruitment process outsourcing ., predictive
modeling, staffsehedulinglanguage services , revenue cycle solutions, langhage-interpretatiorrand other scrvices . Clients include acute- care
hospitals, community health centers and clinics, physician practice groups, retail and urgent care centers, home health facilities, schools and
many the-other healthcare settings. Through our nurse and allied solutions segment, we provide hospitals, other healthcare facilities, and
schools with a comprehensive set of staffing solutions, including direct, vendor neutral, and managed services solutions in which we manage
and staff all the temporary and permanent nursing and allied staffing needs, as well as the revenue cycle management needs, of a client. A
majority of our plaeement-placements ofin this segment are under our managed services solution. Through our physician and leadership
solutions segment, we place physicians of all specialties , nurses-as well as dentists and advanced practice providers , allied-healtheare
professionals-with clients on a temporary basis, generally as independent contractors. We also recruit physicians and healthcare leaders for
inte-temperary-and-permanent placement and place interim leaders and executives across all healthcare settings. The interim healthcare
leaders and executives we place are typically placed on contracts with assignment lengths ranging from a few days to one year. Through our
technology and workforce solutions segment, we provide hospitals and other healthcare facilities with a range of workforce solutions,
including: (1) language services, (2) software- as- a- service (“ SaaS ”)- based VMS technologies through which our clients can self- manage
the procurement of contingent clinical labor and their internal float pool, (3) workforce optimization services that include consulting, data
analytics, predictive modeling, and SaaS- based scheduling technology, and (4) recruitment process outsourcing services in which we
recruit, hlre and / or onboard permanent cllnlcal and noncllnlcal posmons eﬁ&b-}e-on behalf of our clients to-sueeesstullyreduee-staffing

s a a y v . For the year ended December 31,
292—3—2024 we recorded revenue ol $2,983. 8 mllllon, as compared to $ 3, 789 m11110n —as—eempafed—te%é%%—mﬂ-heﬂ-ior 2022-2023 . WL
recorded net income (loss) of $ (147. 0) million for 2024, as compared to $ 210. 7 million for 2023 5
Nurse and allied solutions segment revenue comprised 61 % and 69 Y%and-76-" of total COh\Ollda1ed revenue for the years ended December 1]
2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Physician and leadership solutions segment revenue comprised 24 % and 18 Y-and+43-% of total
consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. Technology and workforce solutions segment
revenue comprised 15 % and 13 Y%andH-% of total consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
respectively. For a description of the services we provide under each of our business segments, please see, “ Item 1. Business — Our Services. ” We




believe we are recognized as the-a market- leading innovator in providing healthcare talent solutions in the United States. We seek to advance our
market—eading-position through a number of strategies that focus on market penetration, expansion of our talent solutions, increasing operational
efficiency and scalability and increasing our supply of qualified healthcare professionals. Our market growth strategy continues to focus on
broadening and investing, both organically and through strategic acquisitions, in service and technology offerings beyond our traditional temporary
staffing and permanent placement services, to include more strategic and recurring revenue sources from innovative talent solutions offerings such as
MSP, VMS, workforce optimization service, and other technology- enabled services. We also seek strategic opportunities to expand into
complementqu service offerings to our staffing businesses Ih”lt le\ er: ag:e our core cap"lblhtles of recruiting and c1edent1ahmT healthcare plofesslom]s

part-ot-ourtong STOW ategy-to-add-vatuetor-ou Thealtheare-pro S -and-stoekheldersweaequired

Strdt(.élb initiatives focus on investing in dlomzmg and further dcvcl()pmﬂ our processes and systcms to achlc\ e markct leading efficiency and
scalability, which we believe will provide operating leverage as our revenue grows. From a healthcare professional supply perspective, we continue
to invest in new candidate recruitment and engagement initiatives and technologies to retain and grow our network of qualified healthcare
professionals. Over the last several years, we have worked to execute on our management strategies and intend to continue to do so in the future. As
Over-the-past-part five-years-of our long- term growth strategy to add value for our clients, healthcare professionals, and stockholders ., we
acquired MSI Systems Corp. have-grownourbusiness-both-organteally-and as-aresult-ofanumberof DrWanted. com LLC (together “ MSDR *)
on November 30, 2023 and Connetics on May 13, 2022. See additional information in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (2), aequisttions-Acquisitions . ” We typically experience modest seasonal
fluctuations during our fiscal year and they tend to vary among our business segments. These fluctuations can vary slightly in intensity from year to
year. Over the past five years, these quarterly fluctuations have been muted in our consolidated results. In addition to our consolidated and segment
financial results, we monitor the following key metrics to help us evaluate our results of operations and financial condition and make strategic
decisions. We believe this information is useful in understanding our operational performance and trends affecting our businesses. * Average
travelers on assignment represents the average number of nurse and allied healthcare professionals on assignment during the period, which is used
by management as a measure of volume in our nurse and allied solutions segment; * Bill rates represent the hourly straight- time rates that we bill to
clients, which are an indicator of labor market trends and costs within our nurse and allied solutions segment; ¢ Billable hours represent the number
of hours worked by our healthcare professionals that we are able to bill on client engagements, which are used by management as a measure of
volume in our nurse and allied solutions segment; ¢ Days filled is calculated by dividing total locum tenens hours filled during the period by eight
hours, which is used by management as a measure of volume in our locum tenens business within our physician and leadership solutions segment;
and- Revenue per day filled is calculated by dividing revenue of our locum tenens business by days filled for the period, which is an indicator of
labor market trends and costs in our locum tenens business within our physician and leadership solutions segment —; and ¢ Minutes represent the
time- based utilization of interpretation services that we are able to bill our clients, which are used by management as a measure of volume in our

lan"u”t;;e services busmess w 1lhm our technology and wmkforce solullons segment Recent Trends Slnce-Beﬂaaﬂd-feﬁeur—tem-peraﬁhaﬂd-peﬂﬁaﬂent
affine etV n-part-by-U—S—eeonomie-and the C ()VID 19 pandennc

subsided a

%92—2— hedlth(,dle or LdmZdIl(ms hdve aggressnvely hlred per mcment stdﬁ aggfesswel-y—eﬂab-l-mg-and focused on cost contalnment and alternatlve
staffing models that enabled them to reduce whathad-beenhistorteaty-high-utilization of contingent labor. As a result, overall #2623;-demand

for our tfa*el—nm se bus-rness—and alhed solutlons segment dcclmcd smmhcdntly weﬁ-he—eoufse—ef—t-he—ﬁfst—quaﬂemnd into-the—earlyseeond

....... v emaied-remains below pre- pandemic levels.

Wlthlll the segment travel nurse demand has experlenced the most s1gn1ﬁcant dechne, but has seen an increase in demand as measured by
open orders from the second quarter through the fourth quarter. Demand #-for our allied staffing business has remalned steady and

continues to be above ple p"mdemlc levels with hlgh demand in —ﬂ:ﬂd-eeftatﬂ-speera-l-t-tes—sueh—as—therapy and imaging

solutlom se(*ment during the ;- a-d ase+ro e 0 to dire-to demand
quarter were sta-fﬂng—ve-l-ume—fel-aﬁveb'—ﬂdt to the pnor quartel after sequentlal declmes throughout 2023 and 2024 Vlsa retrogressmn has
negatively impacted Overa v v §
staffing-volumes, which we expect to continue into next year. Addltlonally, we supported a significant labor dlsruptlon event in the fourth
quarter, which favorably impacted the segment’ s revenue . Bill rates deereased-shightly-in the fourth quarter -at-were flat to the prior quarter
after a s-}owefmodest sequentlal dechne, whlch we beheve 1nd1cates stablhzatlon of market rate-rates thanthefirst three-quarters-of the-years

d d-so . In our physician and leadership solutions segment,
demand for our locum tenens staffing busme<s in the fourth quarter decllned from the prior is-wel-above-pre—pandemietevels—Wehaveseen
several-years— year ef growth-in-though it was hlgher compared with the prlor quarter. eeft-rﬁed-Certlﬁed remstered nurse anesthetists (CRNAs)
~continue to be the largest specialty tha d vels-for our locum tenens
staffing business. dfeve—a—éoub-fe—dfg-rt—mefease—te—feveﬂue—Revenue per day fllled mcreased in %92—3—the fourth quarter as compared to both the
prior year and prior quarter . We-experieneed-a-seasonat-dip-irdemand-Demand for teeunttenens-statfing-our interim leadership and search

businesses in the fourth quarter was below prior year, but demand in our interim leadership business was up sequentially expeet-it-to-eontinte
to-be-abeve-pre—pandemietevels- Demand for these businesses has been impacted by deeliningin-ourinterintleadership-and-exeeutiveseareh
businesses—sinee-theseeond-half-of 2022-as-seme-healthcare organizations deferring streamlined-teadershipreles;deferred-hiring decisions ;-or
increasing insourcing inereased-permanentstatfhiring- In our technology and workforce solutions segment, our language services business
continued to experience an tnereased-- increase utitization-in minutes from our existing clients and growth from new clients shiftto-more-virtuat
interpretation-. Billrates-and-velumes-Volumes in our VMS busmess follovs ed similar trends —a-l-t-heugh—to—a—gre&tereﬁeﬂt,—as our travel nurse
business as compared to the prior year and prior quarter attied tghs- VMS Brl-l—blll rates eontinted
to-deerease-in the fourth quarter were down sequentially and year over year bt vels- Results of
Operations The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain statements of operations data as a pcrccntdgc of revenue. Our results of
operations include three reportable segments: (1) nurse and allied solutions, (2) physician and leadership solutions, and (3) technology and
workforce solutions. The acquisitions during the three years ended December 31, 2023-2024 impact the comparability of the results between the
years presented. See additional information in *“ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
— Note (2), Acquisitions. ” Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our results of operations to be expected in the future. Years Ended
December 31, 26232622202+Conseolidated---- 202420232022Consolidated Statements of Operations: Revenuel00. 0 % 100. 0 % 100. 0 % Cost of
revenuebFrevenue69 . 2 67 . 0 67. 3 67+Gross profit33-profit30 . 8 33 . 0 32. 7 329-Selling, general and administrative20-administrative21 . 2
20 .0 17. 9 +83-Depreciation and amertizattend-amortization5 .54 . | 2. 5 2-Goodwill impairment losses7 . 6-5 — — Income (loss) from

i - operations (3. 4) 8 . 9 12. 3 42-6-Interest expense, net, and ethert-other2 .4 1 . 4 0. 76-9-Income (loss) before income taxes?— taxes
(5.8) 7.5 11. 6 H—-Income tax expense (benefit) (0. 9) 1. 9 3. | 2Net income (loss) (4 . 9 NetineomeS-) % 5. 6 % 8. 5 %-82% Comparison of




Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2623-2024 to the Year Ended December 31, 2622-2023 Revenue. Revenue decreased 2821 % to $ 2, 983.
8 million for 2024 from $ 3. 789. 3 million for 2023 frem$-5;-2432-millienfor 2022~ attributable to a decline in erganic revenue across our
segments with the greatest decline in our nurse and allied solutions segment. Nurse and allied solutions segment revenue decreased 34-31 % to $ 1,
815. 7 million for 2024 from $ 2, 624. 5 million for 2023 frem-$3-9825-mitkienfor2022- The $ 808 ;357 9-8 million decrease was primarily
attributable to a +7-$ 592. 1 million decline driven by a 24 % decrease in the average number of travelers on assignment, a $ 257. 0 million decline
driven by an approximately +5-10 % decrease in the average bill rate, and a 3-$ 41. 1 million decline driven by a 2 % decrease in average billable
hours during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 s-and-an-approximately-. The overall decrease was partially offset by a $ 99-50 . 0 million
éeefease-mcrease in labor disruption revenue. Physician and leadership solutions segment revenue deereased-increased 4-9 % to $ 728. 6 million
for 2024 from $ 669. 7 million for 2023 #em— The S 69—7—58 9 million fef%@%%—”Fhe%%S—Z—mﬂheﬁ-deefease—mcrease was attributable to fewer
higher revenue in our locum tenens interimtesa e ReRtp exee eareh ses—- business , which was

partially offset by htghe%lower revenue in our {eettm—teﬂens—mterlm leadershlp, phys1c1an permanent placement and executive search business
busmesses Revenue in our locum tenens business grew 9-§ 101. 6 million (or 22 % ) during 2623-2024 primarily due to the favorable impact of $
23. 9 million as a +8-result of a 6 % increase in the revenue per day filled on an organic basis and additional revenue of $ 43-121 . 2 million in
connection with the MSDR acquisition, partially offset by a 4-$ 43. 5 million decline driven by a 10 % decrease in the number of days filled on an
organic basis. Outr-As a result of a decline in demand, revenue in our interim leadership business experienced anapproximately26-a decline of $
21. 3 million (or 16 % deehne-) , while our physician permanent placement and executive search businesses declined 26-$ 21. 4 million (or 31 %)
during 2623-2024 . Technology and workforce solutions segment revenue decreased 42-11 % to $ 439. S million for 2024 from $ 495. 0 million for
2023 frem$-562-8-mithenfor2022- The § 6755 . 8-6 million decrease was primarily attributable to a-deeline-declines within our VMS business
and outsourced solutions businesses , partially offset by growth within our language services business. Revenue for our VMS business declined 36
$ 65. 1 million (or 38 % ) for similar reasons as nurse and allied solutions segment revenue and our outsourced solutions business declined $ 25.
5 million (or 62 %) primarily due to a decline in demand , while our language services business grew 26-§ 38. 1 million (or 15 % ) primarily due
to growth of $ 43. 2 million as a 24-result of a 17 % increase in minutes during 2024. For 2024 and 2023 —Fer2023-and-2622- revenue under our
MSP arrangements comprised approximately 45 % and 54 % ard-64-%-of our consolidated revenue, 67 % and 72 %-and-8+" for nurse and allied
solutions segment revenue, 15 % and 20 %-and48-% for physician and leadership solutions segment revenue, and 2-3 % and 2 % of our technology
and workforce solutions segment revenue, respectively. Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue, which consists predominantly of compensation,
benefits, housing, travel and allowance costs for healthcare professionals and medically qualified interpreters, decreased 19 % to $ 2, 064. 4
million for 2024 from $ 2, 539. 7 million for 2023. The $ 475. 3 million decrease was attributable to a decline in our nurse and allied solutions
segment, partially offset by increases in our physician and leadership solutions and technology and workforce solutions segments. The
decrease in our nurse and allied solutions segment was primarily attributable to a $ S55. 1 million decrease in provider pay package costs,
including housing, travel and allowances, primarily due to the aforementioned decrease in the average number of travelers on assignment.
The increase in our physician and leadership solutions segment was driven by a $ 71. 8 million increase in provider pay package costs,
primarily due to the MSDR acquisition. The increase in our technology and workforce solutions segment was primarily attributable to $ 13.
1 million of higher compensation and benefits mainly from the aforementioned increase in minutes in our language services business. Cost of
revenue broken down among the reportable segments is as follows: (In Thousands) Years EndedDecember 31, 20242023Nurse and allied
solutions $ 1, 371, 660 $ 1, 932, 099 Physician and leadership solutions511, 959 440, 230 Technology and workforce solutions180, 786 167,
344 % 2,064, 405 $ 2, 539, 673 Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased 2—7—26 % to $ 919. 4 million for 2024 from $ 1, 249. 6 million for 2023 frem$t
Hé—Fmithenfor2022-, representing gross margins of 30. 8 % and 33. 0 % and-32-F%-, respectively. The inerease-decline in consolidated gross
margin for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 was primarily dm to (1) lower margins in our nurse and allied solutions and physician and
leadership solutions segments driven by higher provider pay packages, including h0us1ng, travel and allowances and (2) a lower margin in
our technology and workforce solution segment primarily due to a change in sales mix resulting from lower revenue in our nurse-and-atied

seluttenssegment-and(2)-a-higher - margin VMS business in-eurnaurse-and higher alliedselutionssegmentdriven-by-a-rcvenuc mixshiftwithinthe
segmentin our lower- margin language services business . The overall inerease-decline was partially offset by atowermargintnour-technology
aﬂd-wefkfwee—sehr&eﬂs—segment—pfﬁﬂafﬁy—dﬁe-te-d ehanwe in sales m]x resulting from lower revenue in our nurse VAMS-business-and allied

g segment. Gross margin by reportable segment for 2024 and 2023 ane
2022-was 24. 5 % and 76 4 % for nurse and %6—allled solutlons, 29 7 % and 34 . 3 % for ﬂufse—aﬁd—a%ed—sehﬁeﬁs—%—}%r&ﬂd—%é—%—fef
physician and leadership solutions, and 58. 9 % and 66. 2 %-and-76-0-"% for tulnml()g) and workforce solutions, respectively. Selling, General and
Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“ SG & A ) expenses consist predominantly of compensation and benefits costs
for corporate employees, in addition to professional service fees, legal matter accruals and other overhead costs. SG & A expenses were $
632.5 mllllon, representlng 21 2% of revenue, for 2024 as compared to $ 756. 2 million, representing 20. 0 % of revenue, for 2023 -as

6 3 . The decrease in SG & A expenses was primarily due to $ +64-60 . 5-4
ml”]Oh of 10\\ er emp]ovee compensation '1nd beneln\ (mdusl\ e of share- based compensation) and-in response to the lower revenue, a $ 22-34 .
million decrease in professional services, legal and the-other provision-expenses driven by a $ 21. 0 million increase in the legal settlement
accrual for expeeted-eredittosses-the Clarke matter recognized in the prior year and prudent expense management, an approximately $ 22. 1
million decrease in other expenses associated with our revenue decline, and a $ 2. 4 million decrease related to changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration liabilities from acquisitions recognized in the prior year. The year- over- year increase in SG & A expenses in our
physician and leadership solutions segment was driven by $ 22. 9 million of additional SG & A expenses from the MSDR acquisition,
partially offset by $ 18. 6 million of lower segment expenses amid the decline in organic revenue . SG & A expenses broken down among the
reportable segments, unallocated corporate overhead, and share- based compensation are as follows: (In Thousands) Years EndedDecember 31,
20232022Nurse-20242023Nurse and allied solutions $ 270, 467 $ 330, 252 $4745489-Physician and leadership selutionst34-solutions137 , 600
134 . 505 H48;-6+9-Technology and workforce setationsHS8--- solutions91 , 590 118 , 977 -1-32,—7—3—3—Una]localed corporate everheaed54
overhead109 , 515 154 , 484 453;-669-Share- based eempensatterr}8-compensation23 , 317 18 ., 020 36-$ 632 , 666489 § 756, 238 $936;:576
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Amortization expenxe mued\ed 3 % to$ 92 8 %—te—mllllon for 2024 from $ 89. 8 million for 2023 frem
$-83—-mithenfor2022-, primarily attributable to d S ; additional amortization
expense related to the intangible assets acquired in the MSDR aﬁd—Geﬂﬂeﬁes—aeqws-meﬁs— acqulsntlon, partlally offset by having more intangible
assets fully amortized during the year ended December 31, 2024 . Depreciation expense (exclusive of depreciation included in cost of revenue)
increased 3414 % to $ 74. 3 million for 2024 from $ 65. 2 million for 2023 frem-$49-9-mittenfer2022- primarily attributable to an increase in
purchased and developed hardware and software placed in service for our ongoing infermatien-technology investments to support our tech- centric
total talent solutions initiatives and to optimize our internal front and back- office systems. Additionally, $ 6. 7 million and $ 6. 0 millienand-$4—
million of depreciation expense for our language services business is included in cost of revenue for 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively.
Goodwill Impairment Losses. Goodwill impairment losses of $ 123. 3 million and $ 99. 2 million were recognized in the nurse and allied
solutions segment and physician and leadership solutions segment, respectively, during the year ended December 31, 2024. See additional
information in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (4),
Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets. ” Interest Expense, Net, and Other. Interest expense, net, and other, was $ 69. 9 million for 2024 as




compared to $ 54. 1 million for 2023 as-eompared-to-$-40—4-mitienfor2022- The increase was primarily due to a higher average debt outstanding

balance during 2023-2024 . Income Tax Expense. Income tax benefit was $ 25. 6 million for 2024 as compared to income tax cxpense was-of $
73. 6 million for 2023 as-eempared-te-$162Fmillienfor2022- reflecting effective income tax rates of 15 % and 26 %-and27-" for these periods,
respectively. Although Fhe-deerease+n-thc amount of annual non discrete items has remained relatively similar year over year, income (loss)
before income taxes has declined year over year mostly related to impairment losses. This resulted in an $ 18. 0 million tax expense which,
due to loss before income taxes, contrlbuted to the declme m the year over year etfecm ¢ income tax rate-rates was—prnﬁaﬂ-l-y—at-tr-rbutab}e—te-the

elation neome-before-ineome-taxes m 666—Fm ; an vely See dddltlond| mfolmdtlon in“ ltem
8. Financial Stdtements and Supplememdly Ddtd — Notes to Consollddted Financial Statements — Note (7), Income Taxes, and Note (+4 ),
Goodwill and Identifiable Assets Summary-of-Signifieant-AeeountingPotetes- ” Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2622
2023 to the Year Ended December 31, 2024-2022 We describe in detail the comparison of results for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
and-2024-in “ [tem 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Results of Operations —
Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2622-2023 to the Year Ended December 31, 26242022 ” of our 2622-2023 Annual Report
on Form 10- K. Liquidity and Capital Resources In summary, our cash flows were: (In Thousands) Years Ended December 31, 202320222024 Net
202420232022Net cash provided by operating activities $ 320, 418 $ 372, 165 $ 653, 733 $305;356-Net cash used in investing activities ( 79, 938) (
412, 493) (170, 710 HH0%462-) Net cash provided by (used in) financing aetivitiesto--- activities (259, 448) 10, 729 (591, 865) 34-Net decrease
in cash , 895-cash equivalents and restricted cash (18, 968) $ (29, 599) $ (108, 842 ) Historically, our primary liquidity requirements have been for
acquisitions, working capital requirements, and debt service under our credit facilities and senior notes. We have funded these requirements through
internally generated cash flow and funds borrowed under our credit facilities and senior notes. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , (1) $ 466-210 . 0
million was drawn with $ 269-519 . 2-6 million of available credit under the Senior Credit Facility (as defined bcl()w) (2) the aggregate principal
amount of our 2027 Notes (as defined below) outstanding was $ 500. 0 million, and (3) the aggregate principal amount of our 2029 Notes (as defined
below) outstanding was $ 350. 0 million . As of December 31, 2024, we were in compliance with the various covenants under our debt
instruments . We describe in further detail our Amended Credit Agreement (as defined below), under which our Senior Credit Facility is governed,
the 2027 Notes, and the 2029 Notes in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements —
Note (8), Notes Payable and Credit Agreement. ” As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the total of our contractual obligations under operating leases with
initial terms in excess of one year was $ $5-50 . +-2 million. We describe in further detail our operating lease arrangements in “ Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (5), Leases. ” We also have various obligations and
working capital requirements, such as certain tax and legal matters, contingent consideration and other liabilities, that are recorded on our
consolidated balance sheets. See additional information in *“ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements — Note (3), Fair Value Measurement, Note (6), Balance Sheet Details, Note (7), Income Taxes, and Note (12), Commitments
and Contingencies. ” In addition to our cash requirements, we have a share repurchase program authorized by our board of directors, which does not
require the purchase of any minimum number of shares and may be suspended or discontinued at any time. See additional information in * Item 5.
alket For Realstrﬂnt s Common Equlty Related Stockholdel Matters and Issuer Purchﬂses of Equlty Securities 4H-ﬂder—t-h&repurehase—pregfam—

G&pfta-l—Steek—"Freasuﬁ—Steele ” Wc bcllc\c that cash g 5cncratcd from opuatlons and av alldblc bonowmgs undcr our Senior Clcdlt Faullty mll be
sufficient to fund our operations and liquidity requirements, including expected capital expenditures, for the next 12 months and beyond. We intend
to finance potential future acquisitions with cash provided from operations, borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility, or other borrowings under
our Amended Credit Agreement, bank loans, debt or equity offerings, or some combination of the foregoing. The following discussion provides
further details of our liquidity and capital resources. Operating Activities Net cash provided by operating activities for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
202+-was $ 320. 4 million, $ 372. 2 million ;and $ 653. 7 mitherand-$-305—4-million, respectively. The decrease in net cash provided by operating
activities for 2024 from 2023 fremr2022-was primarily attributable to (1) a decrease in net income (loss) excludmg non- cash expenses ofb 2—32—187
.8-8 million primarily due to a decline in segment operating fesu-l-ts—lncome in each of our nurs W

se-}ut-reﬁs«cgmcms (2)a—deefease—rﬂ-&eeetmts—paya&e—aﬂd—- an acerved-expenses-be weerpe

mefeases—m—pfepaid—e*peﬂses—&nd—olher culrenl assets bem een perlods of $ 55—12 3—7 mllllon a-nd—$—l—3—6—mﬂ-l-teﬂ—respeet-wel-y—pnm"ully due to
subcontractor prepayments-and-deposits thatw v related to labor disruption services in
the current year, and (3) an increase in income taxes recelvable between perlods of $ 7 8 mllllon primarily due to a larger overpayment of
estimated taxes during the current year as compared to 2023 . The overall decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was partially
offset by (1) adeereaseinraccountsreeeivable-and—- an sﬂbeeﬂ&aeteﬁeeeﬁ’ﬁb-}es-mcrease in accrued compensatlon and beneﬁts bem een penods
of $ +92-68 . +-8 million primarily due to bonuses atarge 3 ¢
whieh-was-due-to-deereases-inrevente-and asseeiafe—veﬁdeﬁtsage-a}eﬂg—u&ﬂa—ﬁmmg—commlsswns that were pald durlng the ﬁrst quarter 01‘
eel-}eet-leﬁs-2023 (2) an mucasc in othcr llabllltlLS bctwccn periods of $ 54 H6 e G fre
v . 7 million primar 1ly due to cllent deposnts related to labor dlsruptlon servnces in
the current year, and (3) an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses between periods of $ 28. 6 million primarily due to (a) a
larger decrease in the subcontractor payable balance in the prior year as compared to the current year primarily attributable to declines in
associate vendor usage and (b) a decrease in the accrued expenses balance in the current year as a result of a decrease in operating expenses
associated with our revenue decline and timing of payments, partially offset by a everpayment-—--- payment of estimated-taxes-during2022-the
legal settlement amount for the Clarke matter in the current year . Our Days Sales Outstanding (“ DSO ) was 55 and 70 and-55-days at
December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 , respectively. Our consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2023 inelude
included only one month of MSDR” s revenue, but our consolidated balance sheet ineludes-included the full amount of MSDR” s accounts
receivable. Excluding the acquisition of MSDR, our DSO was 66 days at December 31, 2023. Investing Activities Net cash used in investing
activities for 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2624-was $ 79. 9 million, $ 412. 5 million yand $ 170. 7 mithen-and-$+07—4-million, respectively. The
year- over- year ierease-decrease from 2022-+te-2023 to 2024 in net cash used in investing activities was primarily attributable to (1) no cash paid
for acquisitions in 2024 as compared to $ 292. 2 million used-fer-aequisttions-in 2023 and (2) $ 8. 4 million of payments to fund the deferred
compensation plan in 2024 as compared to $ 6924 . 69 million in 20222023 . In addition, capital expenditures were $ 80. 9 million, $ 103. 7
million ;and $ 75. 8 mithenand-$-53—6-million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and2624-, respectively. Our capital
expenditures in recent years were primarily related to ongoing #fermatierrtechnology investments to support our tech- eentric total talent solutions
initiatives and to optimize our internal front and back- office systems. Financing Activities Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities for




2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard2024+-was $ (259. 4) million, $ 10. 7 million -and $ (591. 9) million ard-, respectively. Net cash used in financing
activities for 2024 was primarily due to (1) repayments of $ 375 34-. 0 9>-million under the Senior Credit Facility (as defined below) ,
respeetively(2) $ 4. 8 million in cash paid for shares withheld for payroll taxes resulting from the vesting of employee equity awards, and (3)
$ 3. 7 million in cash paid for excise tax on prior year share repurchases, partially offset by borrowings of $ 125. 0 million under the Senior
Credit Facility . Net cash provided by financing activities for 2023 was primarily due to borrowings of $ 815. 0 million under the Senior Credit
Facility ¢as-defined-betowy-, partially offset by (1) $ 424. 7 million paid in connection with the repurchase of our common stock, (2) repayments of §
355. 0 million under the Semor Credlt F acrhty, and (3) $ 13 1 mllhon in cash pald for shares w1thheld for payroll taxes resultln,g., from the vesting of
employee equrty awards Nete 5o

February 10 2023 we entered into the thlrd amendmem to our credit agreement (the “ Thrrd Amendment ”) The Thrrd Amendment (together with
the credit agreement, the first amendment and the second amendment, collectively, the “ Amended Credit Agreement ”) provides for, among other
things, an increase to the secured revolving credit facility (the “ Senior Credit Facility ) from $ 400. 0 million to $ 750. 0 million. The Senior Credit
Facility includes a $ 125. 0 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit and a $ 75. 0 million sublimit for swingline loans . On November 5,
2024, we entered into the fourth amendment to our credit agreement (the “ Fourth Amendment ”) which increased our consolidated net
leverage ratio covenant for the year ending December 31, 2025 . Our obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement are secured by
substantially all of our assets. The terms of the Amended Credit Agreement, including maturity dates, payment and interest terms, are described in
further detail in “ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (8), Notes Payable
and Credit Agreement. ” 4. 625 % Senior Notes Due 2027 On August 13, 2020, AMN Healthcare, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
completed the issuance of an additional $ 200. 0 million aggregate principal amount of 4. 625 % senior notes due 2027 (the “ New 2027 Notes ),
which were issued at a price of 101. 000 % of the aggregate principal amount. The New 2027 Notes were issued pursuant to the existing indenture,
dated as of October 1, 2019, under which we previously issued $ 300. 0 million aggregate principal amount of 4. 625 % senior notes due 2027 (the *
Existing 2027 Notes ” and together with the New 2027 Notes, the “ 2027 Notes ). The New 2027 Notes will be treated as a single series with the
Existing 2027 Notes and will have the same terms (other than issue price, issue date and the date from which interest accrues) as those of the
Existing 2027 Notes. The 2027 Notes will mature on October 1, 2027. Interest on the 2027 Notes is payable semi- annually in arrears on April 1 and
October 1 of each year, commencing October 1, 2020 with respect to the New 2027 Notes. The 2027 Notes are fully and unconditionally and jointly
guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by us and all of our subsidiaries that guarantee the Amended Credit Agreement. On and after October 1,
2022, we may redeem all or a portion of the 2027 Notes upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice, at the redemption prices (expressed in
percentages of principal amount on the redemption date) set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding) the redemption
date, if redeemed during the twelve month period commencing on October 1 of the years set forth below: PeriodRedemptionPrice2022 102. 313 %
2023 101. 156 % 2024 and thereafter 100. 000 % Upon the occurrence of specified change of control events as defined in the indenture governing
the 2027 Notes, we must offer to repurchase the 2027 Notes at 101 % of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
excluding) the purchase date. The indenture governing the 2027 Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to: ¢ pay
dividends or make other distributions on capital stock, make payments in respect of subordinated indebtedness or make other restricted payments, ¢
incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred stock, ¢ create certain liens, ¢ enter into agreements that restrict dividends or other
payments from our restricted subsidiaries, * consolidate, merge or transfer all or substantially all of our assets, ¢ engage in transactions with affiliates,
and * create unrestricted subsidiaries. These covenants are subject to a number of important exceptions and qualifications. The indenture governing
the 2027 Notes contains affirmative covenants and events of default that are customary for indentures governing high yield securities. The 2027
Notes and the guarantees are not subject to any registration rights agreement. 4. 000 % Senior Notes Due 2029 On October 20, 2020, AMN
Healthcare, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the issuance of $ 350. 0 million aggregate principal amount of 4. 000 %
Senior Notes due 2029 (the “ 2029 Notes ). The 2029 Notes will mature on April 15, 2029. Interest on the 2029 Notes will be payable semi-
annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year, commencing April 15, 2021. At any time and from time to time on and after April 15,
2024, we will be entitled at our option to redeem all or a portion of the 2029 Notes upon not less than 10 nor more than 60 days’ notice, at the
redemption prices (expressed in percentages of principal amount on the redemption date) set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to
(but excluding) the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record of the 2029 Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on
the relevant interest payment date), if redeemed during the twelve month period commencing on April 15 of the years set forth below:

PerrodRedemptronPrrce2024102 000 % 2025101 000 % 2026 and thereafterlOO 000 % At—&nrﬁme—aﬂd—frem—ﬁmeﬁ%}e—pﬁer—teﬁpfﬂ—léﬁ@%

hote>premium-bas § eable-treasury-rate-phis-50-basis-points: Upon the occurrence ofspemﬁed chang:e ofcontrol events as defined in
the mdenture governing the 2029 Notes we must offer to repurchase the 2029 Notes at 101 % of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but excluding) the purchase date. The indenture governing the 2029 Notes contains covenants that, among other things, restricts
our ability to: « sell assets; * pay dividends or make other distributions on capital stock, make payments in respect of subordinated indebtedness or
make other restricted payments; « make certain investments; * incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred stock; ¢ create certain
liens; * enter into agreements that restrict dividends or other payments from our restricted subsidiaries to us; * consolidate, merge or transfer all or
substantially all of their assets; ¢ enter into transactions with affiliates; and These covenants are subject to a number of important exceptions and
qualifications. The indenture governing the 2029 Notes contains affirmative covenants and events of default that are customary for indentures
governing high yield securities. The 2029 Notes and the guarantees are not subject to any registration rights agreement. Letters of Credit As of
December 31, 2623-2024 , we maintained outstanding standby letters of credit totaling $ 2320 . 3-9 million as collateral in relation to our workers’
compensation insurance agreements and a corporate office lease agreement. Of the $ 2420 . 3-9 million of outstanding letters of credit, we have
collateralized approximately $ 0. 6 million in cash and cash equivalents and the remaining approximately $ 20. 84 million is collateralized by the
Senior Credit Facility. Outstanding standby letters of credit at December 31, 2622-2023 totaled $ 22-21 . 8-3 million. Critical Accounting Policies
and Estimates Our critical accounting policies are those that we believe are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results and
require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting
principles requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and base them on the information that is currently
available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could vary from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments
and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements: Goodwill and Indefinite- lived Intangible Assets Our business
acquisitions typically result in the recording of goodwill and other intangible assets. The determination of the fair value of such intangible assets



involves the use of appropriate valuation techniques and requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated
financial statements. Significant judgments required to estimate the fair values include estimated future cash flows, growth rates, customer attrition
rates, brand awareness and discount rates. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value for each
intangible asset. Management may engage independent third- party specialists to assist in determining the fair values. For intangible assets purchased
in a business acquisition, the estimated fair values of the assets received are used to establish their recorded values, which may become impaired in
the future. In accordance with accounting guidance on goodwill and other intangible assets, we perform annual impairment analysis to assess the
recoverability of goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets. We assess the impairment of goodwill of our reporting units and indefinite- lived
intangible assets annually, or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying valse-amount may not be recoverable. We
may first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting
unit is greater than its carrying amount, the quantitative impairment test is unnecessary. If the reporting unit does not pass the qualitative assessment,
then the reporting unit’ s carrying ¥alge-amount is compared to its fair value. The fair values of the reporting units are estimated using market and
income diseeunted-eash-low-approaches. Goodwill is considered impaired if the carrying ¥alae-amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value.
Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment, including the identification of reporting units, assignment of assets and liabilities to
reporting units, assignment of goodwill to reporting units, and determination of the fair value of each reporting unit. Valuation techniques consistent
with the market approach and income approach are used to measure the fair value of each reporting unit. Significant judgments are required to
estimate the fair value of reporting units including estimating future cash flows, and determining appropriate discount rates, growth rates, eompaty
eeﬁ-trel—pfem—rum—dnd othu assumptlons ( h(mLcs in these cst]mdtos and dssumptlons could mdtumlb affect thc dLTlelndtl()n of fair value for uu,h

December 31, 2623-2024 , we do not have any mddmm lived mlanglblu assets . We performed a quantltatlve lmpalrment test of our goodw1ll
as of October 31, 2024 and determined that the estimated fair values of the nurse and allied solutions and physician and leadership solutions
reporting units were below their respective carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of the technology and workforce solutions reporting
unit exceeded its carrying amount by more than 100 percent. As a result, we recognized goodwill impairment losses of $ 222. 5 million in the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024. We consider the following assumptions used in the income
and market approaches to be significant assumptions in estimating the fair value of our reporting units: revenue growth rates, long- term
growth rates, weighted average cost of capital, and selection of market multiples. Under the income approach, the discounted cash flow
method uses estimated future cash flows, including revenue growth rates, based on our internal forecasts, which are estimated considering
our historical experience, expectations of future business performance, and assessment of current and future market conditions. Keeping all
other assumptions constant and excluding the effect of deferred income taxes, a change in the revenue growth rates over the entire forecast
period of 25 basis points would have increased or reduced the goodwill impairment losses by approximately $ 37. 0 million. A long- term
growth rate is used to calculate the terminal value of our reporting units in the discounted cash flow method and is based on estimated
economic and industry growth. According to the U. S. Inflation Calculator, healthcare inflation has ranged from 0. 5 % to 5. 2 % (average
of 3. 3 %) over the last 25 years. And according to the U. S. Census Bureau, the number of adults age 65 or older is projected to grow an
estimated 31 % between 2022 and 2035. Based on the expectations of an increasingly aging population requiring additional healthcare
services and the historical levels of inflation in the healthcare industry, we used an estimated long- term growth rate of 4. 0 % in the annual
impairment test as of October 31, 2024. Keeping all other assumptions constant and excluding the effect of deferred income taxes, a change
in the estimated long- term growth rates of 25 basis points would have increased or reduced the goodwill impairment losses by
approximately $ 7. 0 million. In the discounted cash flow method, each reporting unit’ s estimated future cash flows are discounted at a rate
that is consistent with a weighted- average cost of capital (WACC), which represents the after- tax rate of return required by a market
participant, which is based on observed market return data and company- specific risk factors. The Company engaged a third- party
valuation specialist to assist in the determination of the WACC, which ranged from 13. 5 % to 14. 0 % for our reporting units in the most
recent impairment test. Keeping all other assumptions constant and excluding the effect of deferred income taxes, a change in the WACC of
50 basis points would have increased or reduced the goodwill impairment losses by approximately $ 30. 0 million. Under the market
approach, we utilize the guideline company method, which involves the selection of valuation multiples based on the market capitalization of
similar publicly traded companies. Multiples derived from these companies provide an indication of how much a market participant would
be willing to pay for a company. These multiples are applied to the forecasted financial metrics for our reporting units to arrive at an
indication of value. The market multiples used are revenue and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA).
Keeping all other assumptions constant and excluding the effect of deferred income taxes, a change in the market multiples of 10 % would
have increased or reduced the goodwill impairment losses by approximately $ 53. 0 million . Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are
required to be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment evaluation is based on an undiscounted cash flow analysis at-of the asset
group, which is the lowest level at which cash flows of the long- lived assets are largely independent of other groups of assets and liabilities. If the
asset group’ s undiscounted cash flows are less than its carrying amount, the asset group’ s fair value is measured. An impairment is
recognized if the carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair value of the asset group. We assess potential impairments to intangible
long- lived assets when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may
not be recovered. Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators and future cash flows related to intangible-long- lived assets are
based on operational performance of our businesses, market conditions and other factors. Although there are inherent uncertainties in this assessment
process, the estimates and assumptions we use, including estimates of future cash flows, volumes, market penetration and discount rates, are
consistent with our internal planning. Although the accounting guidance does not require impairment testing of long- lived assets in a
reporting unit that is tested for goodwill impairment, we assess whether the related circumstances result in evidence that the carrying
amounts of our long- lived assets may not be recoverable. As such, prior to the quantitative impairment test of our goodwill as of October
31, 2024, we evaluated the recoverability of the carrying amounts of asset groups within the nurse and allied solutions and physician and
leadership solutions reporting units and determined that the undiscounted cash flows for all the asset groups tested were above their

assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record an impairment ekarge-loss on all or a pomon of our lom liv Ld mtaﬂgi-b}e-assus
Furthermore, we cannot predict the occurrence of future impairment- triggering events nor the impact such events might have on our reported asset
values. Future events could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that long- lived intangible-asscts asseeiated-with-ouraequired
businesses-are impaired. Professional Liability Reserve We determine the adequacy of our accrual for professional liability by evaluating our
historical experience and trends, loss reserves established by our insurance carriers, management and third- party administrators, and our independent
actuarial studies. We obtain actuarial studies on a semi- annual basis to assist us in determining the adequacy of our accrual. For periods between the
actuarial studies, we record accruals based on loss rates provided in the most recent actuarial study and management’ s review of loss history.
Expense recognized for accruals (inclusive of actuarial- based deereases-adjustments ) was $ 7. 8 million, $ 5. 5 mithen;$F2-million and $ 7. 2



million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024-, respectively. Our accrual for professional liability includes provisions
for estimated incurred but not yet reported (“ IBNR ) losses and known claims (“ case reserves ”), as well as losses covered by excess insurance
carriers (“ excess liability ”’). The following table presents the case reserves, IBNR losses and excess liability as estimated by the most recently
obtained actuarial study that make up our accrual for professional liability as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-: (In Thousands) December
31, 20232022Case-20242023Case reserves (1) $ 11,590 $ 8, 503 $-8;450-IBNR losses (1) 21, 823 24, 893 25;:4F6-FExcess liability (2) 13,289 11,
256 48;344-Total accrual $ 46, 702 $ 44, 652 $43-970-(1) The provisions for case reserves and estimated IBNR losses are presented net of excess
liability. (2) The accrual for losses recoverable from excess insurance carriers is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets with a corresponding
recoverable asset. We determine estimated IBNR losses by developing our historical loss data to its ultimate level (“ ultimate losses ) and
subtracting incurred losses to date; the remainder is IBNR losses. We determine ultimate losses through the use of several actuarial methods,
including (but not limited to) loss development methods and Bornhuetter - Ferguson metheds—- method . These methods use our specific historical
claims data related to paid losses and loss adjustment expenses, historical and current case reserves, reported and closed claim counts, and industry
and other data. The actuarial assumptions used in the aforementioned methods include paid and incurred loss development patterns, our growth and
mix of business, inflation, law changes, and claim frequency and severity trends. We consider the frequency and severity of claims to be significant
assumptions in estimating our accrual for professional liability. A 10 % change in the expected frequency is within a reasonable range of possibilities
and would increase or reduce the accrual estimate by approximately $ 2. 0 million. A 10 % change in the expected claim severity is within a
reasonable range of possibilities and would increase or reduce the accrual estimate by approximately $ 4-5 . 0 million. Additionally, the average time
period between the occurrence and final resolution of our professional liability claims is approximately 5 years; however, the facts and circumstances
of individual claims could result in a timeframe that significantly varies from this average. The ultimate settlements of our professional liability
claims may vary significantly from our estimates if future changes in claim frequency or severity differ from historical trends and actuarial
assumptions, which could have a material effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations. Contingent Liabilities We are
involved in various lawsuits, claims, investigations, and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. These matters typically relate to
professional liability, tax, compensation, contract, competitor disputes and employee- related matters and include individual and class action
lawsuits, as well as inquiries and investigations by governmental agencies regarding the Company’ s employment and compensation practices.
Additionally, some of our clients may also become subject to claims, governmental inquiries and investigations and legal actions relating to services
provided by our healthcare professionals. From time to time, and depending upon the particular facts and circumstances, we may be subject to
indemnification obligations under our contracts with such clients relating to these matters. We cannot predict with assurance the outcome of claims
brought against us. Certain of the above- referenced matters may include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages.
We record a liability when we believe that it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. In assessing
the probability of loss and the estimated amount, we consider the following factors, among others: (a) the nature of the matter and any related facts,
circumstances and data; (b) the progress of the case; (c) the opinions or views of legal counsel and other advisers; (d) our experience, and the
experience of other entities, in similar cases; (¢) how we intend to respond to the matter; and (f) reasonable settlement values based on the foregoing
factors. Significant judgment is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount and the final outcome may ultimately be materially
different. Where a range of loss can be reasonably estimated with no best estimate in the range, we record the minimum estimated liability. We
review these provisions at least quarterly and adjust these provisions accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of
legal counsel, and updated information. We generally record changes in accruals related to legal matters in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) . The most significant matters for which the Company has established
accruals in connection with loss contingencies are class and representative actions related to wage and hour claims under California and Federal law.
We believe that the amount or estimable range of reasonably possible loss beyond the accruals that we have established, will not, either individually
or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our business, consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows with respect to
loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as of December 31, 2023-2024 . However, the outcome of litigation is inherently uncertain.
Therefore, if one or more of these legal matters were resolved against us for amounts in excess of management’ s expectations, our results of
operations and financial condition, including in a particular reporting period, could be materially adversely affected. Recent Accounting
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Deeembe D —witheatly pern —We-are-etrren v g-the—tmpa A re-th andard-ofrour-diselostres—In December
2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 09, “ Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, ” which is intended to enhance the
transparency and decision- usefulness of income tax disclosures. The new guidance addresses investor requests for enhanced income tax information
primarily through requiring disclosure of additional information about and further disaggregation of the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid.
This standard is effective on a prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 , with early adoption permitted. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on our disclosures. In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03, “ Income
Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation of Income
Statement Expenses, ” which is intended to improve disclosures about the expenses of public entities. The new guidance requires more
detailed information about the types of expenses in commonly presented expense captions (such as cost of sales and selling, general, and
administrative expenses) and requires public entities to disclose, on an annual and interim basis, the amounts of expenses included in each
relevant expense caption presented on the face of the income statement within continuing operations, in a tabular format. Additionally,
public entities will be required to disclose a qualitative description of the amounts remaining in relevant expense captions that are not
separately disaggregated quantitatively, the total amount of selling expenses and, in annual reporting periods, the definition of selling
expenses. This standard is effective on either a prospective or retrospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026 and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027 , with carly adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting this standard on our disclosures. There have been no other new accounting pronouncements issued but not yet adopted that are expected to
materially affect our consolidated financial condition or results of operations. Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and
commodity prices. During 2623-2024 , our primary exposure to market risk was interest rate risk associated with our variable interest debt
instruments and our investment portfolio. A 100 basis point increase in interest rates on our variable rate debt would not have resulted in a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements for 2623-2024 . A 100 basis point change in interest rates as of December 31, 2623-2024 would not
have resulted in a material effect on the fair value of our investment portfolio. For our investments that are classified as available- for- sale,
unrealized gains or losses related to fluctuations in market volatility and interest rates are reflected within stockholders’ equity in accumulated other



comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated balance sheets. Such unrealized gains or losses would be realized only if we sell the investments
prior to maturity. During 2623-2024 , we generated substantially all of our revenue in the United States. Accordingly, we believe that our foreign
currency risk is immaterial. Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PageReport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm36Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2623-2024 and
202238Censeolidated-202338Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 520622-and
202139Censotdated-202239Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 52622-and
202+H40Censotdated-202240Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2024, 202 3 72022-and 2024 Netes
202241Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements43Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting P011c1es4?Note 2- AequisttionsSHNote
AcquisitionsS2Note 3- Fair Value MeasurementS2Nete-Measurement53Note 4- Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets55Note 5-
FEeases5HNete-Leases58Note 6- Balance Sheet Petails58Nete-DetailsS9Note 7- Income Faxes60ONote-Taxes61Note 8- Notes Payable and Credit
Agfeemeﬂté%te—Agreement@Note 9- Retirement Plansé3Note-Plans64Note 10- Capital Steeké63Note-Stock64Note 1 1- Share- Based
Compensation65Note 12- Commitments and Centingenetesé5-Contingencies66 To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.: Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (loss) , stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three - year period ended December 31, 2623-2024
, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the years in the three - year period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting
principles. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB),
the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 22-20 , 2624
2025 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Basis for Opinion These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit
matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial
statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter
in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters
below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate. Professional Eiebtlity-liability
Reserve-reserve As discussed in Notes 1 (§1) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company determines their professional liability
accrual by evaluating historical experience, trends, loss reserves, and actuarial studies. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company recorded
professional liability reserves totaling § 44-46 , 652-702 thousand. We identified the evaluation of the professional liability reserve as a critical audit
matter. A high degree of complex and subjective auditor jadgmentjudgement , including the involvement of actuarial professionals with specialized
skills and knowledge, was required in evaluating the Company’ s actuarial estimates and assumptions, specifically estimates for incurred but not
reported claims. Changes in the actuarial estimates or assumptions could have a significant impact on the liability recognized. The following are the
primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of certain
internal controls related to the process to estimate the professional liability reserve. This included a control related to the selection of ultimate losses
used in the estimates for incurred but not reported claims. We tested the key inputs to determine the incurred but not reported estimate. This included
testing data used by the Company’ s actuarial specialist to determine the expected loss rates, specifically claims history used in the actuarial models,
for consistency with the actual claims incurred and paid by the Company. We also involved actuarial professionals with specialized skills and
knowledge who assisted in evaluating the Company’ s actuarial estimates and assumptions, specifically loss rates, by comparing them to the
Company’ s historical data, and industry and regulatory trends. Fair+alue-Goodwill impairment assessment of eertainintangible-assets-aequiredin
the aequisittorof- MSDBR-nurse and allied solutions and physician and leadership solutions reporting units As discussed in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, the goodwill balance as of December 31, 2024 was $ 897, 456 thousand. As discussed in Note 1 (j) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company assesses the impairment of goodwill of its reporting units on Nevember36-an annual basis as
of October 31 , 2623;-or more frequently if events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value, an impairment loss is recorded. The Company eequired-MSI-Systems-Corp—sustained a decline in
market capitalization and BrWanted-lower than expected financial performance . eemEEE-MSDRY-The Company performed its annual
goodwill impairment test and estimated the fair value of its reporting units using the income and market approaches. The Company
recorded a goodw1]l 1mpa1rment of $ 123, 283 thousand for the nurse &n—and mrt—t&l—pt&ehase—pﬁee—e-ﬁalhed solutlons reportlng un1t and $ 292
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approach to determlne the fair value of the nurse and alhed solutions and physician and leadership solutions reporting units and the
selection of the market multiples assumption utilized in the market approach to determine the fair value of the nurse and allied solutions
and physician and leadership solutions reporting units required a high degree of subjective auditor judgement. Changes to the-these



enstomerrelationships-assumptions could have a significant effect on the Company’ s assessment of the carrying value of the goodwill.
Additionally, the audit effort associated with the evaluation of the discount rate and tradenames-+trademarks-market multiples required
specialized skills and knowledge . The following are the primary audit-procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated
the design and tested the operating effectiveness ol certain internal controls related to the goodwill impairment Company—s-aequisitton—date
valaatienprocess rinekading-. This included controls related to the selection of key-assumptions—We-eompared-the-forecasted revenue growth rates
to-, these—- the discount rate ef MSPBR>s-peers-, and market multiples used to determine the fair value of the nurse and allied solutions and
physician and leadership solutions reporting units. To assess the reasonableness of the forecasted revenue growth rates utilized in the
income approach for the nurse and allied solutions and physician and leadership solutions reporting units, we evaluated the forecasted
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the market multlples selected by management by comparing t-he—them fesa-l-ts—to t-he—Geﬂmaﬂy—s-&nwa-l-ue—es&mate—pubhcly available market
data for comparable entities . / s/ KPMG LLP We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2000. AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except par value) December 31, 20232022ASSEFSCurrent—--- 20242023 ASSETSCurrent
assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 10, 649 $ 32, 935 -$-64%%4—/\Lu)unts receivable, net of allowances of § 32, 421 and $ 32, 233 and-$-31-946-at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respeetively623-respectively437 , 817 623 , 488 675:-656-Accounts receivable, subeontraetorH7—-
subcontractor70 , 481 117 , 703 268;726-Prepaid expenses2t-expenses22 , 510 21 , 889 +8;-708-Other current assets45— assets53 , 458 45, 670
66;-037-Total current assets84— assets594 , 915 841 , 685 1-093-645-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and i-nvest—meﬂtsé&investmentsﬂ , 840 68 .
845 645248-Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $ 360, 795 and $ 285, 081 and-$22F-64+7F-at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-,
respeetivelytO+-respectively186 , 270 191 , 385 +49;276-Other assets236-assets258 , 053 236 . 796 +72-Deferred income taxes , 9+6-net25, 829 —
GoodwilH-Goodwill897 ,456 1, 111, 549 935;:364-Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $ 534, 822 and $ 442, 052 and-$364+327
at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respeetively474-respectively381 , 364 474 , 134 476;-832-Total assets § 2, 924-415 , 394-727 § 2, 888
924 ,35+394 LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY Current liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 184, 311 $ 343, 847 $
476-452-Accrued compensation and benefits278— benefits287 , 544 278 | 536 333;244-Other current habiities33— liabilities73 , 930 33 , 738 48;
237-Total current Habilities656- liabilities545 , 785 656 , 121 857-933-Revolving credit faethty466-facility210 ., 000 —460, 000 Notes payable, net
of unamortized fees and premium844-premium845 , 872 844 | 688 843;-565-Deferred income taxes, aet23—- net — 23 | 350 22,H3-Other long-
term Habittiest0S-liabilities107 , 450 108 , 979 420:-566-Total abilities2-liabilities1 , 709, 107 2 , 093, 138 +844;-HFCommitments and
contingenciesStockholders’ equity: Preferred stock, $ 0. 01 par value; 10, 000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-20622-— — Common stock, $ 0. 01 par value; 200, 000 shares authorized; 50, 692 1ssued and 38, 079 outstandmg at December 31,
2024 and 50, 423 issued and 37, 810 outstanding at December 3] 2023507 2623-and-56-504 5
2022504-564+-Additional paid- in eapital506-capital528 , 471 506 , 543 564-674-Treasury sto(,l( at cost; 12, 613 aﬁd—8—2-39-slmlu at December ?I
2024 and 2023 and2022;respeetively(1, 127, 043) (698-1 ,598—127 043 ) Retained earningsl, 304, 696 1, 451, 675 5246;996-Accumulated other
comprehensive loss ( 11) (423 3939-) Total stockholders’ equity83+-equity706, 620 831 , 256 4-843;-634-Total liabilities and stockholders” equity
$2,024-415 ,394-727 § 2, 888-924 , 35+-394 Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ( LOSS) ( in thousands, except per share amounts) Years Ended December 31, 202326222024 Reventie—---
202420232022Revenue $ 2, 983, 781 $ 3, 789, 254 § 5, 243, 242 $3-984-235-Cost of revenue? , 064, 405 2 , 539, 673 3, 526, 558 2674634
Gross profttt-profit919 ,376 1 , 249, 581 1, 716, 684 15369-60+0perating expenses: Selling, general and administrative756-- administrative632 ,
489 756 , 238 936, 576 #36;45+-Depreciation and amortization (exclusive of depreciation included in cost of revenue) 167, 103 154, 914 133, 007
+6+-Goodwill impairment losses222 | +52-457 — — Total operating expenses9H—- expensesl, 022, 049 911 , 152 1, 069, 583 83+-663-Income
(loss) from eperations338—-- operations (102, 673) 338 , 429 647, 101 499998 Interest expense, net, and et-heé4—other69 901 54 , 140 40, 398 345
67FIncome (loss) before income taxes284--- taxes (172, 574) 284 , 289 606, 703 443;:-924-Income tax expense (benefit) (25 595) 73,610 162, 653
H6;-533-Net income (loss) $ (146, 979) $ 210, 679 $ 444, 050 $327;388-Other comprehensive income (loss): Unrealized gains (losses) on
available- for- sale securities, net, and ether5S+6-other412 516 (644 H335-) Other comprehensive income (loss) 412 516 (644 H335-) Comprehensive
income (loss) $ (146, 567) $ 211, 195 § 443, 406 $327-053-Net income (loss) per common share: Basic $ (3. 85) $ 5. 38 $ 9. 96 Diluted $ 6-(3 . 8%
Dituted-85) $ 5. 36 $ 9. 90 $-6-8+Weighted average common shares outstanding: Basie39-Basic38 , 188 39 , 173 44, 591 47-685-DPituted39
Diluted38 , 188 39 , 341 44, 870 48;-845-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOL DFRS FQUITY Years Ended December 31, 2024,
2023 ;and 2()2” and2024-(in thousands) Common StockAdditionalPaid- inCapitalTreasury StockRetained EarningsAccumulated Other
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taxes2352+(FH234) (232)-Share—based-ecompensation 7 17-Comprehensive-ineomeJoss)
8%—7—3-8—8—(—3—35)—3%—7—95—3—3&1-&%& Duembu 31,202149, 849 $ 498 $ 486, 70‘) (2,586) $ (121, 831) $ 796,946 $ (295) $ 1, 162, 027 Repurchase of
common stock — — — (5, 644) (576, 767) — — (576, 767) Equity awards vested, net of shares withheld for taxes260 3 (15 101) ————(15,
098) Share- based compensation — — 30, 066 — — — — 30, 066 Comprehensive income (loss) — — — — — 444,050 (644) 443, 406 Balance,
December 31, 202250, 109 $ 501 $ 501, 674 (8, 230) $ (698, 598) $ 1, 240, 996 $ (939) $ 1, 043, 634 Repurchase of common stock — — — (4,
383) (428, 445) — — (428, 445) Fqully awards vested, net of shares wuhheld for taxes314 3 (13, 151) — — — — (13, 148) Share- based
compensation — — 18, 020 — — — — 18, 020 Comprehensive income — — — — — 210, 679 516 211, 195 Balance, December 31, 202350, 423
$504 8 506,543 (12,613) $ (1, 127,043) $ 1,451,675 $ (423) $ 831, 256 Equity awards vested, net of shares withheld for taxes191 2 (4, 776)
— ———(4, 774) Shares purchased and issued under employee stock purchase plan78 1 3, 387 — — — — 3, 388 Share- based
compensation — — 23, 317 — — — — 23, 317 Comprehensive income (loss) — — — — — (146, 979) 412 (146, 567) Balance, December 31,
202450, 692 $ 507 $ 528, 471 (12, 613) $ (1, 127, 043) $ 1, 304, 696 $ (11) $ 706, 620 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 202326222024Cash—--- 202420232022Cash flows from operating activities: Net income (loss) $ (146, 979) $ 210, 679 §
444, 050 $-327388-Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and amortization (inclusive
of deprec1allon included in cost of revenuc) 173, 779 160,927 137, 111 +83:697-Non- cash interest expense and ether8-other1l,910 8 , 821 5, 330

“hange in fair value of contingent consideration l-tab-rl-rt-tes%— liabilities — 2

4 30 (2, 930) —Increase in allowance for credit losses and sales eredits23— credits3, 296 23 , 913 57, 999 6;263-Provision for deferred income

taxes (51, 067) (12, 933) (24, 615 3H+6;28F) Share- based eempeﬂs&t—reﬂ-l—g—compensatlonB 317 18, 020 30, 066 25;2+FNet loss (gain) on
deferred compensation batanees465---- balances (1, 225) 465 (520) 26-Goodwill impairment losses222 457 — — Loss on disposal or impairment
of long- lived assets8-assets65 8 , 053 1, 500 2;767-Net loss €gain)-on investments in available- for- sale seenrities302-securities200 302 749 523



Non- cash lease expenset— expense (1,244) 1, 619 5, 497 3:-886-Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions: Accounts
reeetvable70-receivablel76 ,227 70 , 033 57, 921 ¢449;-533)-Accounts receivable, subeentraetertStsubcontractor47 , 222 151 , 023 (29, 007 ¥
65734 Income taxes feeeﬁ‘ab-}eS— receivable (4, 012) 3 , 793 (8, 875) 6;594+Prepaid expenses (1, 976) (1, 542) 53, 806 (—58—7-88-)—0thcr current
assets4— assets (8, 530) 4, 197 17, 775 €45-9999-Other assets-assets87 (3, 177) 210 3;262-Accounts payable and accrued expenses ( 154, 890) ( 183,
517) 48, 782 256;- H8-Accrued compensation and benefits ( 11, 310) ( 80, 135) (10, 506) +295235-Other hiabilities-liabilities44 , 431 (10, 248) (126,
560) +225-685-Deferred revenue ( 1, 340) (558) (4, 098) 4—3%9—Rest-i=ieted—mvest-meﬂts-ba-}aﬂee—349—Net cash provided by operating
aetivities372— activities320 , 418 372 , 165 653, 733 3085;356-Cash flows from investing activities: Purchase and development of fixed assets ( 80,
891) (103, 687) (75, 831) {—5—3%—7—3-)—Purchase of investments (1, 383) — (13, 152 3€66;-H9-) Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments9, 099 9,
894 14, 384 Proceeds from sale 57-660-Purehase-of cquity investment — 77 —500)Proceedsfromsale-ofequity-investment?#08 F8-Payments to
fund deferred compensation plan ( 8, 412) (24, 902) (21, 518 HF-565)-Cashpaid-for-initial-direeteests——35429-) Cash paid for acquisitions,
net of cash and restricted cash received — (292, 175) (69, 570 H45264-) Cash paid for other intangibles — (1, 700) (5, 091) £98)-Cash received for
working capital settlement of prior year acquisition1, 649 — — Net cash used in investing activities ( 79, 938) (412, 493) (170, 710 H+6%462-)
Years Ended December 31, 202326222024Cash—--- 202420232022Cash flows from financing activities: Payments on

Payments-en-revolving Lredit facility ( 375, 000) (355, 000) — #6;:-800)-Proceeds from revolving credit faethity845— facility125 , 000 815 . 00() —
F0;-660-Payments on loans payable — (300 ) — Repurchase of common stock (1) — (424, 744) (576, 767) Payment of excise tax on share
repurchases (3, 701 ) — — Repurehase-ofeommensteek{1-(424; 4576, F6P25-688)-Payment of financing costs ( 973) (3, 579) Earn-
out payments to settle contingent consideration liabilities for prior acquisitions — (7, 500) — {3;+66)-Cash paid for shares Withheld for taxes (4,
774) (13, 148) (15, 098 HFH232-) Net cash provided by (used in) financing aetivitiest-- activities (259, 448) 10, 729 (591, 865) 34;-895)Effeet
ofexchangerate-ehanges-oneash——335)-Net inerease(decrease Fin cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ( 18, 968) (29, 599) (108, 842)
+62,724-Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of yeart37year108, 273 137 , 872 246, 714 83;-990-Cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash at end of year $ 89,305 $ 108, 273 $ 137, 872 $246;H4-Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for amounts
included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities $ 10,354 $ 9, 311 $ 13, 337 $39;865-Cash paid for interest (net of $ 606, $ 1, 229 --and $
703 capitalized in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively) $ 61 349-eapitatizedi12023- 034 2022-and-2021respeetively)-S 48, 101 $ 37, 5 18 $38;-085
Cash paid for income taxes $ 28, 152 $ 78, 256 $ 213, 807 $+686;379-Acquisitions: Fair value of tangible assets acquired in acquisitions, net of cash
and restricted cash received $ — $ 48, 941 § 2, 604 -$—1—996—Geedwrl-l—l—7§=—— Goodwill — 175 , 770 42, 990 2%493-Intangible assets92--- assets —
92, 000 40, 200 +2;440-Liabilities assumed — (24, 536) (8, 224 H+27#5-) Contingent consideration liabilities — — (8, 000) —Net cash paid for
acquisitions $ —$292, 175 $ 69, 570 $44-264-Supplemental disclosures of non- cash investing and financing activities: Purchase of fixed assets
recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,198 $ 8, 130 $ 5, 643 $3;-H9-Excise tax payable on share repurchases $ — $ 3, 701 $—$
— Right- of- use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilities $ 5, 043 $ 36, 560 $ 5, 680 $2;-672-(1) The difference between the
amount reported for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the corresponding amount presented in the consolidated statements of stockholders’
equity is due to accrued excise tax payable on share repurchases which 4s-was recorded within treasury stock . The excise tax was paid during the
year ended December 31,2024 . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) General AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware on November 10, 1997. AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “ Company ) provide healthcare workforce solutions and staffing services at acute and sub- acute care hospitals and
other healthcare facilities throughout the United States. (b) Principles of Consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. and its wholly- owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. (c) Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the conselidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to goodwill
and indefinite- lived intangible assets, professional liability reserve, contingent liabilities such as legal accruals, and income taxes. The Company
bases these estimates on the information that is currently available and on various other assumptions that it believes are reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates under different assumptions or conditions. (d ) Cost of Revenue Cost of revenue
represents costs directly associated with the earnings of revenue and are comprised primarily of compensation, benefits, housing, travel and
allowance costs for healthcare professionals and medically qualified interpreters. (e) Selling, General and Administrative Expenses Selling,
general and administrative expenses consist predominantly of compensation and benefits costs for corporate employees, in additional to
professional service fees, legal matter accruals, and other overhead costs. Unallocated corporate overhead is a subset of selling, general and
administrative expenses and is comprised of indirect costs related to certain corporate functions that are not allocated to the Company’ s
reportable segments. (f ) Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include currency on hand, deposits with financial institutions, money market funds, and
other highly liquid investments. See Note (3), “ Fair Value Measurement ” for additional information. ( e-g ) Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Investments Restricted cash and, cash equivalents and investments primarily fnelades— include cash, corporate bonds and commercial paper that
serve as collateral for the Company’ s captive insurance subsidiary claim payments. See Note (3), “ Fair Value Measurement  for additional
information. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and related notes to the amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. December 31,
2023Deeember-2024December 3 1, 2622Cash-2023Cash and cash equivalents $ 10, 649 $ 32, 935 $-64:-524-Restricted cash and cash equivalents
(included in other current assets) 14, 984 22, 056 37225-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmentséS-investments71 , 840 68 , 845 61248
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and nvestmentsi23-investments97 , 473 123 | 836 +62;-967Lcss restricted investments ( 8, 168) (
15, 563 H25:095-) Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 89,305 $ 108, 273 The Company released $ 43725 . 872-000 of restricted
cash held at its captive insurance subsidiary in January 2025, which was used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the
Senior Credit Facility ( fas defined in Note (2) below). As the restriction was in effect as of December 31, 2024 and the entire outstanding
debt balance is classified as a noncurrent liability in the consolidated balance sheet, the noncurrent classification of the restricted cash was
maintained as of December 31, 2024. (h ) Fixed Assets The Company records furniture, equipment, leasehold improvements and capitalized
software at cost less accumulated amortization and depreciation. The Company records equipment acquired under finance leases at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments. The Company capitalizes major additions and improvements, and it expenses maintenance and repairs when
incurred. The Company calculates depreciation on furniture, equipment and software using the straight- line method based on the estimated useful
lives of the related assets (typically three to ten years). The Company depreciates leasehold improvements and equipment obtained under finance
leases over the shorter of the term of the lease or their estimated useful lives. The Company includes depreciation of equipment obtained under
finance leases with depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company capitalizes costs it incurs to develop
software during the application development stage. Application development stage costs generally include costs associated with software
configuration, coding, installation and testing. The Company also capitalizes costs of significant upgrades and enhancements that result in additional
functionality, whereas it expenses as incurred costs for maintenance and minor upgrades and enhancements. The Company amortizes capitalized
costs using the straight- line method over three to ten years once the software is ready for its intended use. The Company reviews-assesses long-




lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset group to the future undiscounted net
cash flows that are expected to be generated by the asset group. If such asset group is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair value of the asset group. The Company reports assets to be
disposed of at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. (g ) Leases The Company recognizes operating lease right- of- use
assets and liabilities at commencement date based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term. Leases with an
initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet in accordance with the short- term lease recognition exemption. The Company
applies the practical expedient to not separate lease and non- lease components for all leases that qualify. The rates implicit in the Company’ s lease
arrangements are generally not readily determinable and as such, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to measure its
lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is determined for each operating lease based on the Company’ s borrowing capabilities over a
similar term of the lease arrangement, which is estimated by utilizing the Company” s credit rating and the effects of full collateralization. Lease
expense is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease term. Operating lease right- of- use assets are included in other assets, and operating
lease liabilities are included in other current liabilities and other long- term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. (#j ) Goodwill The
Company records as goodwill the portion of the purchase price that exceeds the fair value of net assets of entities acquired. The Company evaluates
goodwill annually for impairment at the reporting unit level and whenever circumstances occur indicating that goodwill may be impaired. The
Company may first assess-perform an optional qualitative faeters-assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, the Company determines that it is more
likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, the quantitative impairment test is unnecessary. If the-a
reporting unit does not pass the qualitative assessment, then the Company performs a quantitative test in which the reporting unit’ s carrying
valge-amount is compared to its fair value. The amount by which the carrying vatee-amount of the goodwill exceeds its fair value is recognized as
an impairment loss. See Note ( +3), “ Fair Value Measurement ” for additional information. (k ) Intangible Assets Intangible assets consist of
identifiable intangible assets acquired through acquisitions, which include tradenames and trademarks, customer relationships, staffing databases,
developed technology and non- compete agreements. The Company amortizes intangible assets, other than those with an indefinite life, using the
straight- line method over their useful lives. The Company amortizes non- compete agreements using the straight- line method over the lives of the
related agreements. The Company reviews for impairment intangible assets with estimable useful lives whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company does not amortize indefinite- lived intangible assets and instead reviews
them for impairment annually. The Company may first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that an
indefinite- lived intangible asset is impaired. If, after assessing the totality of events and circumstances, the Company determines that it is more
likely than not that the indefinite- lived intangible asset is not impaired, no quantitative fair value measurement is necessary. If a quantitative fair
value measurement calculation is required for an indefinite- lived intangible asset, the Company compares its fair value with its carrying amount. If
the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the Company records the excess as an impairment loss. (1) Insurance Reserves The Company
maintains an accrual for professional liability that is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other long- term liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. The expense is included in the selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement-statements of
comprehensive income (loss) . The Company determines the adequacy of this accrual by evaluating its historical experience and trends, loss reserves
established by the Company’ s insurance carriers, management and third- party administrators, and independent actuarial studies. The Company
obtains actuarial studies on a semi- annual basis that use the Company’ s actual claims data and industry data to assist the Company in determining
the adequacy of its reserves each year. For periods between the actuarial studies, the Company records its accruals based on loss rates provided in the
most recent actuarial study and management’ s review of loss history and trends. Liabilities include provisions for estimated incurred but not yet
reported (“ IBNR ) losses, as well as provisions for known claims. IBNR reserve estimates involve the use of assumptions that are primarily based
upon historical loss experience, industry data and other actuarial assumptions. The Company maintains insurance programs through its wholly-
owned captive insurance subsidiary, which primarily provides coverage, on an occurrence basis, for professional liability within its nurse and allied
solutions segment. In addition, the Company maintains excess insurance coverage through a commercial carrier for losses above the per occurrence
retention. Losses covered by excess insurance are included in the accrual for professional liability, as the Company remains liable to the extent
commercial carriers do not meet their obligations. The Company maintains an accrual for workers’ compensation, which is included in accrued
compensation and benefits and other long- term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The expense relating to healthcare professionals is
included in cost of revenue, while the expense relating to corporate employees is included in the selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement-statements of comprehensive income (loss) . The Company determines the adequacy of this accrual by evaluating its
historical experience and trends, loss reserves established by the Company’ s insurance carriers and third- party administrators, and independent
actuarial studies. The Company obtains actuarial studies on a semi- annual basis that use the Company’ s payroll and historical claims data, as well
as industry data, to determine the appropriate reserve for both reported claims and IBNR claims for each policy year. For periods between the
actuarial studies, the Company records its accruals based on loss rates provided in the most recent actuarial study. ( ¥m ) Revenue Recognition
Revenue primarily consists of fees earned from the temporary staffing and permanent placement of healthcare professionals, executives, and leaders
(clinical and operational). The Company also generates revenue from technology- enabled services, including language interpretation and vendor
management systems, and talent planning and acquisition services, including recruitment process outsourcing. The Company recognizes revenue
when control of its services is transferred to its customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to receive
in exchange for those services. Revenue from temporary staffing services is recognized as the services are rendered by clinical and non- clinical
healthcare professionals. Under the Company’ s managed services program (“ MSP ) arrangements, the Company manages all or a part of a
customer’ s supplemental workforce needs utilizing its own network of healthcare professionals along with those of third- party subcontractors.
Revenue and the related direct costs underMSP-arrangements-are recorded in accordance with the accounting guidance on reporting revenue gross
as a principal versus net as an agent. Revenue is recorded on a gross basis When-when the Company utilizes its own network of healthcare
professionals (including nurses, allied healthcare professionals, locum tenens, and executive and leadership interim staff). Conversely, when
the Company uses subcontractors under an MSP arrangement and acts as an agent, revenue is recorded net of the related subcontractor’ s expense.
Revenue from permanent placement and recruitment process outsourcing services is recognized as the services are rendered. Depending on the
arrangement, the Company’ s technology- enabled service revenue is recognized either as the services are rendered or ratably over the applicable
arrangement’ s service period. Revenue for the language services business is recorded on a gross basis. Under vendor management systems
arrangements, revenue is recorded on a net basis as an agent because other companies are primarily responsible for providing the staffing
services, for which the Company is entitled a percentage fee. Sce additional information below regarding the Company’ s revenue disaggregated
by service type. The Company’ s customers are primarily billed as services are rendered. Any fees billed in advance of being earned are recorded as
deferred revenue. While payment terms vary by the type of customer and the services rendered, the term between invoicing and when payment is
due is not significant. The Company recognizes assets from incremental costs to obtain a contract with a customer and costs incurred to fulfill a
contract with a customer, which are deferred and amortized using the portfolio approach on a straight line basis over the average period of benefit
consistent with the timing of transfer of services to the customer. The Company has elected to apply the following practical expedients and optional
exemptions related to contract costs and revenue recognition: « Recognize incremental costs of obtaining a contract with amortization periods of one



year or less as expense when incurred. These costs are recorded within selling, general and administrative expenses. ¢« Recognize revenue in the
amount of consideration that the Company has a right to invoice the customer if that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the Company’ s services completed to date. « Exemptions from disclosing the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an
original expected length of one year or less, (ii) contracts for which revenue is recognized in the amount of consideration that the Company has a
right to invoice for services performed and (iii) contracts for which variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied performance
obligation or to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer a distinct service that forms part of a single performance obligation. (+n ) Accounts
Receivable The Company records accounts receivable at the invoiced amount. Accounts receivable are non- interest bearing. The Company
maintains an allowance for expected credit losses based on the Company’ s historical write- off experience, an assessment of its customers’ financial
conditions and available information that is relevant to assessing the collectability of cash flows rwhich-ineludes-eurrenteonditions-and-foreeasts
about-future-eeonomie-eonditions-. The following table provides a reconciliation of activity in the allowance for expected credit losses for accounts
receivable: 20232622Batanee-20242023Balance as of January 1, $ 32,233 $ 31, 910 $6;-838-Provision for expected credit tosses5-losses6 , 549 5 .
544 2—7—622—Amounts wrrtten oft charged agarnst the allowance ( 6 361) (5, 221 HZ556-) Balance as ofDecember 31, $ 32, 421 $ 32 233 -$—3-l—

her-etstomers-due 8 he-maeroeeonomte —( 110 ) Concentranon of Credrt Rrsk The majorny of the Company s busmess activity
is with hosprtals located throughout the United States. Credit is extended based on the evaluation of each entity’ s financial condition. One customer
primarily within the Company’ s nurse and allied solutions segment comprised approximately 16 %, 17 % -and 18 %-and+47% of the consolidated
revenue of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2024-, respectively. The Company’ s cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments accounts are financial instruments that are exposed to concentration of credit risk.
The Company maintains most of its cash, cash equivalents and investment balances (both unrestricted and restricted) with high- credit quality and
federally insured institutions. However, cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents and investment balances may be invested in non- federally
insured money market funds, commercial paper and corporate bonds. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-, there were $ 97, 473 and $
123, 836 and-$1+62-967, respectively, of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments, a portion of which was
invested in non- federally insured meney-market-fands;-commercial paper and corporate bonds. See Note (3), “ Fair Value Measurement, ” for
additional information. (#p ) Income Taxes The Company records income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period the changes are enacted. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the
Company considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization
of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities (including the impact of available carryback and carryforward
periods), projected future taxable income, and tax- planning strategies in making this assessment. The Company recognizes the effect of income tax
positions only if it is more likely than not that such positions will be sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount
that is greater than 50 % likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment
occurs. The Company records interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. (€-q ) Fair Value of Financial
Instruments The carrying amounts of the Company’ s cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents and investments approximate their respective
fair values due to the short- term nature and liquidity of these financial instruments. The fair value of the Company’ s equity investment is measured
determined-by-using observable prices for identical or similar investments of the same issuer when such transactions are identified , which is
more fully described in Note (3), “ Fair Value Measurement. ” As it relates to the Company’ s 2027 Notes and 2029 Notes (as defined in Note (8)
and Note (3), respectively, below), fair value disclosure is detailed in Note (3), “ Fair Value Measurement. ” See Note (8), “ Notes Payable and
Credit Agreement, ” for additional information. The fair value of the Company’ s long- term self- insurance accruals cannot be estimated because the
Company cannot reasonably determine the timing of future payments. ( p-r ) Share- Based Compensation The Company accounts for its share- based
employee compensation plans by expensing the estimated fair value of share- based awards on a straight- line basis over the requisite employee
service period, which typically is the vesting period, except for awards granted to retirement- eligible employees, which are expensed on an
accelerated basis. Restricted stock units (“ RSUs ”) typically vest over a three- year period. Share- based compensation cost of RSUs is measured by
the market value of the Company’ s common stock on the date of grant, and the Company records share- based compensation expense only for those
awards that are expected to vest. Performance restricted stock units (“ PRSUs ) primarily consist of PRSUs that contain performance conditions
dependent on defined targets of the Company’ s adjusted EBITDA, with a range of 0 % to 200 % of the target amount granted to be issued under the
award. Share- based compensation cost for these PRSUs is measured by the market value of the Company’ s common stock on the date of grant, and
the amount recognized is adjusted for estimated achievement of the performance conditions. A limited amount of PRSUs contain a market condition
dependent upon the Company’ s relative and absolute total stockholder return over a three- year period, typically with a range of 0 % to 175 % (and
certain awards with a range of 0 % to 200 %) of the target amount granted to be issued under the award. Share- based compensation cost for these
PRSUs is measured using the Monte- Carlo simulation valuation model and is not adjusted for the achievement, or lack thereof, of the market
conditions. Share- based compensation cost for purchase rights granted under the Company’ s employee stock purchase plan is measured using the
Black- Scholes model and the related employee contributions are included in accrued compensation and benefits in the consolidated balance sheets.
See Note (l 1), « Share Based Compensatron ” for addrtronal 1nformatron (q—s ) Net Income (Loss) per Common Share-Sha:re-—b&sed—ﬂ-wafds—te

ton-oigdituted i se-t i—dituttive: The followmg table sets forth the
computatron of bas1c and drluted net income (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31 2024, 2023 rand 2022 and262+-,
respectively: Years Ended December 31, 202320222024 Net-202420232022Net income (loss) $ (146, 979) $ 210, 679 § 444, 050 $327388-Net
income (loss) per common share- basic $ (3. 85) $ 5. 38 $ 9. 96 $-6-87Net income (loss) per common share- diluted $ (3. 85) $ 5. 36 $ 9. 90 $-6-8+
Weighted average common shares outstanding- baste39-basic38 , 188 39 , 173 44, 591 47-685-Plus dilutive effect of potential common shares+68—-
- shares — 168 279 360-Weighted average common shares outstanding- difuted39-diluted38 , 188 39 , 341 44, 870 48-Anti- dilutive potential
common shares excluded from diluted weighted average common shares outstanding85 88 19 The dilutive effect of potential shares and
anti- dilutive potential common shares primarily include outstanding share- based awards , 645-which consists of restricted stock units,
performance restricted stock units, and obligations under the Company’ s employee stock purchase plan. (£t ) Segment Information The
Company’ s operating segments are identified in the same manner as they are reported internally and used by the Company’ s chief operating
decision maker (* CODM ) for the purpose of evaluating performance and allocating resources . The Company’ s Chief Executive Officer and
its Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer serve as the Company’ s CODM . The Company has three reportable segments: (1)
nurse and allied solutions, (2) physician and leadership solutions, and (3) technology and workforce solutions. The nurse and allied solutions
segment includes the Company’ s travel nurse staffing (including international nurse staffing and rapid response nurse staffing), labor disruption
staffing, local staffing, international nurse and-aHied-permanent placement, and allied staffing (including revenue cycle solutions) businesses. The



physician and leadership solutions segment includes the Company’ s locum tenens staffing, healthcare interim leadership staffing, executive search,
and physician permanent placement businesses. The technology and workforce solutions segment includes the Company’ s language services,
vendor management systems (“ VMS ”), workforce optimization, and outsourced solutions businesses. The Company’ s CODM ehief-operating
deeistonrmakerrelies on internal management reporting processes that provide revenue , gross profit and operating income by reportable segment
for-making-. These financial measures are used by the CODM to evaluate segment performance, monitor variances between periods and
agalnst prolectlons, make key operatmg deus]ons 8 and a-l-loeat-mg—allocate resources —such as capltal and personnel to each Segmeﬁt—segment

The CODM Gefﬂpaﬂy—s—maﬂ&gemeﬂt—does not ev dludte —ma-nage—m measure

performance of surmemx using asset 1n’r()1mdt1()n d(,(.t)ldlll"l\ asset information by segment is not prepared or disclosed. The following table-tables
provides— provide areeoneiliation-reconciliations of revenue , gross profit and operating income by reportable segment to consolidated results and
was-were derived from each segment’ s internal financial infol‘muti(m as used for corporate management purposes +. Segment operating income
represents income (loss) before income taxes plus depreciation, amortization of intangible assets, share- based compensation, goodwill
impairment losses, interest expense, net, and other, and unallocated corporate overhead. Years— Year Ended December 31,

202320222021 ReventeNurse-2024Nurse and allied-Allied selutiens-SolutionsPhysician and Leadership SolutionsTechnology and Workforce
SolutionsTotalRevenue $ 1, 815, 718 $ 728, 608 $ 439, 455 S 2, 983, 781 Cost of revenuel, 371, 660 511, 959 180, 786 2, 064, 405 Gross
profit444, 058 216, 649 258, 669 919, 376 Segment selling, general and administrative expenses270, 467 137, 600 91, 590 499, 657
Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) — — (6, 676) (6, 676) Segment operating income $ 173, 591 § 79, 049 $ 173, 755 426, 395
Unallocated corporate overhead109, 515 Depreciation and ameortization167, 103 Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) 6, 676 Share-
based compensation23, 317 Goodwill impairment losses222, 457 Interest expense, net, and other69, 901 Loss before income taxes $ (172, 574)
Year Ended December 31, 2023Nurse and Allied SolutionsPhysician and Leadershlp SolutlonsTechnology and Workforce
SolutionsTotalRevenue $ 2, 624, 509 $ 3-669 , 701 9824535 495 2; %
Feehnology-and-workforee-solutions495- 044 562,843-399,889-5 3, 780, ’54 -$é—Cost ofrevenuel %43—932 , 099 440%4%—3— 984—230 167 . 235

344 2, 539, 673 Gross profit692, 410 229, 471 327, 700 1, 249, 581 Segment selling, general and administrative expenses330, 252 134, 505 118,
977 583, 734 Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) —_ (6 013) (6 013) Se"mem opemtnw 1ncome meomeNufs&end-a-l-l-ted—soluﬁeﬂs—ia
362, 158 $ 57694 , 226-966 $ 214 46 eade © 6-92331+-81+-439Feehnotogy-and v oree-s , 736
299;3961H8F-578-671, 860 96-7—9-47—7—39—3%8—Ln(1110c(1ted colpomte ov e1he‘1dl 54 48—1 -1—53—669—1%—4-1-6-Deplecmt10n dnd amo1t17dt10n] 54, L)1-1
1335-6071+6++52-Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) 6, 013 4;3+04-25-545-Share- based compensation18, 020 36;-066-25;2+FInterest
expense, net, and other54, 140 48;:39834;-677-Income before income taxes $ 284, 289 Year Ended December 31, 2022Nurse and Allied
SolutionsPhysician and Leadership SolutionsTechnology and Workforce SolutionsTotalRevenue $ 3, 982, 453 $ 697, 946 $ 562, 843 $ 5, 243,
242 Cost of revenue2, 934, 738 456, 996 134, 824 3, 526, 558 Gross profitl, 047, 715 240, 950 428, 019 1, 716, 684 Segment selling, general
and administrative expenses471, 489 148, 619 132, 733 752, 841 Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) — — (4, 104) (4, 104) Segment
operating income $ 576, 226 $ 92, 331 $ 299, 390 967, 947 Unallocated corporate overhead153, 669 Depreciation and amortization133, 007
Depreciation (included in cost of revenue) 4, 104 Share- based compensation30 066 Interest expense, net, and other40, 398 Income before
income taxes $ 606, 703 $443;-92+-The following tables present the Company’ s revenue disaggregated by service type: Year Ended December 31,
2024Nurse and Allied SolutionsPhysician and Leadership SolutionsTechnology and Workforce SolutionsTotalTravel nurse staffing $ 1, 084,
3988 —$—$1, 084, 398 Labor disruption services63, 316 — — 63, 316 Local staffing4S, 517 — — 45, 517 Allied staffing610, 661 — —
610, 661 Locum tenens staffing — 566, 351 — 566, 351 Interim leadership staffing — 115, 672 — 115, 672 Temporary staffingl, 803, 892
682, 023 — 2, 485, 915 Permanent placement (1) 11, 826 46, S85 — 58, 411 Language services — — 298, 241 298, 241 Vendor management
systems — — 104, 277 104, 277 Other technologies — — 21, 195 21, 195 Technology- enabled services — — 423, 713 423, 713 Talent
planning and acquisition — — 15, 742 15, 742 Total revenue $ 1, 815, 718 $ 728, 608 $ 439, 455 $ 2, 983, 781 Year Ended December 31,
2023Nurse and Allied SolutionsPhysician and Leadership SolutionsTechnology and Workforce SolutionsTotalTravel nurse staffing $ 1, 806, 653 $
—$—3§ 1, 806, 653 Labor disruption services13, 303 — — 13, 303 Local staffing76, 553 — — 76, 553 Allied staffing709, 632 — — 709, 632
Locum tenens staffing — 464, 797 — 464, 797 Interim leadership staffing — 136, 953 — 136, 953 Temporary staffing2, 606, 141 601, 750 — 3,
207, 891 Permanent placementt8—- placement (1) 18 , 368 67, 951 — 86, 319 Language services — — 260, 121 260, 121 Vendor management
systems 169, 370 169, 370 Other technologies 24,222 24, 222 Technology- enabled services 453, 713 453, 713 Talent planning
and acquisition 41, 33141, 331 Total revenue $ 2, 624, 509 $ 669, 701 $ 495, 044 $ 3, 789, 254 Year Ended December 31, 2022Nurse and
Allied SolutionsPhysician and Leadership SolutionsTechnology and Workforce SolutionsTotalTravel nurse staffing $ 2,912, 6778 —$ —$ 2,912,
677 Labor disruption services112, 160 — — 112, 160 Local staffing142, 724 — — 142, 724 Allied staffing806, 491 — — 806, 491 Locum tenens
staffing — 428, 133 — 428, 133 Interim leadership staffing — 184, 819 — 184, 819 Temporary staffing3, 974, 052 612, 952 — 4, 587, 004
Permanent pleeementS— placement (1) 8 . 401 84, 994 — 93, 395 Language services — — 216, 120 216, 120 Vendor management systems — —
265, 525 265, 525 Other technologies — — 29, 553 29, 553 Technology- enabled services — — 511, 198 511, 198 Talent planning and acquisition
— — 51,645 51, 645 Total revenue $ 3, 982,453 § 697, 946 $ 562, 843 § 5, 243, 242 (1) Includes revenue from international nurse permanent
placement phys1c1an permanent placement and executive search. The followmg table presents the Company s 1nternatlonal nurse revenue

ogy-atrd-W e alFravelnurse staffing (1) $ 165, 875 $ 208 132 $ 161 992 Internatlonal nurse permanent
placement( ) 11 826 -l-68~ 18 59—7—368 8 401 Total international nurse revenue $ —177, 701 $ —226, 500 $ 170, 393 (1) Included in “
Travel nurse stafﬁng ” as presented in the precedlng tables (2) Included in “ —LéHGJ—I:&ber—&lsfupﬂeﬂ—seﬁﬂeesH@%%@—l—l@%%G
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i 6 i atts—" as presented in the precedlng tables (tu) R(.u.l]t]\ Adopted
\tu)untmu Pl()l]()Lll](.L.mL.l]t\ ln QetebeﬁNovember %92—]—2023 the FASB F—rﬁa-ﬁefa-l—Aeeetrﬁt-rﬁg—Staﬂdﬁds—Beﬁfd—nsuul Accounting Standards
U pddtL (“ASU” )2—92—1—2023 98—07 Busmess—@embma&ens—Segment Reportmg ( l ()pl(. 895—280 ) Improvements to Reportable Segment
Ace A ers— which expands the breadth and frequency
of reportable segment dlsclosure requlrements, prlmarlly through enhanced dlsclosures about s1gn1ficant segment expenses The new
“Llld{ll'lLC tequne\ eempames—pubhc entities to dlsclose apply 3

basis , significant segment expenses eh-as-defe eftre ating-to-e aets mers-that are aequ-x-red—m—regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker (“ CODM ”), the amount and composntlon of other segment items by reportable segment, any additional

measures of a business-combination—Underpriorguidanee;-segment’ s profit or loss used by the CODM when assessing performance an-and
aequirergenerallyreeognized-assets-deciding how to allocate resources, and the CODM’ s title and position. Additionally, public entities will



be aequired-required to provide andtiabilities-assumed-in interim periods all disclosures about a business-eembination-reportable segment’ s
profit or loss that are currently required annually by Topic 280. This standard is effective on a retrospective basis for fiscal years beginning

after December 15 , 2023 ineludingeontraetassets-and eeﬂ&eet—hebﬂmes-a:ﬂwxg—frem—revenﬁe-eeﬂ&eets-lnterlm perlods within ﬁscal years
begmmng after December 15, 2024 with early adoptlon permltted etstom g

tabiitt t tree-prt 1Sttt pte-606 The Company adopted
thls standard effeet-rve—]-amraﬁ-for the year endmg December 31 2024 See N ote ( ) ).« Summary of Slgmﬁcant Accountlng Policies —
Segment Information ” for additional information § v y
eonsohidated-finanetat-statements-. (2) Acquisitions The Compdny du,oumed for edeh acquisition set ’rorth below using the dequmt]on method o’r
accounting. Accordingly, the Company recorded the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their estimated fair values as of
the applicable date of acquisition. Since the applicable date of acquisition, the Company has revised the allocation of the purchase price to the
tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on analysis of information that has been made available through December 31,
20623-2024 or the end of the one- year measurement period, whichever is earlier . The-alteeatiens-Allocations witl-continue to be updated
through the measurement period, if necessary. The goodwill recognized for these acquisitions is attributable to expected growth as the Company
leverages its brand and diversifies its services offered to clients, including potential revenue growth and margin expansion. The Company recognizes
acquisition- related costs in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) . For each
acquisition, the Company did not incur any material acquisition- related costs. MSDR Acquisition On November 30, 2023, the Company completed
its acquisition of MSI Systems Corp. and DrWanted. com LLC (together, “ MSDR ), two healthcare staffing companies that specialize in locum
tenens and advanced practice. The initial purchase price of $ 292, 818 consisted entirely of cash consideration paid upon acquisition. The acquisition
was funded through borrowings under the Company”’ s $ 750, 000 secured revolving credit facility (the “ Senior Credit Facility ), provided for under
the Amended Credit Agreement (as defined in Note (8) below). The results of MSDR have been included in the Company’ s physician and
leadership solutions segment since the date of acquisition. During the second quarter of 2024, $ 1, 649 was returned to the Company in respect
of the final working capital settlement. The preliminary-allocation of the $ 292-291 | 848-169 purchase price , which was reduced by the final
working capital settlement and was finalized during the fourth quarter of 2024, consisted of (1) $ 49-41 , 584-406 of fair value of tangible assets
acquired, which included $ 643-562 cash received, (2) $ 24-26 , 536-371 of liabilities assumed, (3) $ 92, 000 of identified intangible assets, and (4) $

-1—7—5-184 -7’—79—134 of goodwill, of Wthh $ 8—8—94 96-1—762 is deductlb]e for tax purposes —”Phe—pfeﬁsteﬂal—rtems—mehrde—bhe—ﬁﬂahveﬂemg—eapﬁa}

A eOnstS %11 s;-operatingleases;-aeerue nsuranee-reserves-. [he 1ntdng>1ble dssets cu,qum,d lmve a weighted
average usetul life of approxlmately seven years. The followmg table summarizes the fair value and useful life of each intangible asset acquired as of
the acquisition date: Fair ValueUseful Life (in years) Identifiable intangible assetsCustomer relationships $ 54, 300 7- 10Tradenames and
trademarks26, 400 3Staffing databases11, 300 5 $ 92, 000 Connetics Acquisition On May 13, 2022, the Company completed its acquisition of
Connetics Communications, LLC (“ Connetics ), which specializes in the direct hire recruitment and permanent placement of international nurse
and allied health professionals with healthcare facilities in the United States. The initial purchase price of $ 78, 764 included (1) $ 70, 764 cash
consideration paid upon acquisition, funded through cash on hand, and (2) contingent consideration (earn- out payment) of up to $ 12, 500 with an
estimated fair value of § 8, 000 as of the acquisition date. The contingent earn- out payment is based on the operating results of Connetics for the
twelve months ending May 31, 2023, which resulted in a payment of § 7, 500 in the third quarter of 2023. The results of Connetics have been
included in the Company’ s nurse and allied solutions segment since the date of acquisition. During the fourth quarter of 2022, $ 231 was returned to
the Company in respect of the final working capital settlement. The allocation of the § 78, 533 purchase price, which was reduced by the final
working capital settlement and was finalized during the second quarter of 2023, consisted of (1) $ 3, 172 of fair value of tangible assets acquired,
which included $ 963 cash received, (2) $ 8, 244 of liabilities assumed, (3) $ 40, 200 of identified intangible assets, and (4) $ 43, 405 of goodwill, of
which $ 42, 905 is deductible for tax purposes. The intangible assets acquired have a weighted average useful life of approximately thirteen years.
The following table summarizes the fair value and useful life of each intangible asset acquired as of the acquisition date: Fair ValueUseful Life (in
years) ldentmable mtan"lble assetsCustomer relatlonshlps $32, 800 ISStafﬁn" database4 200 5Tradenames and trademﬂlks? 200 5% 40 2()0

Mea%uremem Falr value repre%ents the price thal would be leeened for an asset or pald to lransfel a llablllly (an exit prlee) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. When determining fair
value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which the Company would conduct a transaction, in addition to the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the related assets or liabilities, including non- performance risk. A three- level
hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value and requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: Level 1 — Quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data
for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities . There were no transfers between the three levels of the fair value hierarchy during the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 . Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Recurring Basis From time to time, the Company invests a
portion of its cash and cash equivalents in non- federally insured money market funds that are measured at fair value based on quoted prices, which
are Level 1 inputs. The Company’ s obligation under its deferred compensation plan is measured at fair value based on quoted market prices of the
participants’ elected investments, which are Level 1 inputs. The deferred compensation plan is more fully described in Note (9), “ Retirement Plans.
” The Company’ s restricted cash equivalents and investments that serve as collateral for the Company’ s captive insurance company include
commercial paper and corporate bonds. The commercial paper is measured at observable market prices for identical securities that are traded in less



active markets, which are Level 2 inputs. The corporate bonds are measured using readily available pricing sources that utilize observable market
data, including the current interest rate for comparable instruments, which are Level 2 inputs. The following table presents the fair value of
commercial paper and corporate bonds issued and outstanding: As of December 31, 2023As-2024As of December 3 1, 2022Cemmeretal
2023Commercial paper $ 64, 580 $ 48, 206 $3+-536-Corporate-bonds———Total classified as restricted cash equivalents $ 64, 580 $ 48, 206 $34;
536-Commercial paper $ —1, 399 $§ — Corporate bendstS-bonds6 , 769 15 , 563 25;-695-Total classified as restricted investments $ 8, 168 $ 15,
563 $25:-095-The fair value of our available- for- sale securities as of December 31, 2623-2024 , by remaining contractual maturities, are presented
in the following table: Fair ValueDue in one year or less § 5, 635-770 Due after one year through five years9-years2 , 928-398 $ +5-8 , 563-168
Expected maturities may differ from stated due dates because borrowers may have the ability to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties. The Company’ s contingent consideration liabilities are measured at fair value using probability- weighted discounted cash
flow analysis or a simulation- based methodology for the acquired companies, which are Level 3 inputs. The Company recognizes changes to the fair
value of its contingent consideration liabilities in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (loss). There were no contingent consideration liabilities outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 . The following tables present
information about the above- referenced assets and liabilities and indicate the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine
such fair value: Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2023Fai-2024Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2022Assets-2023Assets
(Liabilities) Level 1Level 2Level 3TotalLevel 1Level 2Level 3FetalMeney-market-funds-3TotalDeferred compensation $ (191, 006) $ — $ — $ —
(191, 006) $ (165 —5$36-, 895-574) § — § — S 36;895-Deferred-eompensation( 1065, 574 y——F6557-(128;465)———28;465-) Corporate
bonds — 6, 769 — 6 769 — 15 563 — 15, 563 —2—5—995%5—995—(()1111nerc1<11 pdpEI — 65,979 — 65,979 — 48, 206 — 48, 206 —3+-536
H psidera Assets Measured on a Non- Recurring Basis The

C ompdny dppllLS hur valuc. tLLhmquu on a non- recurring basis associated wnh \ dlull’lL identifiable intangible assets acquired through acquisitions
and potential impairment losses related to its goodwill, indefinite- lived intangible assets, long- lived assets, and equity investments. The fair value of
identifiable intangible assets are determined using either the income approach (the relief- from- royalty method, multi- period excess earnings
method or with- and- without method) or the cost approach (replacement cost method). These valuation approaches use a combination of
assumptions, including Level 3 inputs, such as (i) forecasted revenue, growth rates and customer attrition rates, (ii) forecasted operating expenses
and profit margins, and (iii) royalty rates and discount rates used to present value the forecasted cash flows. The Company evaluates goodwill and
indefinite- lived intangible assets annually for impairment and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not
that an impairment exists. The Company determines the fair value of its reporting units based on a combination of inputs, including the market
capitalization of the Company, as well as Level 3 inputs such as discounted cash flows, which are not observable from the market, directly or
indirectly. The Company determines the fair value of indefinite- lived intangible assets using the income approach (relief- from- royalty method)
based on Level 3 inputs. Refer to Note (4) “ Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets > for additional details. The Company’ s equity
investment represents an investment in a non- controlled corporation without a readily determinable market value. The Company has elected to
measure the investment at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes. Fhe-When the Company
identifies price changes in orderly transactions for identical or similar 1nvestments of the same 1ssuer, the investment is measured at fair
value 5. To determined— determine whether a security by-usingqtio m estments-of the same issuer is similar to
the Company’ s equity investment , the Company considers ﬁdﬂeh—afe—lzevel—z—mpufs—aﬂd-othel mtcn mation available te-the-Company-such as
the rights and obligations of the securities. The Company recognizes changes to the fair value of its equity investment in interest expense, net, and
other in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). As of December 31, 2024, the Company has recognized cumulative upward
adjustments and cumulative downward adjustments (including impairments) of $ 14, 033 and $ 19, 860, respectively . The balance of the
u]mty investment was ‘B 25 773 and $ 12,503 -aﬁd—$—l-9é_19~4-as of Dugmbur 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively —Fhere-were-ne-material

e urtie-th A . The Company is required to disclose the fair value of
11nanual 1mlrumenm for which it is pracmable to estimate lhe xalue even though these instruments are not recognized at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of the Company’ s 2027 Notes (as defined in Note (8) below) and 4. 000 % senior notes due 2029 (the
2029 Notes ) was estimated using quoted market prices in active markets for identical liabilities, which are Level 1 inputs. The carrying amounts
and estimated fair value of the 2027 Notes and the 2029 Notes, which are more fully described in Note (8), “ Notes Payable and Credit Agreement, ’
are presented in the following table: As of December 31, 2023As-2024As of December 31, 2022€arryingAmenntEstimatedFair
2023CarryingAmountEstimatedFair leue(,<n1ymOAmountEsnmdtedFdn Value2027 Notes $ 500, 000 $ 468473 ., 750 $ 500, 000 $ 466-468 ,
800-750 2029 Notes350, 000 312, 375 350, 000 3 14 425350606360, 125 The fair value of the Company’ s long- term self- insurance accruals
cannot be estimated as the Company cannot reasonably determine the timing of future payments. (4) Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets As
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, the Company had the following acquired intangible assets: As of December 31, 2023As-2024As of
December 31, 2022-2023
GrossCarryingAmountAccumulated AmortizationNetCarryingAmountGrossCarryingAmountAccumulated AmortizationNetCarryingAmountIntangible
assets subject to amortization: Staffing databases $ 52, 336 $ (39, 879) $ 12,457 $ 52,336 $ (33, 398) $ 18, 938 $-44-036-$24; 784516252
Customer relationships532, 048 ( 247 550) 284, 498 532, 048 (210, 6()()) 321 442 478 Tradenames and trademarks284 . 488 (204, 159) 80, 329
284, 488 (161, 656) 122 (+79; 6 , 832 260;H46-(124-576)138;-564-Non- compete
agreements9, 399 (7, 783) 1, 616 9, 399 (o6, 727) 2, 672 -’:’%5—5—(6—9859—1%%9-Acqulred technolooy37 915 (35,451) 2,464 37,915 (29, 665) 8,
250 5—1—396—@-9—1—3—79—22—1—69—9 91() 186 ‘B ( 534 822) $ 381,364 $ 916, 186 $ (442 052) ‘B 474 134 5 5

Aggregdte amortization expense for mtdnuble dssets was S 92, 770 and $ 89, 756 aﬂd—$—8—3,—9—7’-8
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, respectively. Based on the net carrying amount of intangible assets subject to
amortization, the estimated future amortization expense as of December 31, 2623-2024 is as follows: AmountYear ending December 31, 2024-2025
$92-75 , 766-633 Yecar ending December 31, 202595-202667 , 637108 Yecar ending December 31, 202667202756 , H4-069 Ycar ending December
31, 202756-202835 , 676-889 Yecar ending December 31, 202835-202927 , 894166 Fhereaftert46-Thereafter119 , 659-499 $ 474-381 . 4134-364
The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test as of October 31, 2024. Due to a sustained decline in market capitalization in
the fourth quarter, the Company performed a quantitative impairment test for its three reporting units: nurse and allied solutions,
physician and leadership solutions, and technology and workforce solutions. The Company engaged a third- party valuation specialist to
assist in determining the fair value of each reporting unit, which was estimated using an equal weighting of the income and market
approaches. The discounted cash flow method (within the income approach) requires the use of Level 3 inputs, including (i) estimated future
cash flows based on internally- developed forecasts of revenue, expenses and profit margins, (ii) estimated long- term growth rates, and (iii)



determination of the Company’ s weighted average cost of capital that reflects the relative risk of the cash flows for each reporting unit. The
guideline public company method (within the market approach) derives valuation multiples based on the market capitalization of similar
publicly traded companies to apply to the forecasted financial metrics of each reporting unit. The market multiples used are revenue and
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA). In addition, as the fair values determined under the guideline
public company method represent a noncontrolling interest, a control premium was applied to arrive at the estimated fair value of each
reporting unit on a controlling basis. The annual test resulted in goodwill impairment losses for the nurse and allied solutions and physician
and leadership solutions reporting units. Consideration was first given to Company’ s long- lived assets, and no impairment was recognized
on such assets as the future undiscounted cash flows were in excess of the carrying amount of each asset group tested for impairment. The
decline in the fair value of the nurse and allied solutions reporting unit below its carrying amount resulted from changes in estimated future
cash flows due to a continued decline in demand (primarily in the travel nurse staffing business) and gross margin pressures driven by
higher provider pay packages. As a result, an impairment loss of $ 104, 777 was recorded to goodwill of the nurse and allied solutions
reporting unit. The decline in the fair value of the physician and leadership solutions reporting unit below its carrying amount resulted from
changes in estimated future cash flows due to gross margin pressures in the locum tenens staffing business driven by higher provider pay
packages and a continued decline in demand for the healthcare interim leadership staffing, executive search, and physician permanent
placement businesses. As a result, an impairment loss of $ 81, 946 was recorded to goodwill of the physician and leadership solutions
reporting unit. Recognition of the non- cash goodwill impairment losses resulted in income tax benefits which generated additional deferred
tax assets of $ 18, 506 and $ 17, 228 that increased the carrying amount of the nurse and allied solutions and physician and leadership
solutions reporting units, respectively. Incremental impairment losses of the same amounts were required to reduce the carrying amounts of
the reporting units to their previously determined fair values. After recognition of these incremental charges, the goodwill impairment losses
were $ 222, 457 in total. Following the annual goodwill impairment test as of October 31, 2024, the Company did not identify any events or
circumstances during the final two months of the year ended December 31, 2024 that indicated it may be more likely than not that the fair
value of its reporting units were reduced below their respective carrying amounts. The following table summarizes the activity related to the
carrying value of goodwill by reportable segment: Nurse and AlliedSolutionsPhysician and LeadershipSolutionsTechnology and Workforce

So]ullomTolalBalame January 1, 2-92—2—2023 83-39-382 9-1—5—005 S 152, 800 $ 400, 5%6—559 \89%—34-1—G-eedﬂw1-1-1-adjﬁst-meﬂt—fer—87ﬂi-raﬂd

559-‘) 35, 364 Goodwill adjustment for ( onnetics dcqumtlon-ﬂ 5—— 41 5 Goodwill ’n om MSDR au]u]s]tlon — l7§ 770 — 17§ 770 Balance,
December 31, 2023382, 420 328, 570 400, 559 1, 111, 549 Goodwill adjustment for MSDR acquisition — 8, 364 — 8, 364 Goodwill
impairment losses (123, 283) (99, 174) — (222, 457) Balance, December 31, 2623-2024 $ 382-259 , 426-137 $ 328-237 , 576-760 $ 400, 559 $ +
897 , 456 H1-549-Accumulated impairment loss as of December 31, 2022-ard-2023 § 154, 444 § 60,495 § — § 214, 939 Accumulated
impairment loss as of December 31, 2024 $ 277, 727 $ 159, 669 $ — $ 437,396 (5) Leases The Company leases certain office facilities, data
centers, and equipment under various operating leases. The Company’ s short- term leases (with initial lease terms of 12 months or less) are
primarily related to housing arrangements for healthcare professionals on assignment. Mest-Certain leases include one or more options to renew,
with renewal terms 1hal can extend the lease term up to 10 years. Addltlonally, Gefta-m-certaln lea\es also include opllons to 1elmmale lhe leases
\\1thm 2 years = e-262+-the-Compan € A g greement(as-amended date)-for-its-offteespaee t

4 a s—teaseHa TR -‘ he-termination Dot -‘ h } a 6d—as-ot-the-mod Hfreatton—date-. In the
first quarter 01‘20 2, lhe Company entered into a lease agreement for an office bul]d]w7 located in Da]la\ Te\as with future undlscounled lease
payments of approximately $ 29, 514, excluding lease incentives. The lease commenced upon substantial completion of the construction of the office
building in June 2023. The initial term of the lease is approximately eleven years with options to renew during the lease term. The Company
recognized a right- of- use asset and operating lease liability of $ 15, 782 and $ 22, 713, respectively, at lease commencement, which reflects the
utilization of a tenant improvement allowance of $ 6, 931 accounted for as a lease incentive. The components of lease expense were as follows:
Years Ended December 31, 202320222624+Operating---- 2024202320220perating lcase cost $ 9,204 $9, 610 $ 16, 439 $23-495-Short- term lease
eost3-cost2 , 437 3, 738 5, 787 6;-856-Variable and other lease cost2, 469 2, 789 3, 129 2,-485-Net lease cost $ 14, 110 $ 16, 137 $ 25, 355 $32-036
The maturities of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023-2024 were as follows: Operating LeasesYear ending December 31, 2024-2025 $ 16-8 ,
584-715 Year ending December 31, 2025820267 , +56-580 Ycar ending December 31, 20266-20277 , 437672 Year ending December 31, 20276~
20287 , 494-866 Ycar ending December 31, 20286-20295 , 665-861 Thereaftert6-Thereafter12 , 765-486 Total lcase payments55-paymentsS0 , 695
180 Less imputed interest (9-8 , 499-255 ) Present value of lease liabilities $ 45-41 , $96-925 The weighted average remaining lease term and
discount rate as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-were as follows: December 31, 20232622 Weighted---- 20242023 Weighted average
remaining lease term?7 years2-years7 ycarsWeighted average discount rate5. 6 % 5. 3 —+% (6) Balance Sheet Details The consolidated balance
sheets detail is as follows: December 31, 262320220ther-202420230ther current assets: Restricted cash and cash equivalents $ 14, 984 $ 22, 056 &
37225 Income taxes reeetvableS-receivablell , 683 5 , 350 8-Other26 , 875-Othert8-791 18 , 264 49,-937-Other current assets $ 53,458 § 45, 670
$-66;:-037-Fixed assets: Furniture and equipment $ 90,970 $ 71, 815 Softwared40 $-51-, 468-Software388-034 388 , 812 3234481 caschold
imprevementstS-improvements16 , 061 15 . 839 2-547 | 867-065 476, 466 376;:-893-Accumulated depreciation ( 360, 795) (285, 081 H227-64F)
Fixed assets, net $ 186,270 $ 191, 385 $449:276-Other assets: Life insurance cash surrender value $ 194,350 $ 162, 780 $H+H439-Operating
lease right- of- use assets34-assets32 , 115 34 | 543 +6;266-Other39-Other31 , 588 39 , 473 38;-6H-Other assets $ 258, 053 $ 236, 796 $4+72-64+6
Accounts payable and accrued expenses: Trade accounts payable $ 31, 356 $ 54, 128 $78;-657Subcontractor payabltet22-payable69, 563 122 , 983
295;-259-Accrued expenses82-expensesS7 , 263 82 , 257 73:-885-1oss eontingenetesé9-contingencies2 , 999 69 . 837 +4-638-Professional liability
reserve7reserve8 , 395 7 , 761 7 F56-Other6-Otherld , 735 6 . 881 6;857Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 184, 311 $ 343, 847 $476;
452-Accrued compensation and benefits: Accrued payroll $ 46, 896 $ 53, 633 $-63;:-857-Accrued bonuses and eommisstons3+-commissions25 , 988
31, 236 96;760-LSPP eontributions956-contributions812 —950 Workers compensation reservet2-reserve9 , 954 12 , 130 42H3-Deferred
eompensationt65-compensation191 , 006 165 , 574 128;465-Othert5-Other12 , 888 15, 013 32—949—/\(.&,“1(.(1 compensation and benefits $ 287,
544 $ 278, 536 Other $-333;244-Deeember31,-202320220thercurrent llclblllllLS Deferred revenue $ H-10 ,363-014 § 11, 303 825-Aequisition
related-iabiities—5;-070-Clicnt depesits®-deposits56 , 341 8 , 707 245466-Operating lease Habiities7liabilities6 , 200 7 , 993 8,-090-OtherS
Otherl , 3755 . 735 :986-Other current liabilities $ 73,930 $ 33. 738 $-48-December 31 , 20242023Other 2—3—7—9t-heflom term liabilities:

W OI]\CIS compensation reserve $ 18,445 $ 21, 169 $23;-844+-Professional liability reserve36-reserve38 , 307 36 . 891 36;244-Operating lease
habitities3 7 liabilities35 , 725 37 . 603 9;360-Othert3-Other14 , 973 13 . 316 5++5+0ther long- term habllmes $107,450 $ 108, 979 $1420;-566
(7) Income Taxes The provision for income taxes from operations for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024consists of the
following: Years Ended December 31, 20232022202+ Current—--- 202420232022Current income taxes: Federal § 20,430 $ 65, 877 $ 145,217 $98;
795-State20-State5 , 042 20 , 666 42, 051 34-Total25 , 625 Fetal86-472 86 , 543 187, 268 432:-820-Deferred income taxes: Federal ( 36, 685) (10,



203) (20, 173) State (14, 382) 2,730 (4 442) Total (51, 067)(12 992-)—3%@—7%9}(4—442—){3495)%(—1&—933)(24 615){—1-6%8—7—)—Pr0v1s10n

meeme—ta*e*peﬂse—ffem—epef&t—}eﬂs—The Company s income tax expense differs 1rom the amoum thal would have resulled from applymg lhe
federal statutory rate of 21 % for 2024, 2023 -and 2022 ard-2024-to pretax income (loss) from operations because of the effect of the following
items during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and262+ Years Ended December 31, 202326222024+ Fax-202420232022Tax
expense at federal statutory rate $ (36, 241) $ 59, 701 $ 127, 390 $93;223-State taxes, net of federal benefith4-—- benefit (7, 379) 14, 170 29, 711

23;-990-Non- deductible expenses3-expenses2 , 1103 , 010 Share- based eempensation-compensation513 (944) (2, 383 45466
Unrecognized tax benefitl, 328 1, 957 3, 245 £6868)-Company- owned life insurance policies (4, 855) (4, 428) 4, 094 45968 Tax credits ( 1,289) (
3, 172) (2 741) (55—19—G00dw11] lmpalrment losses18, 054 —_ Other ﬂet—3—net2 164 3 3163, 337 8—9—7’-9—lnw1m tax cxpcnsc (beneﬁt) trom

eflecls of temporary drﬂerences that give rise to srgmﬁcant poruom of delerred tax assets and lrabrlmes are presented below as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-: December 3 1, 20232022Deferred—--- 20242023Deferred tax assets: Share- based compensation $ 6,394 $ 5, 461 $—7—
556-Deferred eempeﬁsat-ieﬂ‘l-l—compensationw 821 41 ., 976 32;962-Accrued bents2-bonus5 , 546 2 , 585 22,43FAccrued

expenses10 , 783 11 , 426 +4;452-Operating lease -habﬂ-mes-l—l—hablhtleslo 954 11, 296 4—532—Net oper'ltmg tosses4-lossesS , 314 4 . 809 5;-863
Loss eeﬂt-mgeﬂeies&-l%—contmgencles563 813 +6;-85FWorkers compensation insurance5, 273 §, 997 6;-66+Professional services expensesté
expenses179 16 , 242 449-Provision for expected credit fosses9-losses8 , 415 9 , 161 9-674-Sales ereditsé-credits5 , 960 6 , 896 6;233-Othert
Other3,9951 ., 516 3;749-Total deferred tax assets $ 112,197 $ 118, 178 -$—1%4,—7—3§—Dcfbrrcd tax liabilities: [mangiblc assets $ (65,251)$ (111,
590 ¥$-H4-967) Fixed assets (8, 662) (14, 947 H2H739-) Operating lease right- of- use assets (8, 395) (8, 539) Other (4, 228-060 ) Other(6, 452
H6;5H4) Total deferred tax liabilities $ ( 86, 368) $ (141, 528 ¥$-+47448-) Net deferred tax asset (Heabilitiesliability ) $ 25, 829 $ (23, 350 )%
22;H3-) In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of its deferred tax
assets. The amount of federal net operating losses (“ NOL ) carryforward that is available for use in years subsequent to December 31, 2623-2024 is
$22-18 , 348-700 , which begins to expire by 2030. The amount of state NOL carryforward that is available for use in years subsequent to December
31,2023-2024 is $ +27 , 646000 , which begins to expire by 2036. A summary of the changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits
(excluding interest and penalties) for 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and262+4-is as follows: 202320222024 Beginning—--- 202420232022Beginning balance
of unrecognized tax benefits $ 8, 689 $ 6, 980 $ 4, 067 $4;-9+6-Additions based on tax positions related to the current seart-year978 1, 873 1, 464
504-Additions based on tax positions of prior years49+-years266 491 1, 966 —Redueﬁeﬂs—fer—taﬂaesﬁeﬁs—ef—pﬂer—yeafs—QGH—Rcductlom
due to lapse of applicable statute of limitation ( 484) (655) (517 )—61—952—) Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 9,449 $ 8, 689 $ 6, 980 $
4-067-At December 31, 2023-2024 | if recognized, approximately $ 9-10 , 438-467 nct of § 1, 495-848 of temporary differences would affect the
effective tax rate (including interest and penalties). The Company recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The
Company had approximately $ 42 ,942-861 . $ 1,942 and $ 1, 390 and-$-564-of accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits at December
31,2024, 2023 yand 2022 and2024, respectively. The amount of interest expense recognized in 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and2624-was $ 920, $ 552 5
and $ 826 and-$-34-, respectively. The Company is subject to taxation in the U. S. and various states and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions,
as of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company is no longer subject to state, local or foreign examinations by tax authorities for tax years before 2011,
and the Company is no longer subject to U. S. federal income or payroll tax examinations for tax years before 2626-2021 . The Company believes its
liability for unrecognized tax benefits and contingent tax issues is adequate with respect to all open years. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company could adjust its provision for income taxes and contingent tax liability based on future developments. CARES Act Pursuant to the business
tax provisions in the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “ CARES Act ), the Company deferred payment of the employer’ s
share of payroll taxes of $ 48, 452. Approximately half of such taxes was paid during the fourth quarter of 2021 and the remaining balance was paid
during the fourth quarter of 2022. (8) Notes Payable and Credit Agreement (a) The Company’ s Credit Agreement and Revolving Credit Facility On
February 10, 2023, the Company entered into the third amendment to its credit agreement (the *“ Third Amendment ). The Third Amendment
(together with the credit agreement, the first amendment and the second amendment, collectively, the “ Amended Credit Agreement ) provides for,
among other things, the following: (i) an extension of the maturity date of the Senior Credit Facility to February 10, 2028, (ii) an increase to the
Senior Credit Facility from $ 400, 000 to $ 750, 000, and (iii) a transition from LIBOR to a Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“ SOFR ”)- based
interest rate . On November 5, 2024, the Company entered into the fourth amendment to its credit agreement which increased the
consolidated net leverage ratio covenant for the year ending December 31, 2025 . The obligations of the Company under the Amended Credit
Agreement are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility bear interest at floating rates,
at the Company’ s option, based upon either SOFR plus a spread of 1. 00 % to 1. 75 % or a base rate plus a spread of 0. 00 % to 0. 75 %. The
applicable spread is determined quarterly based upon the Company’ s consolidated net leverage ratio (as calculated per the Amended Credit
Agreement). The Senior Credit Facility, which includes a $ 125, 000 sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit and a § 75, 000 sublimit for
swingline loans, is available for working capital, capital expenditures, permitted acquisitions and general corporate purposes. (b) The Company’ s 4.
625 % Senior Notes Due 2027 On August 13, 2020, the Company completed the issuance of an additional $ 200, 000 aggregate principal amount of
4. 625 % senior notes due 2027 (the “ New 2027 Notes ), which were issued at a price of 101. 000 % of the aggregate principal amount. The New
2027 Notes were issued pursuant to the existing indenture, dated as of October 1, 2019, under which the Company previously issued $ 300, 000
aggregate principal amount of 4. 625 % senior notes due 2027 (the *“ Existing 2027 Notes ” and together with the New 2027 Notes, the “ 2027 Notes
). The New 2027 Notes are being treated as a single series with the Existing 2027 Notes and have the same terms (other than issue price, issue date
and the date from which interest accrues) as those of the Existing 2027 Notes. The 2027 Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company and the
interest is fixed at 4. 625 % and payable semi- annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing October 1, 2020 with respect
to the New 2027 Notes. The aggregate principal amount of the 2027 Notes matures on October 1, 2027. (¢) The Company’ s 4. 000 % Senior Notes
Due 2029 On October 20, 2020, the Company completed the issuance of $ 350, 000 aggregate principal amount of the 2029 Notes, which mature on
April 15, 2029. The 2029 Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company and the interest is fixed at 4. 000 % and payable semi- annually in arrears
on April 15 and October 15 of each year, commencing April 15, 2021. (d) Debt Balances Outstanding debt balances as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-consisted of the following: As of December 31, 20232622Senter-20242023Senior Credit Facility $ 466-210 , 000 $ —460, 000 2027
Notes500, 000 500, 000 2029 Notes350, 000 350, 000 Total debt outstanding1, 060, 000 1, 310 ;-880-850-, 000 Less unamortized fees and premium (
4,128) (5, 312 367495 Long- term portion of notes payable $ 1, 055, 872 $ 1, 304, 688 $-843;-565-At December 31, 2023-2024 , with $ 20, 758
358 of outstanding letters of credit collateralized by the Senior Credit Facility, there was $ 269-519 , 242-642 of available credit under the Senior
Credit Facility. The interest rate for the outstanding borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility was 6. 70 % on a SOFR basis as of December 31,
2623-2024 . The repayment of a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility subsequent to December 31, 2024 is
detailed in Note (1) (g), “ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments. ” (¢) Letters of
Credit At December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company maintained outstanding standby letters of credit totaling $ 2420 , 342-912 as collateral in relation
to its workers’ compensation insurance agreements and a corporate office lease agreement. Of the § 2420, 342-912 outstanding letters of credit, the



Company has collateralized $ 554 in cash and cash equivalents and the remaining $ 20, #58-358 is collateralized by the Senior Credit Facility.
Outstanding standby letters of credit at December 31, 2022-2023 totaled $ 21, 962-312 . (9) Retirement Plans The Company maintains the AMN
Services 401 (k) Retirement Savings Plan (the “ AMN Plan ™), which the Company believes complies with the IRC Section 401 (k) provisions. The
AMN Plan covers all employees that meet certain age and other eligibility requirements. A discretionary matching contribution is determined by the
Company each year. Employer contribution expenses incurred under the AMN Plan were $ 4,004, $ 5, 673 yand $ 31, 409 and-$43;3457for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624-, respectively. Employer contribution expenses for the year ended December 31, 2022
inetude-included one- time contributions and a temporary increase to the discretionary matching contribution for a portion of the year. The Company
has a deferred compensation plan for certain executives and employees (the “ Plan ). The Plan is not intended to be tax qualified and is an unfunded
plan. The Plan is composed of deferred compensation and all related income and losses attributable thereto. Discretionary matching contributions to
the Plan are made that vest incrementally so that the employee is fully vested in the match following five years of employment with the Company.
Under the Plan, participants can defer up to 80 % of their base salary, 90 % of their variable compensation and 100 % of their vested RSUs or vested
PRSUs. A discretionary matching contribution is determined by the Company each year. Employer contributions under the Plan were $ 6, 849, $ 10,
822 ;-and $ 18, 023 and-$-8;-954for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-, respectively. Employer contribution expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2022 ineluade-included one- time contributions and a temporary increase to the discretionary matching contribution
for a portion of the year —. In connection with the administration of the Plan, the Company has purchased company- owned life insurance policies
insuring the lives of certain officers and employees. The cash surrender value of these policies was $ 194, 350 and $ 162, 780 and-$3HHF339-at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, respectively. The cash surrender value of these insurance policies is included in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets. (10) Capital Stock (a) Preferred Stock The Company has 10, 000 shares of preferred stock authorized for issuance in one
or more series (including preferred stock designated as Series A Conditional Convertible Preferred Stock), at a par value of $ 0. 01 per share. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, no shares of preferred stock were outstanding. (b) Treasury Stock On November 1, 2016, the Company’ s
board of directors approved a share repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to $ 150, 000 of its outstanding common
stock. On November 10, 2021, February 17, 2022a,-nd- June 15,2022, and February 16, 2023, the Company announeed increases to the share
repurchase program totaling $ 766-1 , 200 666—A€ natly;-enFebruan 62023 —the-Company-annotiteed a1 66-, 000 for a total of
$ 1, 350, 000 of repurchase auth0r17at10n of Wthh $ 226 658 remamed on the repur chase program as of December "51 292—3—2024 The amount and
timing of the purchases will depend on a number of factors including the price of the Company’ s shares, trading Volume Company performance,
Company liquidity, general economic and market conditions and other factors that the Company’ s management believes are relevant. The share
repurchase program does not require the purchase of any minimum number of shares and may be suspended or discontinued at any time. The
Company intends to make all repurchases and to administer the plan in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory guidelines, including Rule
10b- 18 of the Exchange Act, and in compliance with its debt instruments. Repurchases may be made from cash on hand, free cash flow generated
from the Company’ s business or from the Company’ s Senior Credit Facility. Repurchases may be made from time to time through open market
purchases or privately negotiated transactions. Repurchases may also be made pursuant to one or more plans established pursuant to Rule 10b5- 1
under the Exchange Act that would permit shares to be repurchased when the Company might otherwise be precluded from doing so under the
Company’ s securities trading policy. 9ﬂ—May—8—Durmg the year ended December 31 %92—3—2024 the Company d1d not entered—nﬁe—&n
aeeeleratedshare-repurchase “ASR-agreemen ottfterpar tpot-the-Cotmpan pratd-S ed-amrany initiat
éel-rvery—ef—l—?é@-sharesofrtscommonstock ~~--:! ; Rt-bas Ra-prie g per-share—Onr-Atgus

(excludmﬂ the effect of excise taxes) for the years ended Decembel 31, 202 3 —and 2022 a-nd%@%—l—were as follows Years Fnded December 31,

20232022202 Number—--- 20232022Number of shares repurchased4, 383 5, 644 25-Average price per share $ 96. 90 $ 102. 16 $+08-9FTotal cost
of share repurchases $ 424, 744 § 576, 767 During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company repurchased 2, 362 shares of its common
stock through the open market at an average prlce of ‘B 2—95 13 per share (excludmg broker S fees) for an aggregate purchase prlce of $224

h f 53 s pay he-fina setllement ofthe ASR agreement ,we
recelved an addltlonal 0.3 million shares of our common stock .The total number of shares reeetved-delivered and average price per share of §
98.97 was based on the volume- weighted average price over the term of the ASR agreement,less an agreed upon discount. Fhe-Companyrecognized
During 2023,exclusive of the shares delivered pursuant to the ASR asinereases-to-treasury-,we repurchased 2.4 million shares of common stock
at an average price of $ 95.13 per share excluding broker’ s fees,resulting in an aggregate purchase price of $ 224.7 million excluding the
effect eonsolidated-statements-of stoekholders>excise taxes (11) Share- Based Compensation (a) Equity Award Plans Equity Plan The Company
established the AMN Healthcare Equity Plan (as amended or amended and restated from time to time, the *“ Equity Plan ), which has been approved
by the Company’ s stockholders. Any shares to be issued under the Equity Plan will be issued by the Company from authorized but unissued
common stock or shares of common stock reacquired by the Company. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, 1, 668 and 2, 264 and-2-414
shares of common stock were reserved for future grants under the Equity Plan, respectively. Employee Stock Purchase Plan During 2023, the
Company established the AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ ESPP *’) which authorizes the issuance of up to 1, 000
shares of the Company’ s common stock. The ESPP provides eligible employees with the opportunity to purchase shares of the Company’ s common
stock at a discount through payroll deductions during a six- month purchase period. Shares are wil-be-purchased at 85 % of the fair market value of
the Company’ s common stock on the offering date or the purchase date of the applicable purchase period, whichever is lower. Employee
contributions were $ 3, 250 and $ 950 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. There were 78 shares issued under the
ESPP during the year ended December 31, 2024 and the number of shares remaining available for future issuance was 922 as of December
31, 2024. No purchases were made and no shares were issued under the ESPP during the year ended December 31, 2023 ;and-al-ofthe-autherized
sharesremained-availableforfuturedssuanee- Other Plans From time to time, the Company grants, and has granted key employees inducement
awards outside of the Equity Plan (collectively, “ Other Plans ™), which have recently consisted of RSUs. Although these awards are not made under
the Eqully Plan lhe key terms and COHdlllOIlS of the gram are lyplcally the same as equny awards made under the Eqully P-l-aﬂ—Add-meﬂa-l-l-y—t-he

Plan. (b) Share Based Compensatlon Restrlcted Stock Umts RSUs and PRSUs (subject to performance condltlons being achreved) gr(mted under the
Equity Plan generally entitle the holder to receive, at the end of a vesting period, a specified number of shares of the Company’ s common stock. The
following table summarizes RSU and PRSU activity for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624— Number of



ShdrcsWughtLd /\vamoc(mmt Ddtd“dl[‘ Value pchherUnwstLd at Jdnuary 1 %9%97—H—$—5%88—Gf&&ted—R—SUs%99—$—8§—39—Gfaﬁted—PR—S—Us
; 2022755 $ 78. 13 Granted —
RSUs200 $ 109 66 Grantcd — PRSUS (l) 190 $ 92 65 Vutcd (405) $ 72. 43 Canulud / fortcmd (75) $ 82. 13 Unvested at December 31, 2022665
$ 94. 79 Granted — RSUs196 $ 95. 67 Granted — PRSUs (1) 176 $ 109. 74 Vested (349) $ 89. 76 Canceled / forfeited (87) $ 104. 14 Unvesled at
December 31,2023601 $ 101. 01 Granted — RSUs443 $ 61. 30 Granted — PRSUs (1) 259 $ 70. 73 Vested (234) $ 89. 64 Canceled / forfeited
(156) $ 90. 66 Unvested at December 31, 2024913 $ 77. 81 (1) PRSUs granted included both the PRSUs granted during the year at the target
amount and the additional shares of prior period granted PRSUs vested during the year in excess of the target shares. As of December 31, 2023-2024
, there was $ 26-32 , 499-003 unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested RSUs and PRSUs. The Company expects to recognize such cost
over a period of 1. 89 years. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the aggregate intrinsic value of the RSUs and PRSUs outstanding was $
21,834 and $ 44, 979 and-$-68;348-, respectively. Total share- based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and
2022 and2024-was as follows: Years Ended December 31, 202320222024-Share---- 202420232022Share - based employee compensation, before
tax $ 23,317 $ 18, 020 $ 30, 066 $25;247Related income tax benefits ( 6, 062) (4, 685) (7, 817 36;-556-) Share- based employee compensation,
net of tax $ 17,255 § 13, 335 § 22, 249 $148;661-(12) Commitments and Contingencies From time to time, the Company is involved in various
lawsuits, claims, investigations, and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. These matters typically relate to professional liability,
tax, compensation, contract, competitor disputes and employee- related matters and include individual, representative and class action lawsuits, as
well as inquiries and investigations by governmental agencies regarding the Company’ s employment and compensation practices. Additionally,
some of the Company’ s clients may also become subject to claims, governmental inquiries and investigations, and legal actions relating to services
provided by the Company’ s healthcare professionals. Depending upon the particular facts and circumstances, the Company may also be subject to
indemnification obligations under its contracts with such clients relating to these matters. The Company accrues for contingencies and records a
liability when management believes an adverse outcome from a loss contingency is both probable and the amount, or a range, can be reasonably
estimated. Significant judgment is required to determine both probability of loss and the estimated amount. The Company reviews its loss
contingencies at least quarterly and adjusts its accruals and / or disclosures to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal
counsel, or other new information, as deemed necessary. The most significant matters for which the Company has established loss contingencies are
class and representative actions related to wage and hour claims under California and Federal law. Specifically, among other claims in these lawsuits,
it is alleged that certain expense reimbursements should be considered wages and included in the regular rate of pay for purposes of calculating
overtime rates. On May 26, 2016, former travel nurse Verna Maxwell Clarke filed a complaint against AMN Services, LLC, in California Superior
Court in Los Angeles County. The Company removed the case to the United States District Court for the Central District of California (Case No. 2:
16- cv- 04132- DSF- KS) (the “ Clarke Matter ). The complaint asserts that, due to the Company’ s per diem adjustment practices, traveling nurses’
pgr dlcm buncﬁts should bg 1mludu1 in thur rLngldI rate of pay for thg purposcs of Lalculatmg their ovu'tlmc wmpmsatlon Gﬁ—}uﬁe—l’-éﬁ’le-l-g—t-he

Refts: The (ompany reached an agleement to settle this matter in its entlrety “and reeeived
eeuﬁ—accordmgly recorded an accrual amountlng to $ 62, 000. Final approval of the settlement —Payment-was made-granted in the second
quarter of 2623-2024 —Fhe-, and the Compdny dlsbursed ﬁ—eﬂﬁeﬂt-l-y—aﬂﬁb-}e—te-esﬁmate-tlw settlement pess-rb*e—less—eﬁfmge—ef—}ess—beyeﬂé
amoutits— amount already-a . . iy A
quarter of 2024 teng—termtia esirthe-e ated-batanee-sheets- [tem 9. Changus In and DlS’IQlLLlTantS Wlth Acu)untants on Accounting
and Financial Dlsclosuru Item 9A. Controls and Procedures (1) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and eur Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 31, 2023-2024 were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC” s rules and forms. (2)
Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and eur Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Based on the framework set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013), management

concluded that our mtemal control over ﬁndnclal repm ting was effectlve as of Decembel 31 2—92-3—2024 The A—regis&aﬂt—may—emtt—zm—assessmeﬂt

; ; e al-rep as has been audlted by KPMG LLP an mdependent 1egsteled publlc
accounting ﬁrm as stated n 1ts report, Whlch we include helem (3) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There were no changes in
our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2623-2024 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. (4) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm



Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting We have audited AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2823-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. We also have audited, in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the
Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) , stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three- year period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated
financial statements), and our report dated February 22-20 , 2624-2025 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements =

. Basis for Opinion The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’ s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Item 9B. Other Information During the three months ended December 31, 2623-2024 , none of the Company’ s directors or officers adopted,
modified or terminated a “ Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement ™ or a “ non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement ” as such terms are defined under Item
408 of Regulation S- K. Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections PART III Item 10. Directors, Executive
Officers and Corporate Governance Information required by this item, other than the information below concerning our Code of Ethics for Senior
Financial Officers and stockholder recommended nominations, is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement to be distributed in connection
with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders currently scheduled to be held on Apr-9-May 2 , 2624-2025 (the “ 2624-2025 Annual Meeting Proxy
Statement ”’) under the headings “ Corporate Governance — Election of Our Directors — AMN Healthcare Board of Directors , ” “ Compensation
Discussion and Analysis — Equity Ownership — Securities Trading Policy, ” “ Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Equity
Ownership — Policies and Practices Related to the Granting of Equity Awards ., ** Executive Compensation — Executive Compensation
Disclosure, ” “ Security Ownership and Other Matters — Delinquent Section 16 (a) Reports, ” the table set forth in “ Corporate Governance —
Board and Committee Structure — Committees of the Board ” identifying, among other things, members of our Board committees, and “ Corporate
Governance — Board and Committee Structure — Committees of the Board. ” We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers that
applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer or any person performing similar functions,
which we post on our website in the “ Governance Documents ” link located at ir. amnhealthcare. com. We intend to publish any amendment to, or
waiver from, the Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers on our website. We will provide any person, without charge, a copy of such Code of
Ethics upon written request, which may be mailed to 2999 Olympus Boulevard Suite 500, Dallas, Texas 75019, Attn: Corporate Secretary. There
have been no material changes to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend nominees to our Board since we last disclosed information
related to such procedures. Item 11. Executive Compensation Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the 2624-2025 Annual
Meeting Proxy Statement under the headings “ Executive Compensation — Compensation Discussion and Analysis , ” “ Compensation Discussion
and Analysis — Equity Ownership — Policies and Practices Related to the Granting of Equity Awards , ” © Executive Compensation —
Executive Compensation Disclosure, ” “ Corporate Governance — Director Compensation and Ownership Guidelines, ” “ Corporate Governance —
Our Corporate Governance Program — Enterprise Risk Oversight, ” “ Corporate Governance — Board and Committee Structure — Felent-and
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation, ”” and “ Executive Compensation — Falent-and-Compensation Committee Report er
Exeeuntive-Compensation- ~ Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Information required by this item, other than the information below concerning our equity compensation plans, is incorporated by reference to the
26242025 Annual Meeting Proxy Statement under the headings *“ Security Ownership and Other Matters — Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management. ”” The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2623-2024 regarding compensation plans
under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance. (a) (b) (c) Number of Securities to be Issued upon Exercise of Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights (1) Weighted- Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants, and Rights ($) (2) Numbers of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in Column (a)) (3) Plan CategoryEquity
compensation plans approved by security holders (4) 666-1 , 678-033,352 $ — 3-2 , 264-590 , 356-038 Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders (5) — —384+-454-Fotal600;-678-5 — 3— Totall , 445-033 , 804-352 $ — 2,590, 038 (1) Includes (i) unvested RSUs and PRSUs
and (ii) vested RSUs and PRSUs deferred for future issuance. Excludes purchase rights under the AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “ ESPP ) . As of December 31, 2023-2024 , there were no stock options or SARs outstanding. (2) The weighted-
average exercise price set forth in this table excludes the effect of RSUs and PRSUs, which have no exercise price. (3) Includes the following: (&1)
Shares available under the AMN Healthcare Equity Plan (as amended or amended and restated from time to time, the “ Equity Plan ") and-the264+4

. Each share tendered or held back upon settlement of an award to cover the tax withholding with respect to an award
is made available to be re- awarded. For PRSUs, we consider the maximum number of shares that may be issued under the award to be outstanding
upon grant. When the number of PRSUs that have been earned are determined, we true- up the actual number of shares that were awarded and return
the unearned shares into shares available for issuance. This figure does not include awards that are forfeited, canceled or terminated after December



31,2023-2024 . ( b-ii ) Shares remaining available for future issuance under the AM?

the“~ESPP 3~ (4) Consists of the Equity Plan and the ESPP. See additional information in Itcm 8. Fmancral Statcmcnts and Supplcmcntary Data
— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note (11), Share- Based Compensation. ” (5) On occasion, we have made employee award
inducement equity grants to key employees outside of the Equity Plan. Although these awards were made outside of the Equity Plan, the key terms
and condrtrons of each gl ant are the same in all material respects as equrty awards made under the Equrty Plan —Addiﬂerm-l-l-y—m%@ﬂ—t-he—Beafd

empl-eyees— See addltlonal 1nformat10n in“ Item 8. F 1nanc1al Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consohdated F mancral Statements —
Note (11), Share- Based Compensation. ” Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence Information required
by this item is incorporated by reference to the 2024-2025 Annual Meeting Proxy Statement under the headings “ Corporate Governance — Policies
and Procedures Governing Conflicts of Interest and Related Party Transactions, ” * Corporate Governance — Director Nomination Process —
Director Independence, ” and “ Corporate Governance — Board and Committee Structure — Committees of the Board. ” Item 14. Principal
Accounting Fees and Services Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the 2624-2025 Annual Meeting Proxy Statement
under the heading “ Audit Committee Matters — Ratification of the SeleetterrAppointment of Our Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm. ” PART IV Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules (a) Documents filed as part of the report. (1) Consolidated Financial
Statements Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-262+
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624-Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and2624-2) Financial Statement Schedules All schedules have been omitted
because the required information is presented in the financial statements or notes thereto, the amounts involved are not significant or the schedules
are not applicable. (3) Exhibits ExhibitNumberDescription3. 1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AMN Healthcare
Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant” s Anaual-Quarterly Report on Form 10- ¥-Q for the quarter fiseal-year
ended Beeember-March 31, 20642024 | filed with the SEC on Mareh48-May 9 , 2602-- 2024 ). 3. 2 Eleventh Amended and Restated By- laws of
AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. dated December 14, 2022 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8-
K dated December 14, 2022, filed with the SEC on December 16, 2022). 3. 3 Certificate of Designations of Series A Conditional Convertible
Preferred Stock (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K dated August 29, 2010, filed with the
SEC on September 1, 2010). 4. 1 Specimen Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form
10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the SEC on March 18, 2002). 4. 2 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2019, by and
among AMN Healthcare, Inc., the guarantors party thereto, and U. S. Bank National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the
Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, filed with the SEC on November 4, 2019). 4. 3 Indenture,
dated as of October 20, 2020, by and among AMN Healthcare, Inc., the guarantors party thereto, and U. S. Bank National Association (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, filed with the SEC on
November 6, 2020). 4. 4 Description of Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 5 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for
the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2023). 10. 1 Credit Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2018, by and among
AMN Healthcare, Inc., as borrower, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders identified on the signature pages thereto, as lenders, and SunTrust Bank,
as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2018, filed with the SEC on May 4, 2018). 10. 2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2019, by and among AMN
Healthcare, Inc., as borrower, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders identified on the signature pages thereto, as lenders, and SunTrust Bank, as
administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2019, filed with the SEC on August 7, 2019). 10. 3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2020, by and among AMN
Healthcare, Inc., as borrower, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders identified on the signature pages thereto, as lenders, and SunTrust Bank, as
administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2020, filed with the SEC on May 11, 2020). 10. 4 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 10th, 2023, by and among AMN
Healthcare, Inc., as berrew-borrower , the guarantors party thereto, the lenders identified on the signature pages thereto . as lenders, and Truist
Bank, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on May 5. 2023). 10. 5 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of November Sth, 2024, by and
among AMN Healthcare, Inc., as borrower, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders identified on the signature pages thereto, as lenders,
and Truist Bank, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2024, filed with the SEC on November 7, 2024). 10. 6 Office Lease, dated as of April 2, 2002, between Kilroy
Realty, L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 45 of the Registrant’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File
No. 333- 86952), filed with the SEC on April 25, 2002). 10.6-7 First Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of May 31, 2002, between Kilroy Realty,
L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on February 24, 2022). 10. 8 Second Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of June 30, 2006, between
Kilroy Realty, L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 6 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the
year ended December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on February 24, 2022). 10. 8-9 Third Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of June 30, 2014,
between Kilroy Realty, L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form
10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, filed with the SEC on August 1, 2014). 10. 9-10 Lease Termination Agreement, dated as of September 9,
2021, between Kilroy Realty, L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on
Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021, filed with the SEC on November 5, 2021). +6-ExhibitNumberDescription10 . +6-11 Fourth
Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of October 5, 2021, between Kilroy Realty, L. P. and AMN Healthcare, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 9 of the Registrant” s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on February 24, 2022).
ExhtbitNumberDeseripttont6-10 . ++12 AMN Healthcare 2017 Equity Plan (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) effective
as of April 19, 2017 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant’ s Current Report on Form 8- K dated April 19, 2017, filed with the
SEC on April 25, 2017). 10. 42-13 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Director (Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2022, filed with the SEC on November 4, 2022). 10. 43-14 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement — Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 5 of the Registrant’ s
Current Report on Form 8- K dated April 12, 2006, filed with the SEC on April 14, 2006). 10. 44-15 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
1 of the Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for the quarter ended Mareh 31, 2010, filed with the SEC on May 7,2010 -)—l-Q—lé—Feﬂ%ef

) 10. 16 Form of AMN Healthcare Equlty Plan Restrlcted Stock Umt Agreement — Director (One Year Vestmg:,
and Settlement) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Registrant’ s
Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, filed with the SEC on August 7, 2012). 10. 17 Form of AMN Healthcare



Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014). 10.
18 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Director (One Year Vesting with Deferral) (Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014). 10. 19 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement —
Director (One Year Vesting with Deferral) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.
4 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018, filed with the SEC on May 4, 2018). 10. 20 Form of
AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Director (One Year Vesting and Settlement) (Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2018, filed with the SEC on May 4, 2018). 10. 21 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement- Executive (TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the
Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on May 3, 2019). 10. 22 Form of AMN
Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Non- Executive (TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or
Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2019,
filed with the SEC on May 3, 2019). 10. 23 Form of AMN Healthcare 2017 Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Non- Executive
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on
Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2019, filed with the SEC on May 3, 2019). 10. 24 AMN Healthcare 2017 Senior Executive Incentive
Bonus Plan (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C of the Registrant’ s Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed on March 9, 2017). 10. 25 AMN Healthcare 2022 Senior Executive Performance and Retention Bonus Plan
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on
Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6, 2022). ExhibitNumberBeseriptiont0-10 . 26 The 2005 Amended
and Restated Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan of AMN Healthcare, Inc., effective January 1, 2009 (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan
or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2008, filed with the SEC on November 7, 2008). +6-ExhibitNumberDescription10 . 27 Form of Indemnification Agreement — Officer and
Director (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 14 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2009, filed with the SEC on March 5, 2010). 10. 28 Form of Indemnification Agreement — Officer. * 10. 29 Form of AMN 2017 Healthcare
Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement — Officer (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10. 33 01‘ the Regjlstmnt S /\nnudl Report on l-orm 10-K for the fls(,dl y(,dr t,ndt,d D(,Lember 31, 2018 tllt,d with the SI:C on Pcbruary 21,

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Non Executl\/e (Adjusted EBITDA (nowlh) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021, filed with the
SEC on May 10, 2021). 10. 31 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive (Adjusted EBITDA
Growth) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly
Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, filed with the SEC on May 6, 2022). 10. 32 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan
Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Non- Executive (Adjusted EBITDA Growth) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or
Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022,
filed with the SEC on May 6, 2022) 10 33 Ameﬂdmeﬂt—te—Form of AMN 2017 Healthcare Equlty Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreements—
Agreement- Executive -date : v he v < n-(Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) ( lncorporated by reter ence to Exhrbrt 10. 36-52 of the Reglstrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the
year ended December 31,2022,filed with the SEC on February 22,2023).10.34 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted
Stock Unit Agreement- Executive ( Adjusted EBITDA Performance) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,2022,filed
with the SEC on February 22,2023).10.35 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive (
TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report
on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,2022, filed with the SEC on February 22,2023).10. 3736 Form of AMN 2017 Healthcare Equity
Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive (Buy- Out) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.55 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,2022, filed with the SEC on February
22,2023).10.38-37 Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agreement etfectlve as of May 8,2020 (Managemenl Contract or Lompensalmy Plan
or Arrang,ement) Incorporated by reference to Exhlbrt 10. 4-to-th arterty Report-onForm10-—Q-for-the-quarterended-Mareh

; d ptemb Wi : —4 e-f—to the Reglstrcmt s Quarterly Report
on l-orm 10- Q for the qudl‘t(,r ended March 31 %922—2020 tllc.d wrth the SEC on Mdy 6—11 2020) 10. 38 Severance Agreement, effective as of
November 28 , 2022 ¥, between AMN Healthcare, Inc . and Cary Grace (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 34-2 of the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2022, filed with the SEC on November 4, 2022). 10. 39 Form of AMN 2017 Healthcare Equity Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive
(Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 52-40 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on
Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , filed with the SEC on February 22, 2623-2024 ). 10. 3540 Form of AMN 2017 Healthcare
Equity Plan Perfermanee-Restricted Stock Unit Ageement CEO Exeentive{Adjusted EBITDAPerformanee)-(Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 53-41 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year
ended December 31, 2022-2023 , filed with the SEC on Februclry 22, %92—3—2024 ). 10. 36 Form of AMN Healthcare Equlty Plan ...... or
Arrangement) i ExhlbltNumberDescrlptlon10 41 Form are-£eg strie

Agreemcnt Non- Executrvc (Managuncnt C ontract or Compcnsatory Plan or Arranguncnt) i(lncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 43-42 of
the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). 10. 42
Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive (Adjusted EBITDA Performance) (Management
Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) —*-(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 44-43 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on
Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). ExhibitNumberDescription10. 43 Form of
AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- CEO (Adjusted EBITDA Performance) (Management Contract or
Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) —*~(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 45-44 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for
the year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). 10. 44 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance



Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Non- Executive (Adjusted EBITDA Performance) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement)
—%-(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 46-45 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023,
filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). 10. 45 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive
(TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) —*~(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4746 of the Registrant’ s
Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). 10. 46 Form of AMN
Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- CEO (TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) =
#-(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 48-47 of the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023,
filed with the SEC on February 22, 2024). 10. 47 Form of AMN Healthcare Equity Plan Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Non-
Executive (TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) Arrangerment)-(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 55-48 of
the Registrant’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 .filed with the SEC on February 22, 2623-2024 ).10. 3§
48 Form of Amended-and-AMN 2017 Healthcare Equity Plan Restated-Restricted Severanee-Stock Unit Agreement - Executive seffeetive-as-of
May-8;2020Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4-1 to the Registrant’ s
Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended Mareh3+-September 30 , 2026-2024 .filed with the SEC on May+4+-November 7 , 2620
2024 ).10. 49 Form 39-Severanee-Agreementeffeetive-asof Nevember%S%OQ%—bet—weeﬂ—A\/l\I Healthcare Jne-and-Cary-Graee-Equity Plan
Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement- Executive (TSR) (Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement) (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 ofte the Registrant’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 30, 26222024 ,filed with the
SEC on November 4-7 , 2622-2024 ). +6-19 . 46-Form-1 AMN Healthcare Services,lnc.Securities Trading Policy . * 21. | Subsidiaries of the
Registrant. * 23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. * 31. 1 Certification by Caroline S. Grace pursuant to Rule 13a- 14
(a) of the Securities l:xch(lngc Actof 1934, * 31. 2 Certification by JeffreyR-Brian M . Kntdsen-Scott pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, * 32. | Certification by Caroline S. Grace pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 20()’ *32. 2 Certification by JeffreyR-Brian M . knudsen-Scott pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002. * 97. I AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. Compensation Recoupment Policy. * 101. INSXBRL
Instance Document. * 101. SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. * 101. CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
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SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. AMN HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC. /S /CAROLINE S.
GRACECaroline S. GracePresident and Chief Executive Officer Date: February 22-20 , 2624-2025 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated and on
February 22-20 , 2024-2025 . / S / CAROLINE S. GRACECaroline S. GraceDirector, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer) /S |/ J-E-F-FRE%LR—BRIAN M . KNUDBSONJeffrey R-SCOTTBrian M . knudsenChief-ScottChief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /S / POJGEASD-MARK G . WHEATDeuglasB-FOLETTAMark G . WheatDireetor
FolettaDirector and Chairman of the Board /S /JORGE A. CABALLEROJorge A. CaballeroDirector / S / MARK-GFOEETFAMark-G-
Fetettabireetor+S+TERI G. FONTENOTTeri G. FontenotDirector / S / R. JEFFREY HARRISR. Jeffrey HarrisDirector / S / BPAPHNEE-JAMES
H . JONESBaphneE-HINTONJames H . JenesBireeter-HintonDirector / S / MARFHA-H-DAPHNE E . MARSHMarthaH-JONESDaphne E .
MarshDireeter-JonesDirector / S / SYLVIA TRENT- ADAMSSylvia Trent- AdamsDirector Exhibit 10. 28 INDEMNIFICATION 40Exeeutive
Verstonr-AMN-HEALTHEARE- EQUITYPEANRESTRICTED-STOCSKUNH-AGREEMENT This Indemnification Agreement FHS:
RESTRICTED-STOCKUNITFAGREEMENT-( the-this “ Agrecement ) -is made this-as of , by and
between AMN Healtheare-Servieces HEALTHCARE SERVICES | Ire-INC . , a Delaware corporation (the “ Company ), a—Delawafe
eerperation,;-and ———————the individual named on the signature line below under the heading * Grantee-INDEMNITEE " (“
Indemnitee ” ). Prehmmary Statements W NE-S-SE-TH-WHEREAS, the Company spensers-desires to attract and retain the AMN
services of highly qualified individuals . such as may-be-amended-from-Indemnitee, to serve the Company and its
related entities; WHEREAS, in order to induce Indemnitee to provide or continue to provide services to the Company, the Company wishes
to provide for the indemnification of, and advancement of expenses to, Indemnitee to the fullest extent permitted by law; and WHEREAS,
the Company and Indemnitee further recognize the substantial increase in corporate litigation in general, subjecting directors, officers,
employees, agents and fiduciaries to expensive litigation risks at the same time as te-time;-the availability “Plan>)-and scope desires-to-afford
f coverage of liability insurance provide increasing challenges for the Company -5

the-Grantee-the-oppertunity-to-share-in-the-appreetation—
eemmon-stoekparvatue$- NOW OH-pershare(~Steek)-thereunder, THEREFORE, in consideration thereby-strengthening-the-Grantee™s
eefn-rmﬁneﬂt—te—t-he—wel{f&fe-ol the promlses and the covenants contalned hereln, lhc ( ompanv aml Indemnltee do Afﬁl-tates-&ﬂd-pfemeﬂng—aﬂ

the—pames—hefete-hel eb) covenant and agree as lollm\ s: l Delmmons T—he—fel-lewmg—deﬁmmaﬂs-As used in thls Agreement “ Beneﬁclal Owner

” shall have -- the meaning given to such
term in Rule 13d- 3 under the Exchange Act provnded however, that Beneﬁc1al Owner xlmll exclude any Person be-thatsetforth-inthePlan
{anless-the-eontextindieates-otherwise becoming 2 )—Beneﬁclal Owner by reason of the stockholders of the Company approvmg a merger of
the Company w1th another entlty AFﬁ-l-l&te—Board shall-me&ﬁs— mean {H-any y 76 0 b 3

Dlrectors “ Change in Control ” shall mean . God&and shall be deemed to have occurred if, on or after the date of Ethtes—- this Agreement,
(i) any Person becomes the Beneficial Owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing more than 30 percent of the
total voting power represented by the Company’ s then outstanding Voting Securities, (ii) during any period of two consecutive years,
individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute the Board of Directors of the Company and any new director whose election by
the Board of Directors or nomination for SenterFinanetal-Offieers-andPrineipal-Exeeutive-Offieer;and-election by the Company’ s
stockholders was approved by a vote of at least two- thirds (2 / 3) of the directors then still in office who either were directors at the
beginning of the period or whose election or nomination erfor election was previously so approved, cease for any reason to constitute a
majority thereof, (iii) the stockholders of the Company approve a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation or
other entity other than a merger or consolidation which would result in the Voting Sccurities of FradingPoliey;(C)-the engaging-Company
outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by Grantee-tn-wiltful-miseenduet-remaining outstanding or by being
converted into Voting Securities of the surviving entity) at least a majority of the total voting power represented by the Voting Securities of
the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation, or (iv) the stockholders of the Company
approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement orfor gross-negligenee-the sale or disposition by the Company of (in
one transaction or a series of related transactions) all or substantially all of the Company’ s assets. “ Company ” shall include, in addition to



the resulting corporation or other entity, any constituent corporation (including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a
consolidation or merger which , if its separate existence had continued, would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors,

ofﬁcers, employees or agents, so that if Indemnltee is fnj-uﬂeus—te—the—@emp&ﬁy—m was aﬂy&eﬁ&s—afﬁh&tes—meﬂetﬁﬁl—reﬁetheﬁme—@)—the

constituent corporation as a feleny-director, officer, employee or agent anry-tesser-erime-thatinveltves-Compan

another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or nelo-eentendere-other enterprlse, Indemnltee shall stand in the same posmon under
the provisions of this Agreement with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation or other entity as Indemnitee would have with respect
to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued. “ Corporate Status ” describes the status of a erime-person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company or of any other corporation, partnership or joint venture, trust or other
enterprise which eenstitates-a-felony-such person is or anylesser-erime-thatinvelves-was serving at the request of the Company preperty;or-(F
ﬂel&ﬁeﬁ-e%&ny—ef—tlmfestﬂeth%eeveﬂaﬂts—ﬂ%eeﬁeﬂ—?hefeeﬁ fe}— DGCLGh&nge—m—Geﬁtfe-l— shall means— mean —H-the General
Corporation Law ae h -0 Seetton13+(d)-3rer (2 of (hc State Seeurities

ExehangeAet-ol +934—Delaware as qmcndcd (—from tlme to tlme “ D1s1nterested Director ” shall mean a director of the Company who is not
and was not a party to the Proceeding in respect of which indemnification is sought by Indemnitee. “ Enterprise ” shall mean the Company
and any the-other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise of which Indemnitee is or was serving at the request of
the Company as a director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary. “ Exchange Act ” shall mean

Pa-Personrof benefietal ownership-twithin
the Securltles meaﬁmg—e—%ll—tﬂe—l—?«d—%—pfeﬁat&gafed—tméeﬁﬂae—r xchange Act yof 1934 as amended “ Expenses ” shall lnclude a—mayeﬂt—y—e—f—t-he

< 2

all o&substaﬂﬁa-l-l-y—reasonable attorneys’ fees, retamers, court costs, transcrlpt costs, fees of experts, w1tness fees, travel expenses, dupllcatlng
costs, prlntmg and blndlng costs, telephone charges, postage, dellvery serv1ce fees, and all

connccllon with prosecutlng, defendmg, preparmg to prosecute or defend mvestlgatmg, belng or preparing to be a w1tness in, settllng or
negotiating for the settlement of, or otherwise participating in, a Proceeding. Expenses also shall include Expenses incurred in connection
with any appeal resulting from any Proceeding, including without limitation the premium, security for, and the-other Business-Combination
costs relating to any cost bond, supersedeas bond, or other appeal bond or its equivalent. In addition, Expenses shall include any federal,
state, local or foreign taxes imposed on Indemnitee as a result of the actual or deemed receipt of any payments under this Agreement.
Expenses, however, shall not include amounts paid in settlement by Indemnitee or the amount of judgments or fines against Indemnitee .
Surviving-Corporation-Independent Counsel ~ shall mean the-a law firm, or a member of a law firm, that is of outstanding reputation,
experienced in matters of corporation resutting-law and neither is as of the date of selection of such frem— firm , nor has been during the
period of three years immediately preceding the date of selection of such firm, retained to represent: (i) the Company or Indemnitee in any
material matter (other than with respect to matters concerning the Indemnitee under this Agreement, or of other indemnitees under similar
indemnification agreements), or (ii) any other party to the Proceeding giving rise to a Business-Combinatien-claim for indemnification

hereunder Notw1thstand1ng the foregonng &nd—the term Pafeﬁt—@efpefat—reﬂ-lndependent Counsel \hql] meaﬂ—the—u-lt-rm&te—pafeﬂt—eerpeﬂ}&eﬂ




-any person who, at—aﬁ-y—t-rme—d-uﬁﬁg—under the appllcable standards of professnonal conduct
t-he—then prevallmg, would have teﬁﬁ—e#ﬂ&e—Gfaﬁtee—s—emp}eyﬁmt—was—a conﬂlct

s-ha-l-l—ﬁet—&pp-l-y—to determme Indemmtee



atrd-b patty- empany-agrees-thatit-wil-make-ap ate ston h vatton-ofthe-Grantee-" s rights under this
Agreement . The Company agrees to pay the reasonable fees and expenses of the Independent Counsel referred to above and to fully
indemnify such counsel against any and all Expenses, claims, liabilities and damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement or its
engagement pursuant hereto. For purposes of this definition, a “ material matter ” shall mean any matter for which billings exceeded or are
expected to exceed $ 100, 000. “ Person ” shall mean (a) any individual or entity or (b) any two or more persons acting as a partnership,
limited partnership, syndicate or other group for the purpose of acquiring, holding or disposing of securities of the Company; provided,
however, that Person shall exclude (i) the Company, (ii) any trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of
the Company, (iii) any corporation or other entity owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the
same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company, and (iv) any underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an
offering of such securities. “ Proceeding ” shall include any threatened, pending or completed action, suit, arbitration, alternate dispute
resolution mechanism, investigation, inquiry, administrative hearing or any other actual, threatened or completed proceeding, including any
and all appeals, whether brought in the right of the Company or otherwise and whether of a civil, criminal, administrative or investigative
nature, whether formal or informal, in which Indemnitee was, or will be involved as a party or otherwise by reason of the fact that
Indemnitee is or was a director or officer of the Company, by reason of any action taken by or omission by Indemnitee, or of any action or
omission on Indemnitee’ s part while acting as director or officer of the Company, or by reason of the fact that Indemnitee is or was serving
at the request of the Company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise, in each case whether or not serving in such capacity at the time any liability or expense is incurred for which indemnification,
reimbursement, or advancement of expenses can be provided under this Agreement or Section 145 of the DGCL; except one initiated by
Indemnitee to enforce Indemnitee’ s rights under this Agreement or Section 145 of the DGCL. “ Voting Securities ” shall mean any
securities of the Company (or a surviving entity as described in the definition of a “ Change in Control ) that vote generally in the election
of directors (or similar body). References to “ fines ” shall include any excise tax assessed with respect to any employee benefit plan;
references to “ other enterprise ” shall include employee benefit plans; references to “ serving at the request of the Company. ” shall include
any service as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer,
employee or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a
manner he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be
deemed to have acted in a manner “ not opposed to the best interests of the Company ” as referred to in this Agreement. The phrase “ to the
fullest extent not prohibited by (and not merely to the extent affirmatively permitted by) applicable law  shall include, but not be limited
to: (i) to the fullest extent authorized or permitted by the provision of the DGCL that authorizes or contemplates additional indemnification
by agreement , or the corresponding provision of any amendment to or replacement of the DGCL, and (ii) to the fullest extent authorized or
permitted by any amendments to or replacements of the DGCL adopted after the date of this Agreement that increase the extent to which a
corporation may indemnify its officers and directors. 2. Indemnity in Third- Party Proceedings. Subject to Section 7, the Company shall
indemnify Indemnitee in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 if Indemnitee is, was or is threatened to be made, a party to or a
participant in (as a witness or otherwise) any Proceeding, other than a Proceeding by or in the right of the Company to procure a judgment
in its favor. Subject to Section 7, to the fullest extent not prohibited by (and not merely to the extent affirmatively permitted by) applicable
law, the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee against all Expenses, judgments, fines and, subject to Section 10 (¢), amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred by Indemnitee or on Indemnitee’ s behalf in connection with such Proceeding or any claim,
issue or matter therein, if Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the Company and, in the case of a criminal Proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that such conduct was unlawful. 3.
Indemnity in Proceedings by or in the Right of the Company. Subject to Section 7, the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee in accordance
with the provisions of this Section 3 if Indemnitee is, was or is threatened to be made, a party to or a participant in (as a witness or
otherwise) any Proceeding by or in the right of the Company to procure a judgment in its favor. Subject to Section 7, to the fullest extent not
prohibited by (and not merely to the extent affirmatively permitted by) applicable law, the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee against all
Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by Indemnitee or on Indemnitee’ s behalf in connection with such Proceeding or any claim, issue
or matter therein, if Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the Company. No indemnification er-for plan-Expenses shall be made under this Section 3 in respect of any claim, issue or matter
as to which Indemnitee shall have been finally adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be liable to the Company, except to the
extent that the Delaware Court of Chancery or any court in which the Proceeding was brought shall determine upon application that,
despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, Indemnitee is fairly and reasonably entitled to
indemnification. 4. Indemnification for Expenses of a Party Who is Wholly or Partly Successful. Notwithstanding any other provisions of
this Agreement, to the extent that Indemnitee is successful, on the merits or otherwise, in any Proceeding or in defense of any claim, issue or
matter therein, in whole or in part, the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee against all Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by
Indemnitee in connection therewith. If Indemnitee is not wholly successful in such Proceeding, the Company also shall indemnify
Indemnitee against all Expenses reasonably incurred in connection with a claim, issue or matter related to any claim, issue, or matter on
which the Indemnitee was successful. For purposes of this Section and without limitation, the termination of any claim, issue or matter in
such a Proceeding by dismissal, with or without prejudice, or by settlement, shall be deemed to be a successful result as to such claim, issue



or matter. S. Indemnification For Expenses of a Witness. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent that
Indemnitee is, by reason of Indemnitee’ s Corporate Status, a witness in any Proceeding to which Indemnitee is not a party, Indemnitee shall
be indemnified against all Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by Indemnitee or on Indemnitee’ s behalf in connection therewith. 6.
Additional Indemnification. (a) Notwithstanding any limitation in Sections 2, 3 or 4, but subject to Section 7, the Company shall indemnify
Indemnitee to the fullest extent not prohibited by (and not merely to the extent affirmatively permitted by) law if Indemnitee is a party to or
threatened to be made a party to any Proceeding (including a Proceeding by or in the right of the Company to procure a judgment in its
favor) against all Expenses, judgments, fines and, subject to Section 10 (c), amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by
Indemnitee in connection with the Proceeding. No indemnity shall be made under this Section 6 (a) on account of Indemnitee’ s conduct
which is an act or omission not in good faith or which involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law. (b)
Notwithstanding any limitation in Sections 2, 3, 4 or 6 (a), but subject to Section 7, the Company shall indemnify Indemnitee to the fullest
extent not prohibited by (and not merely to the extent affirmatively permitted by) law if Indemnitee is a party to or threatened to be made a
party to any Proceeding (including a Proceeding by or in the right of the Company to procure a judgment in its favor) against all Expenses,
judgments, fines and, subject to Section 10 (c), amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by Indemnitee in connection
with the Proceeding. 7. Exclusions. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, the Company shall not be obligated under this
Agreement to make any indemnity or advancement of Expenses in connection with any claim made against Indemnitee: (a) for which
payment has actually been made to or on behalf of Indemnitee under any insurance policy or other indemnity provision, except with respect
to any excess beyond the amount paid under any insurance policy or other indemnity provision; (b) for an accounting of profits made from
the purchase and sale (or sale and purchase) by Indemnitee of securities of the Company within the meaning of Section 16 (b) of the
Exchange Act, or similar provisions of state statutory law or common law; (c) in connection with any Proceeding (or any part of any
Proceeding) initiated or brought voluntarily by Indemnitee, including any Proceeding (or any part of any Proceeding) initiated by
Indemnitee against the Company or its directors, officers, employees or other indemnitees, other than a Proceeding initiated by Indemnitee
to enforce Indemnitee’ s rights under this Agreement, unless (i) the Board authorized the Proceeding or (ii) the Company provides the
indemnification, in its sole discretion, pursuant to the powers vested in the Company under applicable law; or (d) for the payment of
amounts required to be reimbursed to the Company pursuant to the Company’ s Compensation Recoupment Policy or Section 304 of the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, or any similar successor statute. The exclusion in Section 7 (c) shall not apply to counterclaims or
affirmative defenses asserted by Indemnitee in an action brought against Indemnitee. 8. Advances of Expenses. Subject to Section 7, the
Company shall, unless prohibited by applicable law, advance the Expenses incurred by Indemnitee in connection with any Proceeding
within ten business days after the receipt by the Company of a statement or statements requesting such advances. At the Company’ s
request, Indemnitee shall provide an itemization of legal fees and disbursements in reasonable detail, from time to time, whether prior to or
after final disposition of any Proceeding. Advances shall be unsecured and interest free. If required by applicable law, then Indemnitee shall
qualify for advances solely upon the execution and delivery to the Company of an undertaking providing that the Indemnitee undertakes to
repay the advance to the extent that it may-enterinto-or-adoptis ultimately determined that Indemnitee is not entitled to effeet-be indemnified
by the Company. 9. Selection of Law Firm. If the Company shall be obligated under Section 8 hereof to pay the Expenses of any Proceeding
against Indemnitee, then the Company shall be entitled to assume the defense of such Proceeding upon the delivery to Indemnitee of written
notice of its election to do so. If the Company elects to assume the defense of such Proceeding, then unless the plaintiff or plaintiffs in such
Proceeding include one or more Persons holding, together with his, her or its affiliates, in the aggregate, a majority of the combined voting
power of the Company’ s then outstanding securities, the Company shall assume such defense using a single law firm selected by the
Company representing Indemnitee and other present and former directors or officers of the Company. The retention of such law firm by
the Company shall be subject to prior written approval by Indemnitee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or
conditioned. If the Company elects to assume the defense of such Proceeding and the plaintiff or plaintiffs in such Proceeding include one or
more Persons holding, together with his, her or its affiliates, in the aggregate, a majority of the combined voting power of the Company’ s
then outstanding securities, then the Company shall assume such defense using a single law firm selected by Indemnitee and any other
present or former directors or officers of the Company who are parties to such Proceeding. After (x) in the case of retention of any such
merger-law firm selected by the Company . delivery eensolidation;reerganization-or-transfer-of the required assets—2Netiee—Everynotice to
Indemnitee, approval of such law firm by Indemnitee and the retention of such law firm by the Company, or (y) in the case of retention of
any such law firm selected by Indemnitee, the completion of such retention, the Company will not be liable to Indemnitee under this
Agreement ot-for any fees or expenses of any other eommunteationrrelating-law firm incurred by Indemnitee after the date that such first law
firm is retained by the Company with respect to the same Proceeding, provided that in the case of retention of any such law firm selected by
the Company (i) Indemnitee shall have the right to retain a separate law firm in any such Proceeding at Indemnitee’ s sole expense; and (ii)
if (A) the retention of a law firm by Indemnitee has been previously authorized by the Company, (B) Indemnitee shall have reasonably
concluded that a conflict of interest has arisen or is likely to arise between either (1) the Company and Indemnitee or (2) Indemnitee and
another present or former director or officer of the Company also represented by such law firm in the conduct of any such defense, or (C)
the Company shall not, in fact, have retained a law firm to prosecute the defense of such Proceeding within 30 days, then the reasonable fees
and expenses of a single law firm retained by Indemnitee shall be at the expense of the Company. 10. Procedure for Notification and Defense
of Claim; Settlement. (a) Indemnitee shall, as a condition precedent to Indemnitee’ s right to be indemnified under this Agreement, give the
Company notice in writing promptly of any claim made against Indemnitee for which indemnification will or could be sought under this
Agreement; provided, however, that a delay in giving such notice shall not deprive Indemnitee of any right to be indemnified under this
Agreement unless, and then only to the extent that, such delay is materially prejudicial to the defense of such claim. The omission to notify
the Company will not relieve the Company from any liability for indemnification which it may have to Indemnitee otherwise than under this
Agreement. The Secretary of the Company shall, promptly upon receipt of such a request for indemnification, advise the Board in writing
that Indemnitee has requested indemnification. (b) The Company will be entitled to participate in the Proceeding at its own expense. (¢) The
Company shall have no obligation to indemnify Indemnitee under this Agreement for any amounts paid in settlement of any claim effected
without the Company’ s prior written consent, provided the Company has not breached any of its obligations hereunder. The Company
shall not settle any claim, including, without limitation, any claim which would impose any fine or any obligation on Indemnitee, without
Indemnitee’ s prior written consent. Neither the Company nor Indemnitee shall unreasonably withhold, delay or condition their consent to
any proposed settlement. 11. Procedure Upon Application for Indemnification. (a) Upon written request by Indemnitee for indemnification
pursuant to the first sentence of Section 10 (a), a determination, if required by applicable law, with respect to Indemnitee’ s entitlement
thereto shall be made in the specific case as soon as reasonably practicable: (i) if a Change in Control shall have occurred, by Independent
Counsel in a written opinion to the Board, a copy of which shall be delivered to Indemnitee; or (ii) if a Change in Control shall not have
occurred, (A) by a majority vote of the Disinterested Directors (provided there is a minimum of three Disinterested Directors), even though
less than a quorum of the Board, (B) by a committee of Disinterested Directors designated by a majority vote of the Disinterested Directors
(provided there is a minimum of three Disinterested Directors), even though less than a quorum of the Board, or (C) if there are less than
three Disinterested Directors or, if such Disinterested Directors so direct, by Independent Counsel in a written opinion to the Board, a copy



of which shall be delivered to Indemnitee, and, if it is so determined that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification, payment to Indemnitee
shall be made within ten business days after such determination. Indemnitee shall cooperate with the person, persons or entity making such
determination with respect to Indemnitee’ s entitlement to indemnification, including providing to such person, persons or entity upon
reasonable advance request any documentation or information which is not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure and which is
reasonably available to Indemnitee and reasonably necessary to such determination, provided, that nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be-in-writingrrequire Indemnitee to waive any privilege Indemnitee may have. Any costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees
and disbursements) incurred by Indemnitee in so cooperating with the person, persons or entity making such determination shall be borne
matled-to-or-delivered-by the Company (irrespective of the determination as to Indemnitee’ s entitlement to indemnification) hand-- and ;-the
Company hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold Indemmtee harmless therefrom (b) If the determmatlon of entitlement to indemnification
is to be made by Independent Counsel pursuant sa W ¢ nsmisstor)-to Section 11 (a) hereof, the
Independent Counsel shall be selected p&rty—fer—w%eﬁﬁt—rs—mteﬂded—&t—sueh—a&dfess— m&y—frem—t—ﬂne—te—t—rme—prowded in this Section 11 (b). If a
Change in Control shall not have occurred, the Independent Counsel shall be desrgnated—selected by tt—rn—a—ﬁet—lee—maﬁed—eféelﬁefed—te—t-he
ether—- the Board party-ashereinprovided-, previded-thatunless-and un s h f Siseicty
the-Granteete-thc Company shall give written notice to Indemnitee advising Indemnltee of the 1dent1ty of the Independent Counsel S0 selected
If a Change in Control shall have occurred, the Independent Counsel shall be matted-er-delivered-selected by Indemnitee (unless Indemnitee
shall request that such selection be made by the Board, in which event the preceding sentence shall apply), and Indemnitee shall give written
notice to the Company at-advising #s— it prineipal-exeentive-office-of the identity of the Independent Counsel so selected. In either event
Indemnitee and-aHnotiees-or eommunieationsby-the Company te-, as the Grantee-case may be , may, within ten business days after such written
notice of selection shall have been given , deliver to the Company Grantee-personalty-or to Indemnitee, as the case may be , a written objection
matted-or-e—maited-to such selection; provided, however, that such objection may be asserted only on the Grantee-ground that the
Independent Counsel so selected does not meet the requirements of “ Independent Counsel ” as defined in Section 1 of this Agreement, and
the objection shall set forth with particularity the factual basis of such assertion. Absent a proper and timely objection, the person so
selected shall at-act as Independent Counsel. If such written objection is so made and substantiated, the Independent Counsel so selected
may not serve as Independent Counsel unless and until such objection is withdrawn or a court has determined that such objection is without
merit. If, within 20 days after submission by Indemnitee of a written request for indemnification pursuant to Section 10 (a) hereof, no
Independent Counsel shall have been selected and not objected to, either the Company or Indemnitee may seek arbitration for resolution of
any objection which shall have been made by the Company or Indemnitee to the the-other Grantee-’ s address-selection of Independent
Counsel and / or er-for the appointment e—matl-as reeordedin-Independent Counsel of a person selected by the arbitrator or by such the-other
reeords-ef-person as thc Company-arbitrator shall designate, and the person with respect to whom all objections are so resolved or the person
so appointed shall act as Independent Counsel under Section 11 (a) hereof . Such arbitration referred to in the previous sentence shall be
conducted by a single arbitrator pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Upon the due
commencement of any judicial proceeding pursuant to Section |3 (a) of —NeRightte-Continued Employment—This-this Agrecement ,
Independent Counsel shall net-be eonstrued-as-giving-discharged and relieved of any further responsibility in such capacity (subject to the
applicable standards of professional conduct the-then prevailing). 12. Presumptions and Effect Grantee-the-rightto-be-retained-inthe-employor
serviee-0f the-Company;-Certain Proceedings. ( a Substdiary-oranAffiliateFurther) In making a determination w1th respect to entltlement to
mdemmﬁcatlon hereunder tlu Gemp&n—y—person or persons an-Affiiate-may-at-any-time-dismiss-the-Grantee-or

5 entity making such determination shall presume that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification
under this Agreement if Indemnitee has submitted a request for indemnification in accordance with Section 10 (a) of this Agreement , and the
Company shall have the burden of proof to overcome that presumption in connection with the making by any person, persons or entity of
any determination contrary to that presumption. Neither the failure of the Company (including by its Board, its independent legal counsel
and its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of any action pursuant to this Agreement that
indemnification or advancement of expenses is proper in the circumstances because Indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct,
nor an actual determination by the Company (including by its Board, its independent legal counsel and its stockholders) that Indemnitee
has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that Indemnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct. (b) The termination of any Proceeding or of any claim, issue or matter therein, by judgment, order,
settlement (with or without court approval) or conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not ( except as otherwise
expressly provided herein—H4—Binding-in this Agreement) of itself adversely Effeet-affect the right of Indemnitee to indemnification or create a
presumption that Indemnitee did not act in good faith and in a manner which Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the
best interests of the Company or, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, that Indemnitee had reasonable cause to believe that Indemnitee’
s conduct was unlawful . Subjeet-(c) Reliance as Safe Harbor. For purposes of any determination of good faith, Indemnitee shall be deemed
to have acted in good faith if Indemnitee’ s action is based on the records or books of account of the Enterprise, including financial
statements, or on information supplied to Indemnitee by the officers, employees or agents of the Enterprise in the course of their duties, or
on the advice of legal counsel for the Enterprise or on information or records given or reports made to the Enterprise by an independent
certified public accountant or by an appraiser or other expert selected with reasonable care by the Enterprise. The provisions of this Section
12 (c) shall not be deemed to be exclusive or to limit in any way the other circumstances in which the Indemnitee may be deemed to have met
the applicable standard of conduct set forth in this Agreement. (d) Actions of Others. The knowledge and actions, or failure to act, of any
other director, officer, agent or employee of the Enterprise shall not be imputed to Indemnitee for purposes of determining the right to
indemnification under this Agreement. 13. Remedies of Indemnitee. (a) If (i) a determination is made pursuant to Section 11 of this
Agreement that Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification under this Agreement, (ii) advancement of Expenses is not timely made
pursuant to Section & of this Agreement, (iii) no determination of entitlement to indemnification shall have been made pursuant to Section 11
(a) of this Agreement within 30 days after receipt by the Company of the request for indemnification and of reasonable documentation and
information which Indemnitee may be called upon to provide pursuant to Section 11 (a), (iv) payment of indemnification is not made
pursuant to Section 4 or 5 or the last sentence of Section 11 (a) of this Agreement within ten business days after receipt by the Company of a
written request therefor, or (v) payment of indemnification pursuant to Section 2, 3 or 6 of this Agreement is not made within ten business
days after a determination has been made that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification, Indemnitee shall be entitled to an adjudication by a
court of Indemnitee’ s entitlement to such indemnification or advancement of Expenses. (b) If a determination shall have been made
pursuant to Section 11 (a) of this Agreement that Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification, any judicial proceeding commenced
pursuant to this Section 13 shall be conducted in all respects as a de novo trial on the merits and Indemnitee shall not be prejudiced by
reason of that adverse determination. In any judicial proceeding commenced pursuant to this Section 13 the Company shall have the burden
of proving Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification or advancement of Expenses, as the case may be. (c) The Company shall be
precluded from asserting in any judicial proceeding commenced pursuant to this Section 13 that the procedures and presumptions of this
Agreement are not valid, binding and enforceable and shall stipulate in any such court that the Company is bound by all the provisions of
this Agreement. 14. Non- exclusivity; Survival of Rights; Insurance; Subrogation. (a) The rights of indemnification and to receive




advancement of Expenses as provided by this Agreement shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which Indemnitee may at any
time be entitled under applicable law, the Company’ s Certificate of Incorporation, the Company’ s By- Laws, any agreement, a vote of
stockholders or a resolution of directors, or otherwise. No amendment, alteration or repeal of this Agreement or of any provision hercof
shall limit or restrict any right of Indemnitee under this Agreement in respect of any action taken or omitted by such Indemnitee in
Indemnitee’ s Corporate Status prior to such amendment . alteration or repeal. To the extent that a change in Delaware law, whether by
statute or judicial decision, permits greater indemnification or advancement of Expenses than would be afforded currently under the
Company’ s Certificate of Incorporation, the Company’ s By- Laws and this Agreement, it is the intent of the parties hereto that Indemnitee
shall enjoy by this Agreement the greater benefits so afforded by such change. No right or remedy herein conferred is intended to be
exclusive of any other right or remedy, and every other right and remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other right and
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise. The assertion or employment of any right or remedy
hereunder, or otherwise, shall not prevent the concurrent assertion or employment of any other right or remedy. (b) If, at the time of the
receipt of a notice of a claim pursuant to the terms hereof, the Company has director and officer liability insurance in effect, the Company
shall give prompt notice of the commencement of such proceeding to the insurers in accordance with the procedures set forth in the
respective policies. The Company shall thereafter take all necessary or desirable action to cause such insurers to pay, on behalf of the
Indemnitee, all amounts payable as a result of such proceeding in accordance with the terms of such policies. To the extent the Company
maintains director and officer liability insurance, Indemnitee, if an officer or director (or former officer or director) of the Company, shall
be covered by such director and officer liability insurance, in accordance with its or their terms, to the maximum extent of the coverage
available for any officer or director (or former officer or director) of the Company. (c) In the event of any payment under this Agreement,
the Company shall be subrogated to the extent of such payment to all of the rights of recovery of Indemnitee, who shall execute all papers
reasonably required and take all action reasonably necessary to secure such rights, including execution of such documents as are necessary
to enable the Company to bring suit to enforce such rights. (d) The Company shall not be liable under this Agreement to make any payment
of amounts otherwise indemnifiable (or for which advancement is provided hereunder) hereunder if and to the extent that Indemnitee has
otherwise actually received such payment under any insurance policy, contract, agreement or otherwise. (¢) The Company’ s obligation to
indemnify or advance Expenses hereunder to Indemnitee who is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer,
employee or agent of any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be reduced by any amount Indemnitee
has actually received as indemnification or advancement of expenses from such other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise. 15. Period of Limitations. No legal action shall be brought and no cause of action shall be asserted by or on behalf of the
Company or any affiliate of the Company against Indemnitee, Indemnitee’ s spouse, heirs, executors or personal or legal representatives
after the expiration of two years from the date of accrual of such cause of action, or such longer period as may be required by law under the
circumstances, and any claim or cause of action of the Company or its affiliate shall be extinguished and deemed released unless asserted by
the timely filing of a legal action within such period; provided, however, that if any shorter period of limitations is otherwise applicable to
any such cause of action, such shorter period shall govern. 16. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Company
and its successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Indemnitee and Indemnitee’ s heirs, executors and administrators. At
Indemnitee’ s written request, the Company shall require and cause any successor (whether direct or indirect by purchase, merger,
consolidation or otherwise) to all, substantially all, or a substantial part, of the business and / or assets of the Company, by written
agreement in form and substance satisfactory to Indemnitee, expressly to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner
and to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform if no such succession had taken place. 17. Severability. In the event
that any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court to require the Company to take any action prohibited by applicable law (or
omit to take any action required to be taken by applicable law), such provision (including any provision within a single Section, paragraph
or sentence) shall be limited or modified in its application to the minimum extent necessary to avoid a violation of law, and, as so limited or
modified, such provision and the balance of this Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with their terms to the fullest extent
permitted by law. 18. Enforcement. The Company expressly confirms and agrees that it has entered into this Agreement and assumed the
obligations imposed on it hereby in order to induce Indemnitee to serve or continue to serve as a director or officer of the Company, and the
Company acknowledges that Indemnitee is relying upon this Agreement in serving or continuing to serve as a director or officer of the
Company. 19. Effectiveness of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date set forth on the first page and, in addition to
applying to acts or omissions occurring on and after such date, shall apply to acts or omissions of Indemnitee which occurred prior to such
date if Indemnitee was an officer, director, employee or other agent of the Company, or was serving at the request of the Company as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, at the time such act or
omission occurred. 20. Modification, Waiver and Termination. No supplement, modification, termination, cancellation or amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding upen-unless executed in writing by Ilk Company heﬁs—e*eet&efs—&d-rmms&&tefs—md IndemnlteeSﬁeeessefs-ef—t-he
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eeﬂsﬁﬁed-a-ﬁd—nﬁefprefed-bmdmg unless executed in aeeefdaﬁee—eﬁt-h-wrltmg by 1he ﬂﬁema-l—l-aws-party grantlng such waiver. No waiver of any
the-State-of Delaware-withoutregardto-the prinetples-provisions of eenfhets-ofaw-thereof;-this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a
waiver pﬁﬁetp-‘xes—e-f—eeﬂ-ﬂ-tefs—ef—l-aws-(n any othu provnsnons jﬂﬁsd-reﬁeﬂ—ﬂaﬁt—eeﬂ%d—eaﬁse—t-he—apphea&eﬁ«n
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contmulng waiver. Unless otherw1se speclﬁcally prov1ded hereln, no failure to exercise or day-delay and-yearfirstabove-writterrin exercising
any right or remedy hereunder shall constitute a waiver thereof . 21 AMN-Healtheare-Serviees;tne-. Notices By
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prepaid, on the third business day after the date on which it is determined-that-so mailed: (i) If to Indemnitee, at the address indicated on the
signature page of this Agreement, or such the-other eenditions-address as Indemnitee shall provide to aeeeleratiorrthe Company. (ii) If to the
Company to: Attn: Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary or to any other address as may have been furnished to Indemnitee met-or
by the Grantee-Company . The-deferral-peried-22. Applicable Law. This Agreement and the legal
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( ompan\ S temﬁaﬂeﬁ—e-ﬁreputatlon, compllance with this pollcy is mandatory Even tht. G-r&ﬂtee—appearance of an lmproper transaction
must be avoided to preserve our reputation for adhering to the highest standards of conduct. Any person who has any questions about this
policy or about specific transactions may contact our Chief Legal Officer. Remember, however, that the ultimate responsibility for adhering
to the policy and avoiding improper transactions rests with you. Introduction Generally, it is illegal for a person to trade on a public
company ’ s securities while in possession of Material Non- Public Information related to that company. Penalties for trading on, or, in
certain circumstances, communicating Material Non- Public Information can be severe, both for the individuals involved in the unlawful
conduct and their employers. Penalties may include substantial jail terms, criminal fines and civil penalties. Penalties may apply whether or
not you derive any profit or other benefit from the subject trade or conduct. Accordingly, AMN has adopted this policy to help ensure
compliance with applicable insider trading laws. Two parts comprise the policy: Part I applies to all team members, officers and directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates, and Part II applies to all Covered Persons. Part I. General Prohibitions and Expected
Conduct A. No Insider Trading of Company Securities. Except as otherwise expressly permitted by Part II. C below, if an AMN director,



officer or other team member (including a former director, officer or team member) possesses Material Non- Public Information relating to
the Company, neither that person nor any Related Person may trade in AMN securities or engage in any other action to take advantage of
that information. Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an
emergency expenditure) are not exempt from this policy. Note: The trading restrictions set forth in this Policy do not apply to the exercise
or settlement of employee equity grants, including any shares withheld by the Company for tax purposes. They do, however, apply to the
market sale of securities received from these equity grants, including the sale of stock received from settlement of restricted stock units. B.
No Tipping Information to Others. No AMN director, officer or other team member may pass Material Non- Public Information on to any
person outside the Company (including any Related Person) or suggest or otherwise recommend that any such person buy or sell AMN
securities or engage in any other action to take advantage of that information. This action is called “ tipping ” and you may be liable for
communicating or “ tipping ” Material Non- Public Information to a third party. C. No Trading of Other Companies’ Securities Based on
Information Obtained Through AMN. No AMN director, officer or other team member may effect transactions in the securities of any other
company while in possession of Material Non- Public Information concerning such company that was obtained in the course of employment
with AMN. D. Additional Prohibited Transactions. Because AMN believes it is inappropriate for any of its team members to engage in
short- term or speculative transactions involving the Company’ s securities, AMN directors, officers and all other team members may not
engage in any of the following activities with respect to AMN securities: * “ In and out ” and “ short swing ” trading in AMN securities,
which means (i) any AMN securities purchased in the open market by any AMN team member, director or officer must be held for a
minimum of six months and ideally longer, and that (ii) AMN team members, directors and officers may not purchase or sell on the open
market, or sell and purchase, AMN securities during any six- month period; * For the purpose of preventing the unfair use of information
which may have been obtained by a reporting person, any profits realized by any Section 16 reporting person from any “ purchase ” and “
sale ” of Company stock during a six- month period, so called “ short- swing profits, ” may be recovered by the Company. * Purchases of
AMN securities on margin; * Short sales (i. e., selling AMN securities you do not own and borrowing shares of such securities to make
delivery); * Buying or selling puts or calls in respect of AMN securities; * Pledging, hypothecating or otherwise placing a lien on any shares
of common stock or other equity interests of the Company that they own; and * Hedging transactions of any kind. E. Pre- Clearance of
Trades by Covered Persons. All Covered Persons are subject to “ blackout ” periods and must “ pre- clear ” trading in AMN securities in
accordance with the procedures set forth in Part II below. All other AMN team members are not subject to the procedures set forth in Part
I1. F. Key Definitions. The following are defined terms that are used in this policy. For ease of reference, whenever a defined term is used in
this policy it is bolded and italicized. 1. Covered Persons. Individuals comprising the following groups or departments are considered
Covered Persons under this policy: (1) AMN Healthcare Serviee-Services witheut-Cattse-, Inc. Board members and officers, (2) Senior
Leadership Forum, (3) Corporate Finance and Accounting, (4) Corporate Audit Services, (5) Legal and (6) Executive Assistants to members
of the Company’ s CEO Committee. 2. Material. Insider trading restrictions come into play only if the information you possess is “ material.
” « Material ” information is any information that a reasonable investor would consider important in a decision to buy, hold or sell the
applicable security. In short, any information that could reasonably affect the price of the security. Common examples of information that
may be regarded as Material are:  information about unpublicized earnings or losses, including whether the Company may miss its
earnings guidance;  significant changes in the Company’ s future prospects; * developments regarding significant litigation or government
agency investigations; ¢ significant change in credit arrangements, debt offerings or liquidity issues; * news of a pending or proposed
acquisition or merger; ¢ acquisition or tender offer, news of a significant sale of assets or the disposition of a subsidiary; ¢ changes in
dividend policies, stock repurchase program or the declaration of a stock split or the offering of additional securities; * changes in top
management; * actual or suspected cybersecurity incidents involving the Company; and ¢ the gain or loss of a substantial client. Either
positive or negative information may be Material. In addition, the Material information does not have to be related to the Company’ s
business. For instance, if certain forthcoming overall market or industry information is expected to impact the market price of a security, it
can be Material. Remember, if your trading becomes the subject of scrutiny, it will be viewed after- the- fact with the benefit of hindsight.
As a result, before trading you should carefully consider how regulators and others might view your transaction in hindsight. When in
doubt about whether particular Non- Public Information is Material, presume it is. If you are unsure whether information is Material, you
should consult the Chief Legal Officer before making any decision to disclose such information (other than due-to death-persons who need to
know it) or to trade in or recommend securities to which that information relates. 3. Non- Public Information. Insider trading prohibitions
come into play only when you possess information that is both Material and “ non- public. ” Information disclosed to a few members of the
public does not make it public or-for Disability-insider trading purposes. To be “ public ” the information must have been disseminated in a
manner designed to reach investors generally, and the investors must be given the opportunity to absorb the information. Even after public
disclosure of information about the Company, you must wait until the opening bell of the NYSE on the second trading day after the day the
information was publicly disclosed before you can treat the information as public. Non- public information may include: (1 ) information
available to a select group of analysts or brokers or institutional investors; (2) undisclosed facts that are the subject of rumors, even if the
rumors are widely circulated; and (3) information that has been entrusted to the Company on a confidential basis until a public
announcement of the information has been made. Similar to questions of materiality, if you are not sure whether information is considered
public, you should either consult with the Chief Legal Officer or assume that the information is Non- Public Information. 4. Related
Persons. You are expected to be responsible erfor Gi)-compliance with this policy by Related Persons. Related Persons means your spouse,
minor children, anyone living in your household, partnerships in which you are a general partner, trusts of which you are a trustee, estates
of which you are an executor and other equivalent legal entities that you control. You should promptly advise all Related Persons of your
obligations under this policy and inform the-them Grantee-that they must advise you of any potential trading in AMN securities prior to
engaging in any trading. 5. Trade or trading. Trade or trading means the sale, purchase, transfer, gift or loan of any AMN security. G.
General Confidentiality Obligations. The restrictions set forth in this policy are designed to avoid misuse of Material Non- Public
Information in violation of the insider trading laws. These restrictions are in addition to, and in no way alter, the general obligations that
each AMN team member has to maintain the confidentiality of all confidential or proprietary information concerning the Company and its
business, as well as any other confidential information, that may be learned in the course of employment. No such information is to be
disclosed to any other AMN team member, unless that person has a clear need to know that information, and no such information may be
disclosed to any third parties, except as required or otherwise contemplated by your function or position. The Board of Directors has
established procedures for the release of Material Non- Public Information, including the designation of company spokespersons, to achieve
broad public dissemination of that information. Accordingly, no AMN officer, director or other team member may disclose Material Non-
Public Information to any person outside of the Company, except in accordance with these procedures. This prohibition extends to
discussions concerning AMN and our business in Internet chat rooms, websites, any form of social media or any other forum. For more
information about the procedures regarding the release of Material Non- Public Information, please review the Company ° s termination
Information Disclosure Policy, a link to which can be found HERE. Part I1. Blackouts and Pre- Clearance of All Trades By Covered Persons
To provide assistance in preventing inadvertent violations and avoiding even the appearance of an improper transaction, the following
applies to all Covered Persons. A. Trading Prohibited During Blackout Periods. All Covered Persons are prohibited from, directly or



indirectly, engaging in trading in AMN securities during blackout periods. (1) Quarterly Blackout Periods. Trading in AMN securities is—
is prohibited during the period beginning at the close of market on the 16th of the last month of each Company fiscal quarter end ( or the
14th or 15th, as applicable, if the 16th falls on a weekend) and ending at the opening bell of the NYSE on the second business day following
the date the Company’ s financial results are publicly disclosed. The Chief Legal Officer may begin a quarterly blackout period earlier if
prudent under the circumstances. The AMN Equity Administration team will notify Covered Persons of the opening and closing of each
quarterly blackout. (2) her-Other Serviee-Blackout Periods. From time to time, other types of Material Non- Public Information regarding
AMN (such as negotiation of mergers or acquisitions) may be pending and not be publicly disclosed. In such circumstances, the Company
may impose special blackout periods during which all or certain groups of Covered Persons are prohibited from trading in AMN securities.
If AMN imposes a special blackout period, we will notify the Covered Persons affected. The Covered Persons subject to the special blackout
period shall not reveal to any person not subject to the special blackout period the fact that a special blackout period is in effect. B. Pre-
Clearance of Securities Transactions. Even when Covered Persons are not subject to a blackout period under Part II. A, they may not
engage in any trading of AMN securities without first pre- clearing it with Geed-the Chief Legal Officer. Covered Persons should use the
following procedure to pre- clear a trade in AMN securities: (1) Contact the Chief Legal Officer in writing for approval. The Covered
Person must provide the following information: (a) Name, (b) Department, (c) Position, (d) type of trade requested (e. g., sale or purchase)
and (e) a statement, if true, that the Covered Person does not possess any Material Non- Public Information. AMN team members should
submit requests for pre- clearance through the form on Connections found HERE. (2) The Chief Legal Officer will make a determination
based on the facts and circumstances known at the time whether the person is in possession of Material Non- Public Information and / or the
extent that a Material event or development affecting the Company remains nonpublic and advise the Covered Person if the transaction
may proceed. The Chief Legal Officer may consult with the Covered Person’ s manager or other personnel in making this determination. (3)
If the Chief Legal Officer grants clearance for a requested trade, the Chief Legal Officer will advise the Covered Person by responding to
the pre- clearance form submitted by the Covered Person. The response will be logged and emailed to the Covered Person. Unless revoked, a
grant of permission will normally remain valid until the closing bell of the NYSE on the second trading day following the day on which it
was granted (it being understood that if the Covered Person becomes aware of Material Non- Public Information prior to actually making
the requested trade, such Covered Person is precluded from making the trade). If the transaction does not occur during the two- day period,
preclearance of the transaction must be re- requested. (4) If the Chief Legal Officer rejects clearance for a requested trade, it will advise the
Covered Person by responding to the pre- clearance form submitted by the Covered Person. The response will be logged and emailed to the
Covered Person. The Covered Person may not be informed of the Reasen-reason why the trade cannot be made. Any Covered Person that is
made aware of the reason for an event- specific prohibition on trading should in no event disclose the reason for the prohibition to third
parties, and should avoid disclosing the existence of the prohibition, if possible. Caution should be exercised when telling a broker or other
person who suggested a trade that the trade cannot be effected at the time. C. 10bS- 1 Trading Plans. 1 10bS- 1 Plans present an opportunity
for Covered Persons to establish arrangements to sell (or purchase) AMN stock without the restrictions of trading windows and blackout
periods. (1) Exemption from Trading Restrictions. The trading restrictions set forth in Part I. A and Part II. A and II. B do not generally
apply to transactions consummated under a 10b5- 1 Plan that: a. has been reviewed and approved in advance by the Chief Legal Officer
outside of a blackout period prior to entering into the 10b5- 1 Plan; b. was entered into in good faith by the Covered Person outside of a
blackout period and at a time when the Grantee-eould-Covered Person was not in possession of Material Non- Public Information about the
Company; and c. gives a third party the discretionary authority to execute such purchases and sales, outside the control of the Covered
Person, so long as such third party does not possess any Material Non- Public Information about the Company, or explicitly specifies the
security or securities to be purchased or sold, the number of shares, the prices and / or dates of transactions, or other formula (s) describing
such transactions. (2) Cooling Off Period. The Company requires that all 10b5- 1 Plans entered into by (i) a Section 16 officer or Board
member contains the later of (a) a 90- day period and (b) 2 business days following the filing of the Company’ s form 10- Q or form 10- K
covering the fiscal quarter in which the plan was adopted or modified or (ii) any other Covered Persons contain a 30- day period, between
the effective date of the 10b5- 1 Plan and the first transaction to be consummated thereunder. (3) Certification. Prior to entering into a 10bS-
1 Plan, any Section 16 officer or board member of the Company will provide a certification to the Chief Legal Officer certifying that such
person is not in possession of any material non- public information and that the 10b5- 1 Plan is being entered into in good faith and not as a
plan to evade federal securities laws. (4) Number of Plans. A Covered Person (other than the Company) may not have beeﬂ—teﬁﬁrﬁ&teé
another outstandlng (and may not subsequently enter into any additional) Rule 10b5- 1 Plan for purchases or sales —gr=

f Serviee-securities during the same period. A Covered Person may have two separate Rule 10b5- 1 Plans so
long as (i) the 1 The requirements of Section C (2) (i), C (3) and C (4) will not apply to any plan existing on or prior to February 27, 2023,
but will apply to any new plan or a modification substantiallyfull time-basis-for- or aecontinueus-twelve-amendment of an existing plan after
such date. plans do not cover the same period and the later- commencing plan does not begin trading on during the cooling- off period that
would have applied if the later- commencing plan was adopted on the date the earlier- commencing plan terminates, and (ii) the plans meet
all other requirement set forth in this Pollcy A Covered Person (other than the Company) may not have more than one Slngle- Trade Plan
durmg any 12 month pumd A y v g d v

Termination and Amendments to 10b5- 1 Plans. Effectlveness ol m\ Affiliate)-termination, modification or
amendment of a 10b5 1 Plan must be reviewed and approved in advance by the Chlef Legal Ofﬁcer outside of a blackout pefsen—m—t-he










termination-ofhis-orher-Serviee-with-GeedReason-at a time w hcn lhc G-faﬂtee—eeu-}d-Cwered Person was not h&ve—m possession of Material
Non- Public Information about the Company; Provided any modification or amendment to a 10b5- 1 plan will be deemed to be a
termination of the existing plan and the adoption of a new plan for purposes of this Policy. Once a 10b5- 1 Plan has been terminated , the
Covered Person should wait at least 30 days before trading outside of a 10b5- 1 Plan. Amendments to 10b5- 1 Plans must not take effect for
Cause-at least 30 days after the amendments are effective . The initiation, modification or termination of a 10b5- 1 Plan will be considered
transactions in AMN securities, and such initiation, modification or termination is subject to all limitations and prohibitions relating to
transactions in AMN securities. Compliance with a 10b5- 1 Plan and the execution of the transactions pursuant to the 10b5- 1 Plan are the
sole responsibility of the Covered Person initiating the 10b5- 1 Plan, not the Company or the Chief Legal Officer. All Covered Persons
entering into a 10bS- 1 Plan must act in good faith with respect to such 10bS- 1 Plan. D. Section 16 Reporting Requirements. Section 16 of

the Securltles Exchange Act of 1934 as amended theﬂ— 34 ActG}es-mg—Avefage—Peﬂed- means-the-ninety(90-) —dayperiod-ending-on-thelast
e v G generally requlres all executive officers feﬁe&eh—ef—t-he—Peer

d&te—ﬁmd-r&tel-y—pﬁeﬁo a—report Ghaﬁge—changes in thelr beneﬁcal ownershlp of Geﬁtfe-l—(—B)—thc ( ompany’ s assrgﬁ-meﬂt—securltles on SEC
Forms 4 w1thm to-two business days after the date on whlch such change occurs. To ensure comphance G-faﬂtee—wrthettt—t:he—@raﬁtee—s—eeﬁseﬁt

C ompam S executlve officers and dlrectors must promptly report eloeatio a prinetpat-pla

on the day of each transaction triggering a reporting requirement to permlt bea-le—that—rs—mefe—ﬂaaﬂ—ﬁ-ftyh(é@}—mﬂes—frem—the Grantee™s
prineipal-place-Company to prepare and file a required Form 4. With respect to any purchase or sale under an approved 10b5- 1 Plan, the
third party / broker effecting transactions on behalf of empleymentthe Covered Person should be instructed to send duplicate confirmations
of all such transactions immediately prier-to the Change-in-Centret-Corporate Counsel, Securities & Corporate Governance . Such reporting
should be in writing ( including by e h--Opening-Average-Period-means-the-ninety{96)— day-period-ended-mail) and should include the type
of transaction, the date of the transaction, the number of shares involved and the purchase or sale prlce of the securities. Whlle the
Company prepares and files appllcable Form 4s on behalf Ay v
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Personnel Services, LLC DL.ldVleL./\MI\ /\llILd Suwus LL( D(.ld\\dl(./\MN H(.leh(,dlL. /\l|l(.d lm Tums/\\/l\l Healthcare, Inc. NevadaAMN
Healthcare Interim Solutions, LLCDelawareAMN Healthcare Labor Disruption, Inc. CaliforniaAMN Healthcare Language Services, Inc.
DelawareAMN Healthcare Locum Tenens, Inc. DelawareAMN Healthcare Physician Permanent Placement, LLCCaliforniaAMN Healthcare
Workforce Strategy and Optimization, LLCNebraskaAMN Lcadership Solutions, Inc. DelawareAMN Services, LLC North CarolinaAMN
Staffing Services, LLC DelawareAMN Workforce Solutions, LLCDelawareB4Health E-CBDelawareAvantas; EE-C NebraskaB4Health-,
LLCMarylandConnetics Communications, LLCCaliforniaDrWanted. com, LLCDelawareMedefis E=-CDelawareHealthSeuree-Global-StaffingIne-
CaliferntaMedefis-, Inc. DelawareMSI Systems Corp. PennsylvaniaNursefinders, LLC TexasO’ Grady- Peyton International (USA), Inc.
MassachusettsShiftWise, Inc. OregonSilversheet Inc. DelawareSpectrum Insurance Company, Inc. HawaiiStratus Video Costa Rica, S. A. Costa
Rica RieaSynzi; EECBelaware-Exhibit 23. 1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm We consent to the incorporation by
reference in the registration statements (No. 333 - 73482, No. 333 - 117695, No. 333 - 133227, No. 333 - 133305, No. 333 - 142187, No. 333 -
158523, No. 333 - 180856, No. 333 - 180857, No. 333 - 194484, No. 333 - 217553, and No. 333 - 273354) on Form S- 8 of our reports dated
February 22-20 , 2024-2025 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. / s / KPMG LLP Exhibit 31. 1 Certification Pursuant To I, Caroline S. Grace, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this
report on Form 10- K of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such



disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant” s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s
other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. / S / CAROLINE S.
GRACECaroline S. GraceDirector, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Date: February 22-20 , 2624-2025 Exhibit
31. 2 I, JeffreyR-Brian M . Knudsen-Scott , certify that: / S / JEFFREY-R-BRIAN M . KNUDSONJeffrey R-SCOTTBrian M . KnudsenChief
ScottChief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Exhibit 32. 1| CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In
connection with the Annual Report of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the period ended December 31, 2823
2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I, Caroline S. Grace, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The information
contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. / S / CAROLINE S.
GRACECaroline S. GracePresident and Chief Executive Officer Exhibit 32. 2 In connection with the Annual Report of AMN Healthcare Services,
Inc. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “ Report ), [, JeffreyR-Brian M . Knudsen-Scott , Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: Exhibit 97. 1 In accordance with
the applicable rules of The New York Stock Exchange (the “ NYSE Rules ”) and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange
Act ), the Board of Directors (the *“ Board ”’) of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. (the “ Company ") has adopted this Policy to provide for the
recovery of awarded Incentive- Based Compensation , as well as certain Additional Compensation, from Executive Officers under certain
circumstances as set forth herein. All capitalized terms used in this Policy and not otherwise defined have the meanings set forth in Section 4-5
below. 1) RECOUPMENT OF INCENTIVE- BASED COMPENSATION In the event of an Accounting Restatement, the Company will reasonably
promptly recover the Erroneously Awarded Compensation that a current or former Executive Officer Received as follows: A. After an Accounting
Restatement, the Talent and Compensation Committee (the “ Committee ) shall determine the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation
Received by each Executive Officer and shall promptly notify each Executive Officer of the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation and
request repayment or return of such compensation, as applicable. For Incentive- based Compensation based on (or derived from) the Company’ s
stock price or total shareholder return, where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not subject to mathematical recalculation directly
from the information in the applicable Accounting Restatement, the amount to be repaid or returned will be determined by the Committee based on a
reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting Restatement on the Company’ s stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Incentive-
based Compensation was Received. The Company will maintain documentation of the determination of such reasonable estimate and provide the
relevant documentation as required to the NYSE. B. In addition to Section 1. A. above, if the Company is required to prepare an Accounting
Restatement due to material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws caused by misconduct, the Company
can seek recoupment of any profits realized by an Executive Officer from the sale of securities of the Company during the 12- month period
following the first public issuance or filing with the SEC (whichever comes first) of the financial document embodying such defective financial
statement, as well as any other amounts required by the Exchange Act. C. The Committee will determine the appropriate means of recovering
Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on the particular facts and circumstances. However, except as set forth below, in no event will the
Company accept an amount that is less than the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation in satisfaction of an Executive Officer’ s obligations
under this Policy. D. To the extent an Executive Officer has already reimbursed the Company for any Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received
under any duplicative recovery obligations established by the Company or applicable law, such reimbursed amount will be credited to the amount of
Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is subject to recovery under this Policy. E. To the extent that an Executive Officer fails to repay all
Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company, the applicable Executive Officer shall be required to reimburse the Company for any and all
expenses reasonably incurred (including legal fees) by the Company in recovering such Erroneously Awarded Compensation. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, the Company is not required to take the actions contemplated above if the Committee determines that recovery
would be impracticable and any of the following conditions are met: A. After making a reasonable attempt (s) to recover the Erroneously Awarded
Compensation, documenting such attempt (s), and providing such documentation the NYSE, the Committee determines that the direct expenses paid
to a third party to assist in enforcing the Policy would exceed the amount to be recovered; or B. Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-
qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of Section 401
(a) (13) or Section 411 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations thereunder. 2) DISCRETIONARY RECOUPMENT
OF ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION In addition to the provisions set forth in Part 1. A- E above, in the event that the Committee
concludes that an Executive Officer engaged in fraud, embezzlement, or intentional breach of Company policy that is materially
detrimental to the Company, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, request
repayment or return of Incentive- based Compensation, as well as Additional Compensation from that Executive Officer. The Committee
shall have the discretion to determine the amount of Incentive- based Compensation and / or Additional Compensation to be recovered as
well as the manner, method and timing of such recovery. 3) PROHIBITION OF INDEMNIFICATION The Company will not insure or
indemnify any Executive Officer against (i) the loss of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation or Additional Compensation that is repaid,
returned or recovered pursuant to the terms of this Policy, or (ii) any claims relating to the Company’ s enforcement of its rights under this Policy.
Further, the Company will not enter into any agreement that exempts any Incentive- based Compensation or Additional Compensation that is
granted, paid or awarded to an Executive Officer from the application of this Policy or that waives the Company’ s right to recovery of any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation or Additional Compensation, and this Policy will supersede any such agreement. 3-4 ) ADMINISTRATION
This Policy shall be interpreted and administered by the Committee, and any determinations made by the Committee shall be final and binding on all
affected individuals. The Board may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion. This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all
Executive Officers and, to the extent required by applicable law or guidance from the SEC or NYSE, their beneficiaries, heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representatives. Any right of recovery under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights



of recovery that may be available to the Company. 4-5 ) DEFINITIONS For purposes of this Policy, the capitalized terms shall have the following
meanings: A. “ Accounting Restatement ” means an accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial
reporting requirement under the securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial
statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements, or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in
the current period or left uncorrected in the current period. B . “ Additional Compensation ” means (i) the portion of an annual bonus, if any,
that is not based upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure and (ii) equity compensation awards that do not contain vesting
terms based on the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure. C . “ Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation ” means all Incentive- based
Compensation Received by a current or former Executive Officer (i) on or after December 1, 2023, (ii) after beginning service as an Executive
Officer, (iii) who served as an Executive Officer at any time during the applicable performance period relating to any Incentive- based
Compensation, and (iv) during the applicable Clawback Period. €D . “ Clawback Period ” means 5 (i) with respect to any Accounting Restatement,
the three completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the Restatement Date, and if the Company changes its fiscal year, any
transition period of less than nine months within or immediately following those three completed fiscal years ; (ii) with respect to compensation
subject to discretionary recoupment pursuant to Section 2, the three completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the date
the Committee concludes an Executive Officer engaged in fraud, embezzlement, or intentional breach of Company policy that is materially
detrimental to the Company . B-E . © Erroneously Awarded Compensation ”” means, with respect to each Executive Officer in connection with an
Accounting Restatement, the amount of Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation that exceeds the amount of Incentive- based Compensation that
otherwise would have been Received had it been determined based on the restated amounts, computed without regard to any taxes paid. E-F . «
Executive Officer ” means each individual who is currently or was previously designated as an *“ executive officer ” of the Company as defined in
Rule 16a- 1 (f) under the Exchange Act. For the avoidance of doubt, the identification of an Executive Officer for purposes of this Policy shall
include each executive officer who is or was identified pursuant to Item 401 (b) of Regulation S- K, as well as the principal financial officer and
principal accounting officer (or, if there is no principal accounting officer, the controller). -G . *“ Financial Reporting Measures ” means measures
that are determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’ s financial statements, and all other
measures that are derived wholly or in part from such measures. Stock price and total shareholder return (and any measures that are derived wholly or
in part from stock price or total shareholder return) shall, for purposes of this Policy, be considered Financial Reporting Measures. G-H . *“ Incentive-
based Compensation ” means any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting
Measure. H-1 . “ Received ” means 5 (i) with respect to any Incentive- based Compensation, actual or deemed receipt, and Incentive- based
Compensation shall be deemed received in the Company’ s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified in the Incentive-
based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of the Incentive- based Compensation to the Executive Officer occurs after the
end of that period j (ii) with respect to Additional Compensation, Additional Compensation that was granted to, vested and / or earned or
received by an Executive Officer during the Clawback Period . +1 J . © Restatement Date ” means the earlier to occur of (1) the date the Board, a
committee of the Board or the officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should
have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement, or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally authorized
body directs the Company to prepare an Accounting Restatement. 1 For the avoidance of doubt, Incentive- Based Compensation or Additional
Compensation that is subject to deferral pursuant to a deferred compensation plan of the Company Group will be deemed Received by the
Covered Executive for purposes of this Policy as of the date of deferral.



